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The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Principal place of business

The Bank is a licensed bank incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business at 45 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are engaged in the provision
of banking and related financial services. The principal activities of the
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segment is set out in Note 34 to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 10.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Reserves

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set out in Note 33 to
the financial statements.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$1,000,000 (2019: HK$100,000).

Other properties and equipment

Details of the movements in the Group’s other properties and equipment
are set out in Note 27 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of share capital of the Bank are set out in Note 32 to the financial
statements. There were no movements during the year.
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Capital instruments

During the year, the Bank issued and redeemed subordinated capital
securities which qualified as additional Tier 1 capital of the Bank
totalling RMB1,000,000,000 and RMB1,000,000,000 respectively.
Details of the Bank’s subordinated debts issued and additional equity
instruments are set out in Note 29 to the financial statements.

Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

Mr ZHU Qi #

Prof CHEUNG Yan Leung Stephen !

Dr HONG Bo * (appointed as Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer
on 1 January 2020)

Mr ZHU Jiangtao

Mr ZHANG Cheng

Ms LI Li (appointed on 15 May 2020)

Mr ZHANG Dong (appointed on 15 May 2020)

Mr LIU Erh Fei !

Mr KWOK Lam Kwong Larry !

Mr WANG Qixin !

Dr XU Shiging * (resigned on 6 January 2020)

Mr PENG Jiawen (resigned on 15 May 2020)

Mr CHOW Kwong Fai Edward ! (deceased on 1 June 2020)

Mr LIU Jun * (retired on 30 June 2020)

# Executive Director

1 Independent Non-executive Director

Directors of subsidiaries

The names of directors who have served on the boards of the Bank’s
subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of the financial
statements? are as follows:

CHEN Yiwen, CHEN Zhaonan, CHEUNG Chung Keung, CMB Wing
Lung (Trustee) Limited, , CHOY Chung Foo, Deeright Limited,
Eaglearn Limited, FENG Xuefeng, GAO Hong, GAO Ting 3, GUAN
Huanfei, HE Xin, HONG Bo, JIN Lu, LAU Lik Alaric, LAU Yu
Keung*, LEE Tsz Kwan Peggie, LEONG Chou Sern, LI Songxue, LI
Yimeng*, LIAO Xiaoju, LIU Jun*, MA Jack Jian, MA Xiaohui, Mo
Simin, NG Pak Yu, QUAN Fei 3, SHIH Pui Ying, SONG Lihua,
WANG Zhigiang, WOO Lap Hoi, XU Beilin *, XU Shiging and ZHU
Qi.

*  He/she has resigned/retired as a Director of the relevant
subsidiary of the Bank.

Directors are listed alphabetically by their last names.

The company which the director belongs to is no longer a
subsidiary of the Bank from 29 April 2020.
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Directors’ interests in shares

None of the directors have been granted, or have exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares of the Bank.

At no time during the financial year was the Bank, or any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its holding company a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Bank or any
other body corporate.

Permitted indemnity provision

During the year and up to the date of this report, a permitted indemnity
provision that meets the requirements specified in section 469(2) of the
Companies Ordinance for the benefit of Directors of the Bank is in force.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangement or contracts

No transactions, arrangement or contracts of significance in relation to the
Bank’s business to which the Bank, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in which a director of
the Bank or an entity connected with a director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered into or
subsisting during the year.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The Bank is required to comply with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
which set out the minimum standards for public disclosure which
authorised institutions must make in respect of the income statement, state
of affairs and capital adequacy. The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020 comply fully with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

Retirement schemes

The Group operates retirement schemes for its employees. Details of the
Group’s retirement schemes are set out in Note 15 to the financial
statements.

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditors of the Bank is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
ZHU Qi
Chairman

18 March 2021
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To the Sole Member of CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CMB Wing
Lung Bank Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as "the Group") set out on pages 10 to 155, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("the Code"), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Calculation of expected credit loss ("ECL") on loans
and advances to customers in Stage 3

We identified the calculation of ECL on loans and advances to customers
in Stage 3 as a key audit matter due to the involvement of significant
management judgement.
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Calculation of expected credit loss ("ECL") on loans
and advances to customers in Stage 3 (Continued)

As set out in note 4.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
defines the impairment assessment rules by segment to estimate future
cash flows individually or by the Rule-based Approach. The ECL for
non-retail segment at Stage 3 and the ECL for retail segment with
exposure at default not less than HK$ 50 million at Stage 3 are
determined on an individual basis using a discounted cashflow
methodology. The expected future cash flows are based on the credit risk
estimates as at the reporting date, reflecting reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of future recoveries and expected future
receipts of interest. Collateral is taken into account if it is likely that the
recovery of the outstanding amount will include realisation of collateral
based on its estimated fair value of collateral at the time of expected
realisation, less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral. The cash
flows are discounted at a reasonable approximation of the effective
interest rate.

As at 31 December 2020, as set out in note 4.1(h) to the consolidated
financial statements, gross loans and advances to customers mainly
comprised of corporate and individual loans amounting to HK$187,464
million. HK$986 million out of the gross loans and advances to
customers balance has been classified as Stage 3 loans. An ECL of
HKS$771 million has been recognised in relation to these loans.

The Group's disclosures with regards to the relevant significant
accounting policies, the related financial risk management as well as the
relevant critical accounting estimates and judgements are contained in
notes 1.7, 2.1 and 4.1(c) respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the calculation of ECL on loans and
advances to customers in Stage 3 included the following:

- Understanding the Group's policies and methodology for the
determination of ECL;

- Assessing the key controls over credit approval, review and
monitoring processes, the internal credit rating system, impairment
assessment processes and collateral valuation;

- Assessing the reasonableness of management's internal credit rating
for a selection of performing loans by reviewing the corresponding
loan files;

- Assessing the reasonableness of management's classification of a
selection of the credit-impaired loans by reviewing the corresponding
loan files;

- Examining the collateral valuation reports and other evidence
provided by management and challenging the reasonableness of
management's assumptions in determining the estimated fair value of
the collateral at the time of expected realisation and the cost for
obtaining and selling the collateral;
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)

- Evaluating and challenging key assumptions underlying management's
credit risk estimates, projection of future recoveries and expected future
receipts of interest; and

- Testing the arithmetic accuracy of the calculation of the impairment
provision for a sample of loans and advances to customers in Stage 3.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion solely to you in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve  collusion, forgery, intentional  omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.



WL BAHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

RBETHLEZS S B SRRRIENE
£ @&

- FHELEMBHRERIREESIEITE - G518
MNE - BFEREE - DS EBEREE
BRI AR AR -

- Bt HEENERESCEESEY &R
Rt - BENETEE > DIEHSGS
B mRERER - WMAE HEHEF
AT ~ BEEAIET - MM AFEZER
R -

HMEARE R ANERE (RPEE) T
sTEIFEE - R 2P - EAFMEIEE - G
HAPTAE 25 1% o 38 1) P 042 1 9 2 ) B R R

e -

HrEE B NRIEEN - SHAKRMEATS
ARBIL IR R B TR W B
A F] RE ST ER MR B & R B MV L M BT
ARG A S IH LR A BRI DG S . (407
) -

RRBVE G N SR EATEIRT > AITHEEWRLS
T AR & B R i B E > AT
FERICRR S B AL SR TR - BRI ST o ik
EERIE > PRIFABAMA eaT AR R E
BIH > e AR T o AR ST
FEFRATIEY i e o R A S R TR A Y S T R SR
BN - BAFTREA FEAE e P
BRI -

B A T R E 5B AR
B -

e - BRI G EAT
e = el
&

—OZ—%=H+/H

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's
report is Ha Hong Yiu, Vico.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 March 2021



HREKERITAIRAE
CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

SGElEER

Consolidated Income Statement

BZ2_O—_OF+_H=+—HI1EZ®EE For the year ended 31 December 2020

—0=0 —O0O—
2020 2019
Bl RE BETIT AT T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FIEUZA Interest income 5 7,966,964 10,074,579
FEZH Interest expense 6 (4,109,301) (4,854,348)
HFE WA Net interest income 3,857,663 5,220,231
A %52 B WA Fees and commission income 1,304,359 1,075,403
g e Fees and commission expense (215,633) (206,337)
IREE RS FIA Net fees and commission income 7 1,088,726 869,066
= PN Insurance operating income 8 684,266 747,888
ARG Net trading gain 9 370,295 241,787
HEDANFEESEEAEME  Net gain on disposal of financial assets
AL 2 2 <8 il & 728 2 7 U at fair value through other
= comprehensive income 123,620 79,142
Hir=dg A Other operating income 10 220,822 242,153
BT A Operating income 6,345,392 7,400,267
SFEBR R Net insurance claims 8 (340,845) (276,308)
Operating income net of insurance
RERERER ZBEBA claims 6,004,547 7,123,959
=t S-dan Operating expenses 11 (2,532,559) (2,333,384)
Operating profit before impairment
BB EFERTZ BERF charge 3,471,988 4,790,575
EREREES Impairment losses 12 (439,809) (500,234)
B Operating profit 3,032,179 4,290,341
Fair value losses on investment
"EMEZ N EERE properties 25 (196,810) (64,367)
HEHMYIE R FH Net (loss)/gain on disposal of other
SFER) S properties and equipment (82) 50,848
Net (loss)/gain on redemption of
WSS [ 22 e B e A BB 2 4 i financial instruments at amortised
TEZF(EE) W cost 13 (214) 586
Share of net profit of jointly controlled
JEAL B4 E RS > s Al entities 44,444 36,462
JEAG B2 N 5] 2 e A Share of net profit of associates 512,882 422,068
BRI RS R Profit before taxation 3,392,399 4,735,938
Fnisfi Income tax 16 (520,402) (748,646)
REERSF] Profit for the year 2,871,997 3,987,292
BEER Attributable to:
RITHER Equity shareholders of the Bank 2,872,237 3,986,589
JEPEEI S R S Non-controlling interests (240) 703

BN 15 HESE 155 HZsk R Bt FG S HE

Z—Hb o

statements.
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The notes on pages 15 to 155 form part of these consolidated financial



AR KERITARAE

CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

SEeEBER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE2_0O-OF+=H=+—HIEZ®FE For the year ended 31 December 2020

—0=0 —O—
2020 2019
AT AT T
HK$°000 HKS$°000
R F] Profit for the year 2,871,997 3,987,292
REFEHM2EWRES/GEH) Other comprehensive income/(expense) for
the year
HEBUEETSTERZRESESZ Items that may be reclassified subsequently
JHH : to the income statement:
PIATEESE A M EHE I Z: 2 Financial assets at fair value through other
ESMEE comprehensive income
- INPEEE S - Changes in fair value 35,199 144,777
- PR ERE A R - Transfer to income statement on disposal (123,620) (79,142)
- Transfer to income statement on
- PRBE R AU R impairment 63,218 116,375
JEAL &= N\ B 2 fE Share of associates’ reserves (3,976) 28,015
RITESIMEREN T TS Z2 24 Exchange difference on translation of financial
Y P 72 22 ZH statements of overseas operations 381,570 (128,530)
Hr g E B g AEFIIE > Effect of deferred taxation on other
A comprehensive income items 5,552 (53,304)
HBAGEFIEZRREZ Items that will not be reclassified
JEH subsequently to the income statement:
DI EESE A B M EEULE 2 Equity securities at fair value through other
A HERS 77 comprehensive income
- ANPEERE - Changes in fair value 131,089 (52,480)
Al FEZ Bk Surplus on revaluation of bank premises - 393
FUEBHIE B 2 BB S Actuarial gains on defined benefit schemes 59,296 1,768
Hremugss e B g Effect of deferred taxation on other
EE comprehensive income items (6,719) 1,692
i Other comprehensive income/(expense) for
AEEHAM R AU/ G H) the year 541,609 (20,436)
AEESHWEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 3,413,606 3,966,856
=) Attributable to:
KRATH Equity shareholders of the Bank 3,413,846 3,966,153
FEFE Y e R 7t Non-controlling interests (240) 703

HONERS 15 HESE 155 HZsk R Bt FSG S R

Z—HR -

statements.
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The notes on pages 15 to 155 form part of these consolidated financial



HREKERITAIRAE
CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

SO BIRILR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—OZ=ZOF+=H=-+—H As at 31 December 2020

Z0OZ=0O ZO—
2020 2019
AR BETIT BT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
EERE - FEERE Cash, balances and placements with and
Bk loans and advances to banks 17 85,217,010 66,327,987
AR T E Derivative financial instruments 18 1,620,404 588,286
DL EERE ATERIR Financial assets at fair value through profit
JEREE or loss 19 4,360,483 6,736,721
HBEWE Investments in securities 20 82,748,994 72,130,647
S HAIETE Advances and other accounts 21 197,508,371 187,931,963
HLE PRI E LS Interests in jointly controlled entities 23 221,380 203,071
B\ B M Interests in associates 24 3,633,892 3,074,800
- CUE S Investment properties 25 2,832,290 3,171,350
FTHE R s Interests in leasehold land 26 153,921 157,674
HA Y2 Ky 2% Other properties and equipment 27 1,668,373 1,492,709
B] [B| g F7 IE Tax recoverable 14,956 783
IR FER I & Deferred tax assets 30 46,746 27,347
45 FE Total assets 380,026,820 341,843,338
=L Liabilities
EEE214 Deposits and balances from banks 39,874,412 27,238,432
THEE TN &E Trading liabilities 154,331 309,136
AT E Derivative financial instruments 18 1,284,107 393,553
ZFRER Deposits from customers 28 270,121,858 243,135,943
BT 27k Certificates of deposit issued 7,454,237 3,725,259
BT 1B EEIA Subordinated debts issued 29 3,097,196 3,110,591
AR TE Current taxation 679,510 738,707
EAEFRIA & (& Deferred tax liabilities 30 32,425 30,823
H A AR TE v FEEE Other accounts and accruals 31 7,619,821 16,417,757
= Total liabilities 330,317,897 295,100,201
s Equity
s A Share capital 32 1,160,951 1,160,951
BEHE Reserves 33 40,962,985 37,862,710
Total equity attributable to shareholders of
B S AT R M s 5T the Bank 42,123,936 39,023,661
HYMER TH Additional equity instruments 29 7,574,573 7,708,361
JEFEEI A B FE 45 Non-controlling interests 10,414 11,115
MR HEEE Total equity 49,708,923 46,743,137
P 75 I B (44 RE Total equity and liabilities 380,026,820 341,843,338
BEN O —FE=H+/\HAEEEE IR Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18
SEMF o March 2021.
KB HER ZHU Qi Chairman
HUE EHEIFTIEREHE HONG Bo Director and Chief Executive Officer

N 15 HES 155 HZARRILFGETB#R
RZ—EM -
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The notes on pages 15 to 155 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.



K ESRITAIRAE

CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

GREMERBEIR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BE2_0=-0OF+=H=+—HI1EZHFFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

Hit Efidm
FEME BTEHE FyMEs  FRIERIE
Bank  Financial THE HORMER
|27 BEAREHE  premises asset HAith s FRBTRSF] Additional Non-
Share Capital revaluation revaluation Other Retained Vs equity controlling &5t
capital reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings  Sub-total instruments interests Total

BT BETRT BT BETRT BTT A%TT BT BETT BBTT %
HKS000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HKS$000  HK$000 HKS$000  HK$°000

HR_O—JUE—H—H At 1 January 2019 1,160,951 57,500 582,418 (272,492) 772,440 33,130,693 35,431,510 4,573,230 10,691 40,015,431
ZO—UTERE G R
e Changes in equity for 2019:
AL Net profit for the year - - - - - 3,986,589 3,986,589 - 703 3,987,292
Other comprehensive
AR H A A T 25/ income/(expense) for
(FH) the year - - 10,380 96,225 (110,681) (16,360)  (20,436) - - (20,436)
Total comprehensive
AR LR/ income/(expense) for
(7 H): the year - - 10,380 96,225 (110,681) 3,970,229 3,966,153 - 703 3,966,856

Transfer to retained
earnings on disposal of
PHELUAFEEREA equity securities at fair
Hofth ST A > B HE value through other
Eanier YNy | comprehensive income - - - 18,158 - (18,158) - - - -

Redemption of additional

JHEEMER TR equity instruments - - - - - (18,330)  (18,330)  (2,015,390) - (2,033,720)
Issue of additional equity
BT LA instruments - - - - - - - 5150521 - 5150521
PRI R R Y Amount decrease in
D non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - (279) (279)
Distribution for additional
HHYMER TEA equity instruments - - - - - (355,672)  (355,672) - - (355,672)
R_O—F+=H
=t+—HrR=0=0 At 31 December 2019 and
F—H—H 1 January 2020 1,160,951 57,500 592,798 (158,109) 661,759 36,708,762 39,023,661 7,708,361 11,115 46,743,137
ZOZOFfE =48
s Changes in equity for 2020:
A F] Net profit for the year - - - - - 2,872,237 2,872,237 - (240) 2,871,997
Other comprehensive
AR FE A AT (expense)/income for
(Gl the year - - (10,011) 120,537 381,743 49,340 541,609 - - 541,609
Total comprehensive
REERMECH) (expense)/income for
et the year - - (10011) 120,537 381,743 2,921,577 3,413,846 - (240) 3,413,606
Transfer to retained
earnings on disposal of
AHEDAFEETEA equity securities at fair
HoAth AU s 2 R A value through other
A i bl comprehensive income - - - 39,386 - (39,386) - - - -
Redemption of additional
I MERS TH equity instruments - - - - - 121,600 121,600  (1,236,600) - (1,115,000)
Issue of additional equity
BTHMERTH instruments - - - - - - - 1,102,812 - 1,102,812
FERERIHIRE R R Y Amount decrease in
b non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - (461) (461)
Distribution for additional
oM TEC equity instruments - - - - - (435,171)  (435,171) - - (435,171)
PoO=O%F
+-HA=+—H At 31 December 2020 1,160,951 57,500 582,787 1,814 1,043,502 39,277,382 42,123,936 7,574,573 10,414 49,708,923
BITHA O = OFEN B THE R E BRI TR N8 B A 7k 48 During the year of 2020, the Bank issued undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
IEBREREEAEHFEIEARE 1,000,000,000 TT(EEHE securities which qualified as additional Tier 1 capital of the Bank totalling
1,103,000,000 JT) - EEEEE{TRCAENES 188,000 JTE i T.E RMB1,000,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,103,000,000). Direct issuance costs of
R ABE o HK$188,000 are accounted for as a deduction from the equity instruments.
AT —O—JUFERNE{TH R E B AT TAVEEY M4 & AN 7k 45 During the year of 2019, the Bank issued undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
RIERFEREE AT HREILIETT 660,000,000 TT(ZF E A securities which qualified as additional Tier 1 capital of the Bank totalling
5,162,530,000 JT) ° EHEEE{ TREAS L 12,009,000 JTEfEFE RS T US$660,000,000 (equivalent to HK$5,162,530,000). Direct issuance costs of
EAf kR AR - HK$12,009,000 are accounted for as a deduction from the equity instruments.
HANEE 15 25 155 B AL S ESMEHER 2 The notes on pages 15 to 155 form part of these consolidated financial
_JIM/\ ° tat t
[NVA) statements.
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AR KERITARAE

CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

HERERER

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

B2_O—_0OF+=_H=+—HI1EZ4EE For the year ended 31 December 2020

—0=0 —O0—h
2020 2019
G AT T AT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BT R ATRIE Cash generated from operations 37(a) 29,222,576 12,991,373
T ATEBEFERR Hong Kong profits tax paid (427,475) (112,727)
YA MRIE Overseas tax paid (175,913) (107,263)
Net cash generated from operating
BESEE A A SR activities 28,619,188 12,771,383
TEEE Investing activities
A SIEE Purchase of investment in securities (71,056,246)  (59,120,771)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of
HE K IE 0 2B S B TS 2 20 investment in securities 51,814,244 50,357,748
U L [E 32 B i K e\ =] Dividends received from jointly controlled
it entities and associates 27,148 26,630
Payment for additions of other properties
B HAM Y N 2 and equipment (270,015) (49,301)
Proceeds from disposal of other properties
HEE EAth V)2 e s i P e 2 F0H and equipment 541 53,253
W& EE e HIBEE Net cash used in investing activities (19,484,328) (8,732,441)
BhETEE Financing activities
Distribution for additional equity
EyMERE T BT instruments (435,171) (355,672)
STEIMER TR Issue of additional equity instruments 1,102,812 5,150,521
Redemption of additional equity
FEOZEIMERR T A instruments (1,236,600)  (2,015,390)
TS EEAE Payment of lease liabilities (117,321) (93,835)
2 FA2E AR SRR 2 BV Amount decrease in non-controlling interests (461) (279)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing
MEEEHZESRER AR activities (686,741) 2,685,345
HE&RERESTEE 2SI Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 8,448,119 6,724,287
N—H—HERE&KZEFRRSIEE  Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 45,654,718 38,711,292
AN R 2R SR e Effects of foreign exchange rate changes 659,983 219,139
R+_A=1+—HR&KER
HETEH Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 37(b) 54,762,820 45,654,718
Cash flows from operating activities
BREE RS REEE include:
FEWBA Interest received 7,872,248 9,879,900
FIE H Interest paid 4,287,265 4,920,476
B ELUST A Dividends received 76,852 62,411

N 15 HE 155 H 2R B ESGE B HE

Z—HR -

statements.
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The notes on pages 15 to 155 form part of these consolidated financial
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CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

M B HRERE

Notes to the Financial Statements
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1 Significant accounting policies

1.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. The consolidated financial statements
also comply with the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (including
derivative financial instruments), financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and investment properties.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgments in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 2.

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs, which are
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The
Group adopted the following revised HKFRSs which are relevant to its
operations:

- Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, “Definition of Material”,
clarify the definition of materiality of information and align the
definition used across other accounting standards. The adoption of
these amendments has no material impacts on the Group’s financial
statements.

- Amendments to HKFRS 3, “Definition of a Business”, clarify the
definition of a business, with the objective of assisting entities to
determine whether a business combination transaction should be
accounted for as a business combination or as an asset acquisition.
The adoption of these amendments has no material impacts on the
Group’s financial statements.
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CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

M B HRERE

Notes to the Financial Statements
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements, the
HKICPA has also issued certain new/revised HKFRSs which are not yet
effective for accounting period beginning on 1 January 2020 and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group is in the process of making
an assessment of what the impact of these new/revised HKFRSs is
expected to be in the period of initial application. The following
new/revised HKFRSs are relevant to the Group’s operations:

- Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2, which is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

- Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework,
which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

- Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use, which is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022.

- Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

- HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts, which is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS
16 address issues that might affect financial reporting when a company
replaces the old interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate
as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform. The amendments
complement those issued in November 2019 and relate to changes to
contractual cash flows: a company will not have to derecognise or adjust
the carrying amount of financial instruments for changes required by the
interest rate benchmark reform, but will instead update the effective interest
rate to reflect the change to the alternative benchmark rate. The application
of these amendments will not have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 update a reference in HKFRS 3 to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in 2018. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its requirement for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability, that for some types of liabilities and contingent
liabilities, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should instead refer to HKAS 37.
The exception has been added to avoid an unintended consequence of
updating the reference to the Conceptual Framework. The application of
these amendments will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment the proceeds from selling items
produced before that asset is available for use. The related sales proceeds
together with the costs of providing these items as determined by HKAS 2,
should be included in profit and loss. The amendments are applied
retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in
the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
The application of these amendments will not have a material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling the contract includes both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendments are applied to
contracts for which exist at the date when the amendments are first applied,
with the cumulative effect of applying the amendments to be recognised as
an opening balance adjustment to retained earnings or other component of
equity, as appropriate. The comparatives are not restated. The application of
these amendments will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

HKFRS 17 supersedes the current insurance contracts standard HKFRS 4.
The new standard establishes the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts, with an
objective to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that
faithfully represents insurance contracts. The Group is in the process of
considering its impact.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries and the Group’s interests in
associates and jointly controlled entities.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. They include entities in which the Bank, directly or
indirectly, controls the composition of the Board of Directors, controls
more than half of the voting power or holds more than half of the issued
share capital.

Interests in subsidiaries are consolidated into the financial statements from
the date on which control commences until the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
inter-company transactions are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

The Group has interests in certain unconsolidated structured entities which
include (i) investment funds established and managed by the Group to
generate fees from managing assets on behalf of investors; and (ii)
third-party managed investment funds purchased by the Group.

The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s interests in
unconsolidated structured entities is the carrying amount of the assets held
and is included in Notes 19 and 20. As at 31 December 2020, no financial
support was given to the unconsolidated structured entities (2019: Nil).
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.3 Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a contractual
arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of the participating
parties has unilateral control over the economic activity.

A jointly controlled entity is an arrangement whereby the Group and other
parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method and are initially
recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in
the Group’s share of the jointly controlled entities’ net assets and any
impairment losses relating to the investment. The Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the jointly controlled entities and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the jointly controlled entities’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

1.4 Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence, but
not control or joint control, over its management, including participation in
the financial and operating policy decision. This is generally accompanied
by a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

The Group’s interests in associates are accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method and are initially recorded at
cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the associates’ net assets and any impairment losses relating to the
investment. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the associates and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the associates’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in the consolidated income statement as follows:

(a) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement on an accruals basis
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all amounts paid or received between
parties to the contract, including cash rebates granted in relation to
residential mortgage loans, that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent increase of such net
present value of impaired assets due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest income.

(b) Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income arises on financial services provided by
the Group and is recognised when the corresponding service is
provided, except where the fee is charged to cover the costs of a
continuing service to, or risk borne for, the customer, or is interest in
nature. In these cases, the fee is recognised as income in the
accounting period in which the cost or risk is incurred and is
accounted for as interest income.

(c) Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contract

Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire purchase payments
is recognised as interest income over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of return on the
outstanding net investment in the leases for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals receivable are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned. Commission paid to
dealers for acquisition of finance lease loans or hire purchase
contracts is included in the carrying value of the assets and amortised
to the consolidated income statement over the expected life of the
lease as an adjustment to interest income.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.5 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(d) Rental income for operating lease

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised as
other operating income in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals receivable are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

(e) Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised when the share price of
the investment goes ex-dividend.

1.6 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets under the following categories:
financial assets at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The classification depends on the business model and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets, or the election
of fair value option. Management determines the classification at initial
recognition.

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at
amortised cost.

These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Impairment allowances are
recognised in profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to an
allowance account which reduces the carrying amounts of these
assets. If the amount of impairment allowances decreases in
subsequent periods, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss.

This category includes most of the balances and placements with

and loans and advances to banks, advances to customers, certain
trade bills and debt securities.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.6 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value. The
subsequent changes in the fair value of these assets (except those
relating to interest income and impairment) are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Impairment allowances are recognised in
profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to other comprehensive
income without reducing the carrying amounts of these assets. The
amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are the same as the
amounts that would have been recognised in profit or loss if these
assets have been measured at amortised cost. If the amount of
impairment allowances decreases in subsequent periods, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income shall be transferred to profit or loss.

This category includes most of the trade bills, debt securities, certain
balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks, and
advances to customers.

The Group has also elected to designate some equity investments
(that is not held for trading) at fair wvalue through other
comprehensive income. The subsequent changes in the fair value of
these equity investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income recognised in profit or loss.
Unlike the financial assets mentioned above, these equity
investments are not subject to impairment assessment. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income shall not be transferred to profit or loss,
and shall be transferred to retained earnings.
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1 FESHBER (&) 1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.6 ERIEE (&) 1.6 Financial assets (Continued)
() LAZSHEEZEA IR R Ll B (c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(o= 1R ST v R e = 57 W =l 7N This category has two sub-categories: financial assets mandatorily
BEZFEAEBEREZ2MEE XIS measured at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets
ELLAFEHEZAERKZ &M designated at fair value through profit or loss.
HE -
() MELAVEEHEABGZRZ (i) Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through
s REE profit or loss
&R E E Financial assets that:
- WIELLUWEL & &Y & 7 5k - are held in a business model whose objective is neither hold
D Hm&EYREREHRE to collect contractual cash flows nor hold to collect
Ry H BE Ay pg 2 M =L o contractual cash flows and sell, or
H o B
- HE &R WIEE B A & H - have contractual cash flows that are not solely payments of
F B FIE - B principal and interest, or
- IEHEE LA FEEEZE A - are not designated at fair value through profit or loss
8 25 IR
HHEMLNAFEEE ABHE are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss.
IRt &
ILE & EENANFEHEE These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, with
TS EXBRAE S transaction costs taken directly to the income statement, and are
FIAWZmEAN > R FEEZRULS subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent changes in
FEEGSE HEEEFRZ the fair value of these assets are recognised as “Net gain/loss
NP RN & U arising from financial instruments mandatorily measured at
FNHERE By T HREDAFEESE fair value through profit or loss” in the consolidated income
AR 2 & Rl T BP0 S statement. These financial assets are not subject to impairment
B WESMEENTEZE assessment.
17 B AE BEAS -
I 38 B F B E B e R This category mainly composed of debt and equity investments.
B -
(i) FHFEUAPFHERESABRGRZ (i) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
&Rl E E
TF & B 8 84 kAR 5 BE 56 DL Financial assets that meet the amortised cost or fair value
FEEEE A H 2 | U ws st through other comprehensive income criteria may be
BRGNS EE UFET designated by management to be measured at fair value through
A > 7 BB E B g R 9 R profit or loss (“fair value option”) at inception if they meet the
B BEL A FEEMEGE AR following criteria:
wiREE(T AFEHEE EE
)
- Z¥E E BE M BR B FE B OHhOR - The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
& LLK [E] BE 88 F 3 & & b measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
EaEo s EEISmE R referred to as “an accounting mismatch™) that would
KN— st 2o iR 2B otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
(TR T & EEEED ) recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases;
£ or
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.6 Financial assets (Continued)
(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

(if)  Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

- A group of financial assets is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
this is the basis on which information about these assets is
provided internally to the management.

These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, with
transaction costs taken directly to the income statement, and are
subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent changes in
the fair value of these assets are recognised as “Net gain/loss
arising from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss” in the consolidated income statement.
These financial assets are not subject to impairment
assessment.

This category mainly composed of debt securities.

Purchases and sales of securities are recognised on trade-date - the date on
which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provision of the
instrument. Loans and advances are recognised when cash is advanced to
the borrowers.

1.7 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises expected credit loss (“ECL”) on the following
financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss:

- Balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks
- Debt securities

- Advances to customers and trade bills

- Certain loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.
At initial recognition, impairment allowance is required for ECL resulting

from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (or less,
where the remaining life is less than 12 months) (“12-month ECL”).

In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, impairment allowance is
required for ECL resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of the financial instrument (“life-time ECL”).
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The application of the ECL model will result in three stages of financial
assets:

- A financial asset is classified under Stage 1 if it was not
credit-impaired upon origination and there has not been a significant
increase in its credit risk since inception. Recognition for 12-month
ECL is required.

- A financial asset is classified under Stage 2 if it was not
credit-impaired upon origination but has since suffered a significant
increase in credit risk. Recognition for life-time ECL is required.

- A financial asset which has been credit-impaired with objective
evidence of default is classified under Stage 3 and is assessed for
life-time ECL.

Measurement of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate.

For loan commitments, the ECL is the present value of the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Group if the holder
of the commitment draws down the loan and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive if the loan is drawn down.

For financial guarantee contracts, the ECL is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder of the guarantee contract less
any amounts that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.

Credit-impaired financial assets (Stage 3 assets)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether a financial
asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets
are referred to as Stage 3 assets and their interests are accrued net of the
impairment amounts. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes but not limited to the following observable data:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(ii)  abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Stage 3 assets) (Continued)

(iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

(v) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been rescheduled due to a deterioration in the borrower’s
financial condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there
is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has
reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment.

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when contractual payment
are more than 90 days past due.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset has significantly
increased since origination, both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information is considered.

More details on the determination of a significant increase in credit risk
are set out in Note 4.1.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, unless there is
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise, the
Group presumes that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are 30 days past due or more.

Modification

A financial asset is modified when the contractual terms governing the
cash flows of a financial asset are modified between initial recognition
and maturity of the financial asset.

The modified financial asset is derecognised if the existing agreement is
cancelled and a new agreement is made on substantially different terms or
if the terms of an existing agreement are modified such that the modified
financial asset is a substantially different financial instrument.

In the case where the modified financial asset is derecognised, the ECL is
remeasured at the date of derecognition to determine the net carrying
amount of the asset at that date. The difference between this revised
carrying amount and the fair value of the new financial asset will lead to a
gain/loss on derecognition.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Modification (Continued)

The new financial asset will generally has an impairment allowance
measured based on 12-month ECL.

Where a modification does not lead to derecognition, the Group calculates
the modification gain/loss by comparing the gross carrying amount before
and after the modification (excluding the ECL allowance).

The Group determines if the credit risk of the modified financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing the risk of a
default occurring at the reporting date (based on the modified contractual
terms) and that at initial recognition (based on the original, unmodified
contractual terms).

If the credit risk remains significantly higher than what was expected at
initial recognition, the impairment allowance will continue to be measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The impairment allowance will only
be measured based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence of the
borrower’s improved repayment behaviour following modification leading
to a reversal of the previous significant increase in credit risk.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off with related impairment
allowances (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is the case when the Group determines that the borrower
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. Such loans and
debt securities are written off after all the necessary procedures have been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
decrease the impairment charge to income statement.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Impairment allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial
position as follows:

- financial assets at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross
carrying amount of the assets;

- financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income: no
impairment allowance is presented in the statement of financial
position as the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value.
However, the impairment allowance is recognised in the financial
asset revaluation reserve; and

- loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a
provision on the liabilities side.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.8 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

The Group classifies its financial

recognised initially at fair value.

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories:
financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Trading liabilities

Trading liabilities are financial liabilities that are incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term.
It is carried at fair value and any changes in fair value are
recognised as ‘“Net gain/loss
instruments mandatorily measured at fair value through profit
or loss” in the consolidated income statement.

(if)  Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or

loss

A financial liability is designated as fair value through profit
or loss if it is so designated at inception. Financial liabilities
so designated include certain certificates of deposit issued
and certain deposits received from customers that are
embedded with derivatives. A financial liability is typically
so designated if it meets the following criteria:

- The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial liabilities
or recognising the gains and losses on them on different

bases;

- A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, i
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about these liabilities is provided internally

to the management; or

28

liabilities under the following
categories: financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
deposits, certificates of deposit issued, subordinated debts issued and
other liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and

trading liabilities and
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.8 Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

(if) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

- It relates to those financial instruments embedded with
derivatives which significantly modify the cash flows that
would otherwise be required under the contract.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are carried at fair value and any gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value are recognised as “Net gain/loss
arising from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss” in the consolidated income statement,
except for fair value changes arising from own credit risks are
recognised as other comprehensive income and subsequently
reclassified to the retained earnings upon derecognition.

(b) Deposits, certificates of deposit issued, subordinated debts issued
and other liabilities

Deposits, certificates of deposit issued and subordinated debts
issued, other than those classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, together with other financial liabilities are
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the other financial
liabilities using the effective interest method.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received from issuance, net of direct issue costs.

1.9 Repos and reverse repos

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to repurchase
at a pre-determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase
agreement are referred to as repos. Securities and bills purchased from a
counterparty with an obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at a
pre-determined price on a specified future date under a resale agreement
are referred to as reverse repos.

Repos are initially recorded as deposits and balances from banks at the
actual amount of cash received from the counterparty. Financial assets
given as collateral for repurchase agreements are not derecognised.
Reverse repos are initially recorded as balances and placements with banks
at the actual amount of cash paid to the counterparty. Financial assets
received as collateral under reverse repurchase agreements are not
recognised in the statement of financial position. The difference between
sale and repurchase price is recognised as interest income or interest
expense over the life of the agreements using the effective interest method.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at
their fair value. Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host
contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. All derivatives
are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair
value is negative. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
income statement.

Derivative transactions are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

1.11 Valuation of securities and derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market
prices at the valuation date without any deduction for estimated future
selling costs. Financial assets are priced at current bid prices while
financial liabilities are priced at current ask prices. For unlisted securities
and where the market for a financial instrument is not active, the Group
estimates fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use
of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing
models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.

1.12 Investment properties

Land and/or buildings which are owned and/or held under a leasehold
interest for long-term rental yields and/or for capital appreciation, and
that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as
investment property. When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held
under a finance lease, and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased under finance
leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.12 Investment properties (Continued)

When a property is transferred to investment property following a change
in its use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the
carrying amount of the property immediately prior to the transfer and its
fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the bank premises revaluation reserve in
accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”. However, a
revaluation increase is recognised as income only to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised as
an expense. Decreases are first set off against increases on previous
valuations of the same asset and thereafter are debited to the consolidated
income statement. Upon disposal of the property, the relevant portion of
the bank premises revaluation reserve is released and transferred from the
bank premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

When an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its
cost.

1.13 Other properties and equipment
(@  Premises

Premises represent those properties held for own use and are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Where the land and building elements of the leasehold
properties held for own use can be allocated reliably at the
inception of the lease, the land element is accounted for as finance
lease if the lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership to the leasee. As such, any leasehold land
premiums for acquiring the land leases, or other lease payments,
are charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight line
basis over the period of the lease or where there is impairment, the
impairment is charged to the income statement. Any buildings
which are situated on such land leases are presented as part of
premises. Where the land and building elements of the leasehold
properties cannot be allocated reliably at the inception of the lease,
the land and building elements are treated as a finance lease and
classified as premises.

Depreciation of premises is calculated on a straight line basis to
write off the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired terms of the
leases.

- Building and improvements thereto are depreciated over the
lesser of 40 years or the remaining estimated useful life.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.13 Other properties and equipment (Continued)
(b)  Furniture and equipment

Furniture and equipment is stated at cost less depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on a reducing
balance basis to write off the assets over their estimated useful
lives, at annual rates ranging from 10% to 30%.

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

(c)  Right of use assets

Details on right of use assets are set out in Note 1.22.

1.14 Impairment of other assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation,
but are tested annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

1.15 Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are reported as “Other accounts” under
“Advances and other accounts” and the relevant loans are derecognised.
The repossessed assets are measured at the minimum of the amount of the
related loans and advances, carrying amount and net realisable value.

1.16 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.16 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.

Translation differences on non-monetary items such as equity securities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary items such as equity securities at fair value
through other comprehensive income are included in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Assets and liabilities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. Income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

1.17 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in the consolidated income statement
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.17 Income tax (Continued)

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing deductible
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.18 Insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance
contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. As a
general guideline, the Group defines significant insurance risk as the
possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event
that are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the insured event
did not occur.

(a) Recognition and measurement

The Group issues various classes of insurance contract including
accident and health, motor vehicles, ships, goods in transit, property
damage, employees’ compensation, general liability and pecuniary
loss. Risks under these insurance policies usually cover one year
duration.

For all these contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue (earned
premiums) proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion
of premium received on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired
risks at the end of the reporting period is reported as the unearned
premium liability.  Premiums are shown before deduction of
commission and are net of duties levied on premiums.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred. They include direct and indirect
claims settlement costs and arise from events that have occurred up
to the end of the reporting period even if they have not yet been
reported to the Group. Liabilities for unpaid claims are separately
analysed by class of business. They are estimated using the input of
assessments for individual cases reported to the Group and statistical
techniques for the claims incurred but not reported.

(b) Outstanding claims

Outstanding claims are assessed by reviewing individual claims and
include an estimate for claims incurred but not reported at the end of
reporting date. This provision, although not capable of precise
assessment, has been made in the light of available information and
after taking into account direct claims handling expenses and
possible recoveries from other parties. Indirect expenses relating to
the general administration of claims are not included as part of
outstanding claims.

The provision for claims incurred but not reported at the end of
reporting date is made based on historical experience.

Claims recoverable from reinsurers are included as an asset at the
end of reporting date.

(¢) Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

Commissions and discounts that vary with and are related to securing
new contracts and renewing existing contracts are capitalised as
DAC. All other costs are recognised as expenses when insured.
The DAC is subsequently amortised over the terms of the insurance
policies as premium is earned.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.18 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(d)

)

()

Liability adequacy test

At the end of each reporting period, liability adequacy test is
performed to ensure the unearned premium reserves net of related
DAC assets are sufficient to cover the contract liabilities. In
performing this test, current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and maintenance (administration)
expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing such
liabilities, are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the
income statement and a provision for losses arising from liability
adequacy tests (the unexpired risk provision) is established.

Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts held by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group
is compensated for losses on one or more contracts issued by the
Group and that meet the classification requirements for insurance
contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Insurance
contracts entered into by the Group under which the contract holder
is another insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance
contracts.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance
contracts held are recognised as reinsurers’ share of insurance
contracts. These assets consist of short-term balances due from
reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are dependent on
the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers
are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of
each reinsurance contract. Premiums ceded and claims reimbursed
are presented on a gross basis.

The Group assesses the reinsurers’ share of insurance contracts for
impairment on an annual basis. If there is objective evidence that the
reinsurers” share of insurance contracts is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount of the insurance contracts to its
recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss in the
consolidated income statement.

Receivables and payables related insurance contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due. These include
amounts due to and from agents, brokers and insurance contract
holders.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the insurance
receivable accordingly and recognises that impairment loss in the
consolidated income statement.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.19 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligation as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as interest expense.

1.20 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (“the
holder”) for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

The fair value of the guarantee (being the guarantee fees received) is
initially recognised as deferred income in the financial statements on the
date that the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of
the amount determined in accordance with Note 1.19 and the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised. Any changes
in the liability relating to financial guarantees are recognised in the
income statement.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.21 Employee benefits

Employee benefits include short-term leave entitlements and long-term
staff retirement benefits as follows:

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
recognised when the absences occur.

(b) Retirement benefits

The Group operates six staff retirement schemes. The assets of these
schemes are all held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group’s contributions to schemes with defined contribution
arrangements and the mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) schemes
are expensed as incurred.

Annual contributions to the retirement benefit schemes with defined
benefit arrangements are determined based on periodic valuations of
the assets and liabilities of such schemes by qualified actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. Under this method, the cost of
providing retirement benefits is charged to the consolidated income
statement so as to spread the regular cost over the service lives of
employees in accordance with the advice of qualified actuaries. The
defined benefit obligation is measured as the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government
securities which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related liabilities.

Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit schemes are recognised

in other comprehensive income and reflected immediately in retained
earnings.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.22 Operating leases

Leases where substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.

Where the Group is a lessee under operating leases, leased assets mainly
include properties and equipment. A right of use asset and a
corresponding lease liability are recognised on the statement of financial
position when the leased asset is available for use.

The right of use asset and the lease liability are to be included in the
statement of financial position as “Other properties and equipment” and
“Other accounts and accruals™ respectively.

Lease liability is the discounted present value of the future cash flow of
the lease payments of a lease contract, after taking into account payment
to be made in optional period if the extension option is reasonably certain
to be exercised, using the lessees’ incremental borrowing rate at the
commencement date of the lease as discount rate.

Right of use asset is generally measured at the amount of the lease
liability plus initial direct costs, estimated dismantling or restoring cost
and adjusted by prepaid lease payments. The right of use asset is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses; and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability.

After the commencement date, the carrying value of lease liability will be
increased to reflect the unwinding of discount through interest expense
and will be reduced to reflect the lease payments made. The lease liability
will also be remeasured if there is any modification to the lease contract.
A right of use asset is depreciated by straight line method from
commencement date to the end of lease term. In case there is a purchase
option that is expected to be exercised, then the right of use asset will be
depreciated to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a straight
line basis as rental expense in the income statement. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets leased out
mainly include properties and equipment and are depreciated in
accordance with the Group’s depreciation policies except where the asset
is classified as investment property. Rental income (net of any incentives
given to lessees) is recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals receivable are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.23 Hire purchase contracts and finance leases

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee are classified as finance leases.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount representing
the net investment in the lease is included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as “Advances and other accounts”. The net
investment represents the total rentals receivable under hire purchase
contracts and finance leases less unearned finance income. Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in Note 1.7. Finance income implicit in the rental receivable is
credited to the consolidated income statement over the lease period or
hire period so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment outstanding for each accounting period.

1.24 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in
the consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations. Information provided to the Group's most senior executive
management to make decisions about allocating resources and assessing
performance of operating segments is measured in accordance with
HKFRSs.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

1.25 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with original maturity within three months from the
date of acquisition including cash, balances with banks, treasury bills and
certificates of deposit that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Balances from banks, which form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management, are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.
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1.26 RHE AT 1.26 Related parties
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(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.

(EPNERpuE T E a0 a7 RT3 (EUN-Z Close family members of an individual are those family members who
& W TR SR ERE - may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in their

dealings with the entity.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.27 Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it is
highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a
group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets that will
be transferred in the transaction.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the
non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities in a disposal
group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale
and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions
to this measurement policy so far as the consolidated financial statements
of the Group are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets (other than interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with
the policies set out elsewhere in Note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.

1.28 Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related

costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to compensation of expenses are deducted
from the related expenses.
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2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments in
applying accounting policy

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

2.1 Impairment of financial assets

The Group reviews its credit portfolios to assess impairment at least on a
quarterly basis. The measurement of impairment losses across all
categories of credit asset requires judgment, in particular, the estimation
of the amount and timing of future cash flows and the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number
of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

2.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation
techniques (for example, models) are used to determine fair values, they
are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the department that created them to ensure that outputs
reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical,
models use only observable data, however areas such as credit risk (both
own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require management
to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors would
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

2.3 Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are estimated based on the
valuation made by an independent professional valuer on an open market
basis. The valuation has considered a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefit by using the asset or by selling it to another
market participant who will use the asset in its highest and best use.
The fair values are assessed based on the capitalisation of the net income
for the properties using Investment Method of Valuation. The contractual
rental income and the expected future market rental income after
allowing for outgoings and maintenance requirements are capitalised at
observed market yields. The principal assumptions underlying the
estimation of market value are those related to: the receipt of contractual
rentals; expected future market rentals; void periods; maintenance
requirements; and observed market yields.
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2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments in
applying accounting policy (Continued)

2.3 Estimate of fair value of investment properties (Continued)

In addition, the valuations are also assessed by reference to comparable
market transactions as reported in the relevant market at similar locations.
Appropriate adjustments have been made on the values of the subject
properties for relevant factors, such as location difference, building age,
time of transaction, shop frontage and pedestrian flow, etc.

Changes in the assumptions used in the valuation would affect the fair
value of investment properties.

2.4 Income tax

There are certain transactions and activities for which the ultimate tax
destination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially estimated, such difference will impact the current income tax and
deferred income tax in the period during which such a determination is
made.

The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future.

In cases where the actual future taxable profits generated are less or more
than expected, or change in facts and circumstances which result in
revision of future taxable profits estimation, a material reversal or further
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.
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2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments in
applying accounting policy (Continued)

2.5 Ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance
contracts

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under
insurance contracts is one of the Group's critical accounting estimates.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of loss
events that have been incurred but not reported ("IBNR") to the Group
at the end of the reporting period. The estimation of IBNR claims is
generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of
the cost of settling claims already notified to the Group, where
information about the claim events is available. IBNR claims may not be
apparent to the insured until many years after the event that gives rise to
the claim has happened.

Estimation of the ultimate cost of certain liability claims can be a
complex process. There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be
considered in the estimating of the liability that the Group will ultimately
pay for such claims. In particular, the claims arising from the employees’
compensation and other liability policies can be longer in tail and
difficult to estimate. The Group has appointed an independent actuary to
estimate the claim liabilities using established actuarial methodologies.
The methodologies are statistical in nature and can be affected by various
factors. The more significant factors that can affect the reliability of the
liability estimation include jurisprudence that can broaden the intent and
scope coverage of the protections offered in the insurance contracts
issued by the Group, the extent to which actual claim results differ from
historical experience and the time lag between the occurrence of the
event and the report of such claim to the Group.

2.6 Staff retirement scheme

Actuarial assumptions are made in valuing future pension obligations as
set out in Note 15. There is uncertainty that these assumptions will hold
true in the future. They are reviewed periodically and are updated where
necessary.
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3 Bank Level Statement of Financial Position

—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
Bl BETIT AT T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
BEFERE -~ FEFER K Cash, balances and placements with
=52 and loans and advances to banks 84,461,050 65,579,411
TR T B Derivative financial instruments 1,620,404 588,286
J\/\Ilzfs ﬁuff/\?g SHE> Financial assets at fair value through
ERE profit or loss 4,015,204 6,401,863
*”%?““’”\ Investments in securities 81,863,665 71,301,044
B HATRRETE Advances and other accounts 197,019,986 187,555,735
Fft & 2\ =) 1 s Interests in subsidiaries 22 579,203 923,147
/\Hﬁﬁﬁﬂgﬁﬁffﬂ = Interests in jointly controlled entities 22,000 22,000
i /N Interests in associates 1,236,600 1,236,600
- CYIE S Investment properties 2,886,690 3,227,950
HE ks Interests in leasehold land 109,546 112,776
ﬁﬁﬂ%%)jﬁ 5 Other properties and equipment 1,630,731 1,466,316
EIEDE Tax recoverable 804 783
PR IEFRIEA & FE Deferred tax assets 46,652 27,247
4B Total assets 375,492,535 338,443,158
=Vt Liabilities
[ ZETEK Deposits and balances from banks 39,874,412 27,238,432
THEE TN &E Trading liabilities 154,331 309,136
?ﬁéﬁ%ﬂiﬁ Derivative financial instruments 1,284,107 393,553
ZR{FER Deposits from customers 271,692,576 244,711,860
éf‘fﬁZﬁT’){J“ Certificates of deposit issued 7,454,237 3,725,259
BT 1B ETE Subordinated debts issued 3,097,196 3,110,591
wHAFR IE Current taxation 673,330 673,054
EAEFRIAE & (& Deferred tax liabilities 27,931 27,620
H A RETE & ETE Other accounts and accruals 5,220,305 14,261,581
EN=T Total liabilities 329,478,425 294,451,086
s Equity
RN Share capital 1,160,951 1,160,951
fE Reserves 33 37,278,586 35,122,760
Total equity attributable to
i N A TR A s e shareholders of the Bank 38,439,537 36,283,711
BoMELS T B Additional equity instruments 7,574,573 7,708,361
IS AEH Total equity 46,014,110 43,992,072
R 45 S B (B AR Total equity and liabilities 375,492,535 338,443,158

KENR O —FE=H+/\HhESE G EME RIS

i o March 2021.
RHG HEE ZHU Qi
pivig B EFR TR HONG Bo
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4 Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of
some degree of risk or combination of risks. The Group recognises that
taking risk is core to its financial business and the operational risks are an
inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group has established policies and procedures for the identification,
measurement, control and monitoring of the inherent risk of the
operations. The most important risks are credit risk, market risk, liquidity
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risks. The adequacy and effectiveness of risk
management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed by the
Management Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Management
Committee”). The Internal Audit Department also performs regular audits
to ensure compliance with policies and procedures.

4.1 Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that an
obligor (including guarantor) or a counterparty will cause a financial loss
for the Group by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit exposures arise
principally from loans and advances, debt securities, derivative financial
instruments, treasury bills, and other on-balance sheet exposures to
counterparties in the Group’s asset portfolio. There is also credit risk in
off-balance sheet financial arrangements such as loan commitments.
Significant changes in the economy, or in the health of a particular
industry segment, could result in losses that are different from those
provided for at the end of the reporting period.

The Group has established credit policies that govern credit extension
criteria, credit approval, review and monitoring processes, the internal
credit rating system and impairment assessment processes. The Group’s
credit policies which are centralised in Credit Management Department
and Integrated Risk Management Department have to be approved by the
Management Committee and Board of Directors. The Group’s credit risk
control is centralised in Credit Management Department which reports to
the Credit Committee, Executive Credit Committee and Management
Committee regularly. The Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility
for the effectiveness of credit risk management processes.

(a) Credit risk measurement
(i) Loans and advances

In assessing credit risk of loans and advances to customers and to banks
and other counterparties, effective systems are adopted for measurement
and monitoring of the credit risk as part of the credit assessment process.
The Group’s credit grading system, which in general, takes into account
the underlying credit-worthiness of the counterparties, including the
financial strengths of the guarantors (as the case may be), collateral
pledged and the risk of specific transactions, allows differentiation and
management of credit risk for asset portfolios of respective business
units.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(a) Credit risk measurement (Continued)
(ii) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities, external ratings from recognised external credit
assessment institutions are used for assessing and managing credit risk
exposures. The investments in these securities allow the Group to achieve
an appropriate level of returns commensurate with the risks and to
maintain a readily available source of funding at the same time.

(iii) Credit related commitments

The Group has issued credit related commitments including guarantees
and letters of credit. The primary purpose of these instruments is to
ensure that funds are available to a customer as required. These
instruments represent irrevocable assurances that the Group will make
payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third
parties. These instruments carry similar level of the same credit risk as
loans.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorised
facility limits in the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With
respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Group is
potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused
commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total
unused commitments, as most commitments to extend credit are
contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The
Group monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because
longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk
than shorter-term commitments.

(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group manages and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever
they are identified, in particular, to individual counterparties and groups,
and to industries and countries.

To avoid concentration risk, credit exposures to individual customers,
counterparties and industry sectors are carefully managed and monitored
by the use of limits. The Management Committee is responsible for the
portfolio management of risk concentrations. Approval authorities are
delegated to the Group’s Executive Credit Committee, Credit Committee
and other lending officers. The Executive Credit Committee is also
responsible for the review and approval of the largest credit exposure.
Actual credit exposures, including on- and off-balance sheet exposures,
limits and asset quality are regularly monitored and controlled by the
Credit Management Department by keeping a central liability record for
each group of related counterparties and are subject to checks by the
internal audit function.

The exposure to any one borrower including banks is further restricted by
sub-limits covering on- and off-balance sheet exposures, and daily
delivery risk limits in relation to trading items such as forward foreign
exchange contracts. Actual exposures against limits are monitored daily.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

Some specific control and risk mitigation measures are outlined below:

(i) Collateral

The Group seeks to obtain collateral to mitigate credit risk to an
acceptable level. All credit decisions, whether or not secured by
collateral, are based on counterparties’ repayment capacity. The Group
implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of
collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal types of collateral in
credit risk mitigation include:

- Mortgages over residential properties and other properties;

- Charges over business assets such as cash deposits, premises,
machineries, inventory and accounts receivable; and

- Charges over financial instruments such as equities, debt securities
and life insurance policies.

At 31 December 2020, the lower of gross loan amount and the
estimated fair value of the collateral and other credit enhancements
held against it amounted to HK$77,488,959,000 (2019:
HK$73,313,125,000).

At 31 December 2020, the lower of gross credit-impaired loan amount
and the estimated fair value of the collateral and other credit
enhancements held against it amounted to HK$93,113,000 (2019:
HK$143,497,000).

The Group has established policies to govern the determination of
eligibility of assets taken as collateral for credit risk mitigation. In
order for an asset to be considered as effective risk mitigation, the
market value of the asset should be readily determinable or can be
reasonably established. The asset is marketable and there exists a
readily available secondary market for disposal of the asset. In
addition, the Group is able to secure control over the asset if
necessary. The collateral is revalued periodically ranging from daily to
annually, depending on the type of collateral. As for those past due
exposures, the main types of collateral held are cash deposits and
properties.

(if) Master netting agreements

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering
into master netting arrangements with counterparties with which it
undertakes a significant volume of transactions. Master netting
arrangements do not generally result in an offset of the assets and
liabilities in the statement of financial position, as transactions are
usually settled on a gross basis. However, the credit risk associated
with favourable contracts is reduced by a master netting arrangement
to the extent that if an event of default occurs, all amounts with the
counterparty are terminated and settled on a net basis.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(iii) Derivatives

The principal derivatives used by the Group are interest and foreign
exchange rate related contracts, which are primarily over-the-counter
derivatives. Most of the Group’s derivative positions have been
entered into to meet customer demand and to hedge these and other
trading positions. The Management Committee places trading limits
on the level of exposure that can be taken in relation to both overnight
and intra-day market positions. With the exception of specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures associated
with these derivatives are normally offset by entering into
counterbalancing positions, thereby controlling the variability in the
net cash amounts required to liquidate market positions. Given the
purpose for entering into such derivative transaction, collateral or
other security is not usually obtained for credit risk exposures on these
instruments, except where the Group requires margin deposits from
counterparties.

Under the terms of the Group’s current collateral obligations under
derivative contracts, it is estimated the Group would not be required to
post additional collateral in the event of one or two notch downgrade in
the Group’s credit rating based on the positions as at 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).

(c) Impairment allowance policies

ECL for assets are calculated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate. The calculation of ECL takes into account
the stages, the cash flow types and other risk parameters to make it an
unbiased and probability weighted average by evaluating a range of
possible  outcomes incorporating  forecasted macroeconomic
conditions.

The Group defines the impairment assessment rules by segment to
estimate future cash flows individually or by the Rule-based Approach.

Assets are divided into several segment, including Corporate,
Non-Mortgage Retail, Credit Card, Mortgage Loans, Bank, Sovereign
and Specialised Lending. Each segment would have their risk
parameters (i.e. probability of default “PD”, loss given default “LGD”,
expected drawdown, prepayment and period of exposure).

The ECL for non-retail segment at Stage 3 and the ECL for retail
segment with exposure at default not less than HK$ 50 million at Stage
3 are determined on an individual basis using a discounted cashflow
methodology. The expected future cash flows are based on the credit
risk estimates as at the reporting date, reflecting reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of future recoveries and
expected future receipts of interest. Collateral is taken into account if it
is likely that the recovery of the outstanding amount will include
realisation of collateral based on its estimated fair value of collateral at
the time of expected realisation, less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral. The cashflows are discounted at a reasonable approximation
of the effective interest rate.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(c) Impairment allowance policies (Continued)

Ho At oy B0 R e B BRIy 7 A B AS Other segments would be assessed by Rule-based Approach by
HEAEERESYEMSHNENE & RE computing the present value of difference between the contractual cash
RNEHFEIHHIWERWN AR S RN EEHITHR flow due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
B - B AN FaEss > THE(E S LB DL flows that the Group expects to receive. Except individual card
MEREETE @ AR5 THRE & segment, ECL would be calculated in account level, while accounts
4% 8 LAY B B R B0 (BD & AT B 4R - TR 4A B under individual card segment would be grouped based on similar risk
- wmEARE) T - BB ERAMFEE characteristic (i.e. current rating, original rating, day past due). Both
SR EEBFARIFHE BITHE - BHR the contractual cash flow and expected cash flow would be discounted
HEFEHR SR > B HELYSR AR by effective interest rate to present value. For each expected cash flow,
WA 8 S R E &Y R [ K IE - the probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default
would be assessed.

EEoE=HBEUNLBFEHEEERZL - Assets are classified into three Stages to reflect the expected credit
{8 P B 0y BB E M 2R B AEK loss. Impairment allowance of each stage is calculated based on the
EABRAERMELYE G RIENFEESSTEHE - product of probability of default, loss given default and exposure at
EEE T EYBrESEE > REEBK H KK default. The Group will account for expected credit losses within the
+ZEANNTEIEEELET AE —E next 12 months as Stage 1 when those financial instruments are first
By W HEWBEMHNREERGEE BB KIS recognised; and to recognise full lifetime expected credit losses as
EHAEE s BEHLHHHEEELAEIN ASE Stage 2 when there have been significant increases in credit risk since
T R EZEESER 1 H initial recognition. Full lifetime expected credit losses will also be
2HFHEEBRLERE hEZEE - HIE recognised as Stage 3 if objective evidence of impairment occurred and
=1 A1) SR F0 R A B SR = PR BR < Rl R YR interest accrual will then be net of the impairment amount of
H&% - associated Stage 3 financial assets.
EEREAE LN E _BEEE/AEY Significant increases in credit risk for Stage 2 assets is determined by
o EEREFS - PIRMERBE B R segment, credit risk ratings, date of initial recognition, delinquency and
K A5 B & E S E credit asset classification.
TRINIEAEB N EETFRAEFEEE The table below shows the relationship between the Group’s internal
4 B 2 R HY R A% - credit rating and credit asset classification.
WS & BE &R & & & & 4l
Internal credit rating Credit asset classification
& Bl 1-23 &g
Grades 1-23 Pass
&l 24 BERE
Grade 24 Special Mention
& Al 25 R &)
Grade 25 Substandard
& i1 26 e ict
Grade 26 Doubtful
Al 27 &5 18
Grade 27 Loss

e, EEEBAHAAREITENRE T “Pass” represents credit assets where the obligor is current in meeting
WEEEE FAR2BEEBENERAEDN its repayment obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is
- RN R = not in doubt.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(c) Impairment allowance policies (Continued)

Pt | 245 {E N CIE B IR EE oo | “Special Mention” represents credit assets where the obligor is
BERL B R EEHM A z5 o TR THHE H IR experiencing difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position.
mEEELE S BUAFEBELRFESE > Ao fsgEH Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could occur if adverse
W &ER - conditions persist.

PR, BEEBANEHRHEME > 2 “Substandard” represents credit assets where the obligor displays a
RO ETEERNEEEE - definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

FPEM ) BEARNKITRESEULE > AL “Doubtful” represents credit assets where collection in full is
FAOEEIE A LAY o] S FE & FE s & K improbable and the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or
FREH/KMEBENEEERE - interest, taking into account the net realisable value of the collateral.

B S HEmAFAES KA T E%B(W “Loss” represents credit assets which are considered uncollectible after
SERMAS BB EEFRAE) AL all collection options (such as the realisation of collateral or the
AU E N EEEE - institution of legal proceedings) have been exhausted.

S EE oy EC ey A EH AT The decision rules for stage allocation are as follows:
P B P TE FH A
Stage Decision Rules
F B HARERMIEMRENHIKRE 5 =X
ERAERNpEE A
& HUE’JVSI%FE SEAR R T RTZ M 5 B
ERIAMEEEFRNSE2I M H B W AR LR N ED R34
# H R R 30H
Stage 1 New accounts with Special Mention status; or
Credit asset classification is Pass; and
Current internal credit rating is between 1 to 7; or
Current internal credit rating is between 8 to 23 with less than 3 notches downgrade since origination; and
Less than 30 days past due
PR R ié?ﬂﬂ’]?@ﬁfﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ' E19
ERIANEE SRR 8 E 232 H H W A MR LLAR T R34 B LA | 5 B
Lﬂ;ﬁfﬁwi%ﬁ 5
EEEESN THEEFHERME
Stage 2 Current internal credit rating is 24; or
Current internal credit rating is between 8 to 23 with 3 or more notches downgrade since origination; or
30 to 90 days past due; or
Credit asset classification is downgraded to Special Mention
FEMEE ERINEE ERFRR 2SR 2T 5 B
wHE R E B0 B
BEEEESRA THEERY - RwEEE
Stage 3 Current internal credit rating is between 25 to 27; or

More than 90 days past due; or
Credit asset classification is downgraded to Substandard, Doubtful or Loss
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4 SRIEEEE (&) 4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 EEREB (&) 4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(C) JEEFHKF (48) (c) Impairment allowance policies (Continued)

MBS FiE > AEBHZTITT — &% EHA Based on statistical approaches, the Group has came up with a series of
2 B PN BB 4 R R HE T L R Y macroecgnomic factors that exhibit significant correlation with _ the
o 4 4 3[R o 7 £2 ] F| F 3 b 0 1 4 Group's mte_rnal qefault rates and collate_ral value. The Group Qes_lg_ns
é%ﬁ N ;: % f rzi g zé E ;gﬁ N ;5; fi \%D ’;,'3 three scenarios with these macroeconomic factors, namely optimistic,
P 3= P iy z Lo e e o i base and pessimistic. The Risk Management Committee members put
B - 5’:} EHZAGRARZE Ef‘j o] e P forth their most holistic view on the likelihood of occurrence, enabling
R T 2w A B o A 5 B AR A E A4 the Group to generate forecasts of macroeconomic factors and the
S 70 AR R R & A TE I B AT BE MR R Y E AR forward-looking PD and LGD. These forward-looking PD and LGD
RAGELYELER - SIEiEMEBYRARR are then used as input parameters in the expected credit loss model.

i 2998 % % 44 P 1% T 0 £ 5 4R 2% B0 1
A2 -
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

enhancements

(d) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held

or other credit

Z0OZ=0O ZO—N
2020 2019
BETIT AT
HKS$°000 HK$’000
Balances and placements with and loans

EEZE35@5a =14 and advances to banks 84,461,545 65,173,679
ST E Derivative financial instruments 1,620,404 588,286

DI EESEAERIES Financial assets at fair value through
LREEE profit or loss 4,091,000 6,381,163
SBAE Investment in securities 81,660,265 71,005,131
B HAMETE Advances and other accounts 194,353,197 186,531,994
(S EHIE Credit commitments 42,909,827 39,704,324
409,096,238 369,384,577

() ENEHE Y BHEERE FEZ
L EH T A TR

() HEIAI/ 7= YAEE

applied

(i) Gross carrying/notional amount

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9 are

124 E B E=MEE =1
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
HRETIT HEETIT AT T BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Q@2 2020
Balances and placements with
and loans and advances to
[EIFEFR &K banks
- RS ATIRE GERE1T7) - at amortised cost (Note 17) 80,607,952 - - 80,607,952
- DIAEEERS A M AT - at fair value through other
ety comprehensive income* 3,904,416 - - 3,904,416
(EvEgtes Debt securities
- FERSNACAYINE GEFE 20) - at amortised cost (Note 20) 1,719,990 - 172,419 1,892,409
- DIANEEESEEAEM 2R - at fair value through other
Uz comprehensive income* 79,951,072 - 738,732 80,689,804
B EHAMARTE Advances and other accounts
- VRS R EE - at amortised cost” 170,444,206 17,282,952 1,034,244 188,761,402
- I EESE A ZEM ST - at fair value through other
s * comprehensive income** 6,862,651 - 14,305 6,876,956
Loan commitments and
EHORE B SRE R a4 financial guarantee contracts” 9,847,730 791,715 2,192 10,641,637
353,338,017 18,074,667 1,961,892 373,374,576
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Gross carrying/notional amount (Continued)

FbEE FPEE

FEEPEEE

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9 are
applied (Continued)

PAN

=gy
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BTT BT BETRT BT
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—O—HsE 2019
Balances and placements with
and loans and advances to
[FISEFIRU &K banks
- FRERSNACARTIE GERE 17) - at amortised cost (Note 17) 64,055,004 - - 64,055,004
- DI EESEAEM 2T - at fair value through other
Uz * comprehensive income* 1,120,892 - - 1,120,892
(Ve e Debt securities
- FRERSNACARTIE GERE 20) - at amortised cost (Note 20) 719,389 - 173,188 892,577
- DI EEREAEM 2T - at fair value through other
g% comprehensive income* 70,262,123 - 742,025 71,004,148
EER R H A METE Advances and other accounts
- RSN AR AT HE - at amortised cost” 168,481,059 8,083,595 1,020,748 177,585,402
- DI EESEAEM 2T - at fair value through other
gatid comprehensive income** 8,860,385 - 8,860,385
Loan commitments and
EEORH e Resy? financial guarantee contracts” 10,565,876 166,956 62,189 10,795,021
324,064,728 8,250,551 1,998,150 334,313,429

*OBLIEHEE T o MR A AR R R BE T (T RC(E

NP EENEEREN M EE#
5= D NS B v R o2 e e | PN O

BWHEANE -

AW R EETERM G REENE 9

SRREMR ENEH > HILHEM B R
21 R 35 AR 4B ERAE -
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For the purposes of this disclosure, the gross carrying amounts
represent the amortised cost of financial assets, before adjusting
for any impairment allowances and changes in fair value, and
therefore may not agree with those shown in notes to the

financial statements.

The amounts represent those items that are subject to
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9 and therefore do not
agree with those shown in Notes 21 and 35 to the financial

statements.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment

WEE (4B) requirements of HKFRS 9 are applied (Continued)
(1) JFAEHEM (ii) Impairment allowances
FE—FEE EMEE E=EER =t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
—O—OfF 2020
Balances and placements with
and loans and advances to
AR IR SR banks
- FRERSNACARTIE GERE 17) - at amortised cost (Note 17) (7,378) - - (7,378)
- DI EESEAEM 2T - at fair value through other
gy comprehensive income” (273) - - (273)
(vt Debt securities
- FRERSNAVARTIE GERE 20) - at amortised cost (Note 20) (2,725) - (163,990) (166,715)
- DI EESEAEM 2T - at fair value through other
gy comprehensive income” (64,118) - (738,732) (802,850)
R HAHRTE Advances and other accounts
- PRERSNAVASIE GERE21) - at amortised cost (Note 21) (375,652) (138,324) (816,409)  (1,330,385)
- I EESE A ZEM 2 - at fair value through other
gy comprehensive income” (3,083) - (14,206) (17,289)
Loan commitments and
EEOREE N ESREREEY financial guarantee contracts
CGIEE 31) (Note 31) (23,265) (6,547) (1,764) (31,576)
(476,494)  (144871)  (1,735,101)  (2,356,466)
—O—N4E 2019
Balances and placements with
and loans and advances to
[FISEFIRU &K banks
- RS ATIRE GERE17) - at amortised cost (Note 17) (2,217) - - (2,217)
- DN EESEAEM SR - at fair value through other
ea comprehensive income” (133) - - (133)
B Debt securities
- RS ATIRE GERE 20) - at amortised cost (Note 20) (1,315) - (165,407) (166,722)
- DN EESEAEM 2R - at fair value through other
ea comprehensive income” (13,399) - (742,840) (756,239)
EE H A METE Advances and other accounts
- FRMESSRYABINE GERE21) - at amortised cost (Note 21) (158,466) (72,076) (887,295)  (1,117,837)
- I EESE A ZEM ST - at fair value through other
erl comprehensive income” (822) - - (822)
Loan commitments and
K NS REREEY financial guarantee contracts
GERE 31 (Note 31) (15,424) 4,742) (31,774) (51,940)
(191,776) (76,818) (1,827.316)  (2,095,910)

N REFEEMEELEM BRI RANLLL P E
1B H1 IR - HC R 1B 8 0 BB i < @l 2 G A
HESRIM A EH R EFEENREE

56

These financial assets are measured at fair value on the statement
of financial position. The corresponding impairment allowances
are recognised in financial asset revaluation reserve without
reducing the carrying amounts of these assets.
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4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

are applied (Continued)

during the year

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9

(i) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment allowances

- Balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks at amortised

&K cost
FEESRE EERE
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
|12 BREE PR B
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
HETHIGEAR HETHIGEAR HRTHISEAR HETHI SR
Gross  JB{EEME Gross  JR{EMEH Gross  JR{EMEH Gross JRE R
carrying Impairment carrying Impairment carrying Impairment carrying Impairment
amount  allowances es es allowances
BT BT BT AT BT AT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
R=O=0Of—B—H At 1 January 2020 64,055,004 2,217) - 64,055,004 2,217)
P EE T - Transfers between Stages:
- AP - Transfers from Stage 1 - R
- FHE P ER - Transfers from Stage 2 - -
- A =P - Transfers from Stage 3 - -
(SEE T Changes in credit risk 211 - - 21m
Net assets recognised/
FAERERR/(HE L FERD) (derecognised) 15,482,516 705 - 15,482,516 705
Changes in models/risk
AR 2 D) parameters (6,077) - - (6,077
B 2% Exchange difference 1,070,432 - 1,070,432
KO- OF+"H=+—H At31 December 2020 80,607,952 (7,378) - 80,607,952 (7,378)
AU RS TR Net charge to income statement
(CREUEUEIEMERIRE) (excluding recoveries) (5,161) (5,161)
Y EIE BRI Recoveries
Net charge to income statement
s TR GERE 12) (Note 12) (5,161) (5,161)
HZO—fuE—H—H At 1 January 2019 69,575,202 (31,648) - 69,575,202 (31,648)
[ ERFisT s Transfers between Stages:
- HE P R - Transfers from Stage 1 - -
- HHE P - Transfers from Stage 2 - -
- HHEE =P R - Transfers from Stage 3 _ ~
EEEFRET) Changes in credit risk 19,401 - - 19,401
Net assets recognised/
TR RS (SR I HERD) (derecognised) (5,500,387) 8,758 - (5,500,387) 8,758
R R S BT, Changes in models/risk parameters 1,272 - - 1272
[R5 Exchange difference (19,811) - (19,811)
WZO—JUFEF+H=+—H At31 December 2019 64,055,004 (2,217) - 64,055,004 (2,217)
AU g P2 ] Net reversal to income statement
(R EFEEl AR ETE) (excluding recoveries) 29,431 29,431
Y [ElE MR AR T Recoveries
Net reversal to income statement
AR TR GERE 12) (Note 12) 29,431 29,431
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9
are applied (Continued)

(i) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment allowances
during the year (Continued)

- Debt securities at amortised cost

FHERRE fERRE
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
F—RE SRR BB at
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
HETHIGEAR HETHIGEAR HRTHISEAR HETEI R
Gross  JB{EEME Gross  JR{EMEH Gross  JR{EMEH Gross JRE R
carrying Impairment carrying Impairment carrying Impairment carrying Impairment
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances amount allowances
BT EETT BT BT BT BT EETT AT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R=O—O%—FR—H At 1 January 2020
[oFS A P Transfers between Stages: 719,389 (1,315) 173,188 (165,407) 892,577 (166,722)
- FHE PR ER - Transfers from Stage 1 - - - - - R
- EHEE P R - Transfers from Stage 2 - -
- RS =P P - Transfers from Stage 3 - -
{5 SR\ ) Changes in credit risk 1,252 - 919 - 2,171
Net assets recognised/
R EERESR(H R (derecognised) 992,991 (354) - 992,991 (354)
Changes in models/risk
TEAY/ ) parameters (2,308) - - (2,308)
BEHTE R Amortisation of discount/premium 1,180 - - 1,180
Unwind of discount on
ek (R TR (B [T impairment allowances
(FERES) (Note 5) - - 498 - 498
B 7=%E Exchange difference 6,430 (769) 5,661
KO- OF+H=+—H At31 December 2020 1,719,990 (2,725) 172,419 (163,990) 1,892,409 (166,715)
Net (charge)/reversal to income
AU RSP (B )/ ] statement (excluding
(R EFEUR BT MR AR TE) recoveries) (1,410) 919 “91)
W R AR T Recoveries R R
AU ZE 22T (s ) /5[] Net (charge)/reversal to income
GI#E 12) statement (Note 12) (1,410) 919 (491)
HZO—fE—HA—H At 1 January 2019 624,271 (864) 197,624 (141,540) 821,895 (142,404)
oS X Pl Transfers between Stages:
- EHEE R P - Transfers from Stage 1 - -
- EHEE PR - Transfers from Stage 2 - -
- HHEE =P P - Transfers from Stage 3 - -
EEEl s Changes in credit risk 397 - (34,109) - (33,712)
Net assets recognised/
TR REERERD (derecognised) 102,367 92) (23,424), 8,512 78,943 8,420
A/ i £ Changes in models/risk parameters (756) - - - (756)
PR TS Amortisation of discount/premium (342) - - (342) -
Unwind of discount on
R A ST ER ([ impairment allowances
(GEFE 5) (Note 5) - - 1,730 - 1,730
B 725 Exchange difference (6,907) (1,012) - (7,919) -
MoO—N4E+"H=+—H At31 December 2019 719,389 (1,315) 173,188 (165,407) 892,577 (166,722)
AU g T Net charge to income statement
(R EFEEl AR ETE) (excluding recoveries) (451) (25,597) (26,048)
Ule EERRETE Recoveries - 4,167 4,167
AU SR Net charge to income statement
EFE 12) (Note 12) (451 (21,430 (21,881)
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9
are applied (Continued)

(iii) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment allowances
during the year (Continued)

- Advances and other accounts at amortised cost

HRIH
FHEERE EERE
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
F—RE SEbBE BB =1
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
SRS SRS SRS SRR
Gross  JBUEXEHS Gross  JR{EMEH Gross  JR{EMEH Gross RS
carrying Impairment carrying Impairment carrying Impairment carrying Impairment
amount  allowances 1l es 1l es amount allowances
BT EETT BETT  E¥TT BT BT EETT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
R-ZO—O%—B—H At 1 January 2020 168,481,059 (158,466) 8,083,595 (72,076) 1,020,748 (887,295) 177,585,402 (1,117,837)
P EE T - Transfers between Stages:
- AP - Transfers from Stage 1 (6,536,019) 5,901 6,133,937 (5,429) 402,082 “7n) -
- HHEE P - Transfers from Stage 2 1,993,546 (13,460) (2,025,023) 13,583 31,477 (123) -
- HE =R - Transfers from Stage 3 3,447 (45) (3,447) 45 )
{5 SR\ ) Changes in credit risk 55,981 (6,116) - (124,250) - (74,385)
Net assets recognised/
SR (KR I HER (derecognised) 4,562,074 928 4,861,349 (6,158) (225,660), (11,730) 9,197,763 (16,960)
Changes in models/risk
FRA b 2 B E) parameters (266,491) (62,128) - (8,586) - (337,205)
IR Amounts written off (211,020) 211,020 (211,020) 211,020
Unwind of discount on
TR E HE T B (B [ impairment allowances
(GEHE 5) (Note 5) - 4,982 - 4,982
FE 2% Exchange difference 1,940,099 229,094 20,064 2,189,257
RO OF+H=+—H At31 December 2020 170,444,206 (375,652) 17,282,952 (138,324) 1,034,244 (816,409) 188,761,402 (1,330,385)
S 2 TR Net charge to income statement
(R R E R IETE) (excluding recoveries) (209,582) (74,402) (144,566) (428,550)
W EIE BRI Recoveries 37,247 37,247
AU ST R Net charge to income statement
(GERE 12) (Note 12) (209,582) (74,402) (107,319) (391,303)
MZO—E—H—H At 1 January 2019 148,136,606 (122,171) 7,093,751 (55,691) 917,516 (550,701) 156,147,873 (728,563)
oS X Pl Transfers between Stages:
- HISE— PR R - Transfers from Stage 1 (2,971,222) 5,997 2,813,990 (5,365) 157,232 (632) -
- FHEE P P - Transfers from Stage 2 2,753,283 (9,467) (2,768,952) 12,460 15,669 (2,993) -
- = - Transfers from Stage 3 3,222 (93) 181 2) (3,403) 95 -
(EEE R EE) Changes in credit risk 13,709 (15,815) - (357,695) - (359,801)
Net assets recognised/
TRE NS/ (AX I EHESD) (derecognised) 21,173,367 (47,550) 964,556 (7,664) (53,794) 1,941 22,084,129 (53,273)
BT/ B Changes in models/risk parameters 1,109 1 - (2,637) - (1,527)
ERE Amounts written off (5,546) 5,546 (5,546) 5,546
Unwind of discount on
R A ST ER ([ impairment allowances
(515 5) (Note 5) - 19,781 - 19,781
B 2740 Exchange difference (614,197) (19,931) (6,926) (641,054)
W oO—UF+"H=+—H At31 December 2019 168,481,059 (158,466) 8,083,595 (72,076) 1,020,748 (887,295) 177,585,402 (1,117,837)
AU g T Net charge to income statement
(R EFEEl R ETE) (excluding recoveries) (32,732) (23,478) (358,391) (414,601)
WIET S R AR T Recoveries - 44,306 44,306
AU g T Net charge to income statement
(GEFE 12) (Note 12) (32,732) (23,478) (314,085) (370,295)
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9
are applied (Continued)

(iii) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment allowances
during the year (Continued)

- Debt securities and other financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

FEERRE fEERE
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
F—RE SEbBE BB aF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
HETHIGEAR HETHIGEAR HRTHISEAR R
Gross PR Gross TR Gross TR Gross b ikt
carrying Impairment carrying Impairment carrying Impairment carrying Impairment
amount  allowances 1l es 1l es amount allowances
BETT  EWTT BETT  E¥TT BT BT EETT AT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
R-O=Of—F—H At 1 January 2020 80,243,400 (14,354) 742,025 (742,840) 80,985,425 (757,194)
&2l =t Transfers between Stages:
- P - Transfers from Stage 1 (14,326) 14,326 -
- HEE PR R - Transfers from Stage 2 - _ _
- HHEE =P R - Transfers from Stage 3 - - - - -
(S E R Changes in credit risk 36,232 - (10,098) - 26,134
Net assets recognised/
R AR/ ($4 L RERD) (derecognised) 8,325,107 (32,101) 43 8,325,150 (32,101)
Changes in models/risk
parameters - (57,251) - - (57,251)
Amortisation of discount/premium 255,217 - - 255,217 -
Unwind of discount on
ek (R TR (B [T impairment allowances
(1R 5) (Note 5) - - -
PR 2% Exchange difference 1,908,741 3,357) 1,905,384
REZOZOF+"H=+—H At31 December 2020 90,718,139 (67,474) 753,037 (752,938) 91,471,176 (820,412)
U2 TR Net charge to income statement
(R EFEY E bR TE) (excluding recoveries) (53,120) (10,098) (63,218)
UrlEl EMERIEE Recoveries - - -
AU g e T Net charge to income statement
(3HR2 12) (Note 12) (53,120) (10,098) (63,218)
W_O—HE—~H—H At 1 January 2019 67,643,231 (17,557) 2,556,201 (42,287) 746,287 (580,975) 70,945,719 (640,819)
[P BT e Transfers between Stages:
- HE P R - Transfers from Stage 1 - -
- I s - Transfers from Stage 2 - -
- B =P - Transfers from Stage 3 - - _ ~ _
FEREZET) Changes in credit risk 12,306 - (165,989) - (153,683)
Net assets recognised/
(derecognised) 13,409,178 (1,488) (2,556,201) 42,287 - 10,852,977 40,799
£ Changes in models/risk parameters - (7,615) - - - - (7,615)
BT SR Amortisation of discount/premium 335,508 - - 335,508 -
Unwind of discount on
TR A TR (8 [ impairment allowances
(FEEE 5) (Note 5) - - 4,124 - 4,124
PR 725 Exchange difference (1,144,517) (4,262) - (1,148,779) -
REO—NHE+TH=+—H At31 December 2019 80,243,400 (14,354) 742,025 (742,840) 80,985,425 (757,194)
Net reversal/(charge) to income
UL ES TR B/ () statement (excluding
(R EFEEl R ETE) recoveries) 3,203 42,287 (165,989) (120,499)
W ER AR Recoveries - - - -
AU ZE 2 R ] /((FE ) Net reversal/(charge) to income
(GEFE 12) statement (Note 12) 3,203 42,287 (165,989) (120,499)
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are applied (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

during the year (Continued)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9

(i) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment allowances

- BEUKEE N SRt REay - Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
FEERRE fEERE
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
F—RE SEbBE BB =1
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
LR BEEE LHREE  RERE LHREE  RERE BEER BEREE
Notional Impairment Notional Impairment Notional Impairment Notional Impairment
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount allowances amount allowances
BETT  ARTT BETT  ABBTT BETT  ABBTT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
R-ZO—O%—B—H At 1 January 2020 10,565,876 (15,424) 166,956 (4,742) 62,189 (31,774) 10,795,021 (51,940)
&2l =t Transfers between Stages:
- HEE— s E - Transfers from Stage 1 (831,832) 6,685 830,075 (5,752) 1,757 (933) -
- HHEE P - Transfers from Stage 2 10,776 97 (10,776) 97 - -
- HEE =P - Transfers from Stage 3 80 (60) (80) 60 -
{5 SR b E) Changes in credit risk 19,751 9,100 - 30,551 - 59,402
Net assets recognised/
SFERETETN L TEST) (derecognised) 214,711 9,376) (406,203) (2,644) (128,776), 277 (320,268) (11,743)
Changes in models/risk
Y/ R 2 B Eh parameters (24,744) (2,606) - 55 - (27,295)
[E =48 Exchange difference (111,881) 211,663 67,102 166,884
PZOZOFE+ZH=+—H At31 December 2020 9,847,730 (23,265) 791,715 (6,547) 2,192 (1,764) 10,641,637 (31,576)
A ST S ()35 (e Net (charge)/reversal to income
(MmUY E R EETE) statement (excluding recoveries) (14,369) 3,850 30,883 20,364
W ETE BRI TH Recoveries
AT S ()3 (e Net (charge)/reversal to income
(GEFE 12) statement (Note 12) (14,369) 3,850 30,883 20,364
MZO—E—H—H At 1 January 2019 9,383,765 (12,906) 219,863 (6,084) 22,923 (15,960) 9,626,551 (34,950)
VS R g Transfers between Stages:
- P - Transfers from Stage 1 (70,261) 212 70,261 (212) - B
- HE PR - Transfers from Stage 2 62,665 (1,654) (62,665) 1,654 - -
- =P - Transfers from Stage 3 72 (72) -
(EEE ) Changes in credit risk 41,626 773 - 2,452 - 44,851
Net assets recognised/
SFE AT FESD) (derecognised) 1,283,125 (33,784) (65,103) 14 37,776 (18,266) 1,255,798 (52,036)
FEAY/ s 2 Changes in models/risk parameters (8,918) (887) - - (9,805)
VB 22240 Exchange difference (93,418) 4,528 1,562 (87,328)
RoO—E+F"H=-+—H At31 December 2019 10,565,876 (15,424) 166,956 (4,742) 62,189 (31,774) 10,795,021 (51,940)
AU g e T Net charge to income statement
(R EFEEl R ETE) (excluding recoveries) (1,076) (100) (15,814) (16,990)
WIETE MBRARTH Recoveries
Net charge to income statement
U F PR GERE 12) (Note 12) (1,076) (100) (15.814) (16,990)
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(f) Gross balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks by credit quality

The gross balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks are analysed by credit

BESAHTOT ¢ asset classification as follows:

o 724 &t
Stage _1 Total

BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$’000

—O0O=0O% 2020

B ATR At amortised cost

& 1 Pass 80,607,952 80,607,952

TERE Special Mention - .

R &R Substandard -

et Doubtful -

&5 18 Loss -

HE T 48 8H Gross carrying amount 80,607,952 80,607,952

UAREESARXMEE At fair value through other

s comprehensive income

& f& Pass 3,904,416 3,904,416

FEERE Special Mention - i,

R &R Substandard -

i Doubtful -

15 18 Loss _

JE T 4B %H Gross carrying amount 3,904,416 3,904,416

—O—h#& 2019

HES R ATR At amortised cost

GRS Pass 64,055,004 64,055,004

FRERE Special Mention -

K &R Substandard -

SR A Doubtful -

15 18 Loss _

S T 4R AE Gross carrying amount 64,055,004 64,055,004

MAREESEAEMEE At fair value through other

e comprehensive income

& Pass 1,120,892 1,120,892

EERRE Special Mention _

R 4R Substandard -

e Doubtful -

&5 18 Loss _

TR Gross carrying amount 1,120,892 1,120,892
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 EERRE @&

(o) EBFEHFHHEEEE

BN R AT RE R LN EESE A H M2 Uzs  The gross debt securities at amortised cost and at fair value through other

D NER S S R A S R ER ST - comprehensive income are analysed by credit asset classification as
follows:

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(g) Gross debt securities by credit quality

F— B PR E=FEE &t
Stage _1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT WM WM T
HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
—O=O% 2020
AT R At amortised cost
E & Pass 1,719,990 - - 1,719,990
TERE Special Mention - - - .
R &R Substandard - - - }
A Doubtful - - 21,262 21,262
&5 18 Loss - - 151,157 151,157
IR 454 Gross carrying amount 1,719,990 - 172,419 1,892,409
MUAEEESEARMEEHE At fair value through other
s comprehensive income
G Pass 79,951,072 - - 79,951,072
FEERE Special Mention - - - i,
K &R Substandard - - _ 3
R Doubtful - - _ .
185 15 Loss - - 738,732 738,732
W TR 44 %H Gross carrying amount 79,951,072 - 738,732 80,689,804
—O—Nn& 2019
B RAF R At amortised cost
&1 Pass 719,389 - - 719,389
TERE Special Mention - - - .
R4k Substandard - - - }
i Doubtful - - 21,357 21,357
k! Loss - - 151,831 151,831
S T 4R AE Gross carrying amount 719,389 - 173,188 892,577
AR EESEAEMEE At fair value through other
e comprehensive income
= Pass 70,262,123 - - 70,262,123
FERE Special Mention - - - -
K&K Substandard - - i B}
it Doubtful - - - -
&5 18 Loss - - 742,025 742,025
IR A48 H Gross carrying amount 70,262,123 - 742,025 71,004,148
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(g) Gross debt securities by credit quality (Continued)

The debt securities are analysed by external credit assessment institutions’ ratings as follows:

HEZ BPAROIFAT -
—0z=0 —O0—h
2020 2019
BT Sy VT
HK$°000 HK$°000
AA-ZF AAA AA-to AAA 26,390,057 41,361,195
A-ZE A+ A-to A+ 48,195,236 28,260,283
BBB-%# BBB+ BBB- to BBB+ 7,930,538 4,487,928
(&Y BBB- Lower than BBB- 463,773 23,897
AR Unrated 2,771,661 3,252,991
85,751,265 77,386,294

(h) B RAMATEHEIEHE
HFE

SRk EAMARIEREA L ER

(h) Gross advances and other accounts by credit quality

The gross advances and other accounts are analysed by credit asset classification as follows:

BESAI AT
SFEEE  ERRE E=FEEE =1
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT AT AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
—O=Of 2020
B RATIE At amortised cost
& Pass 170,444,206 17,048,565 - 187,492,771
EEERE Special Mention - 234,387 58,430 292,817
R &R Substandard - - 321,409 321,409
R Doubtful - - 91,481 91,481
kit Loss - - 562,924 562,924
W T 4B % Gross carrying amount 170,444,206 17,282,952 1,034,244 188,761,402
UAEEEZ A EMESE At fair value through other
gy comprehensive income
&g Pass 6,862,651 - - 6,862,651
BERE Special Mention - - - .
R &R Substandard - - - .
i Doubtful - - 14,305 14,305
&5 18 Loss B} . i _
HE T 45 BH Gross carrying amount 6,862,651 - 14,305 6,876,956
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(h) Gross advances and other accounts by credit quality (Continued)

%

FPEEL

FE=ISES

pas=

—nr
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
—O—h& 2019
R R ATIE At amortised cost
&% Pass 168,473,548 7,862,600 5,691 176,341,839
TEME Special Mention 7,511 220,995 18,383 246,889
&R Substandard - - 91,040 91,040
i Doubtful - - 150,140 150,140
&5 18 Loss - - 755,494 755,494
AR T 48 2 Gross carrying amount 168,481,059 8,083,595 1,020,748 177,585,402
DA EESEAREMEE At fair value through other
g comprehensive income
&% Pass 8,860,385 - - 8,860,385
BT Special Mention - - - -
R &R Substandard - - - -
e i Doubtful - - - -
K5 18 Loss . . . )
AR AT 4R R Gross carrying amount 8,860,385 - - 8,860,385
ZEEHSUT - The advances to customers are analysed as follows:
S 121 S 3214 B=FEEE (=1
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AETTT  E¥TT ARETIT BT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—OZ=0O#F 2020
I T 4E % Gross carrying amount 169,238,517 17,240,331 985,602 187,464,450
ERERE Impairment allowances (343,312) (138,187) (770,690) (1,252,189)
HETH{E Carrying amount 168,895,205 17,102,144 214912 186,212,261
~O—hsE 2019
AR TAT4AZH Gross carrying amount 165,377,641 8,073,152 969,117 174,419,910
JRAE Impairment allowances (154,794) (72,076) (887,295) (1,114,165)
HEHE{E Carrying amount 165,222,847 8,001,076 81,822 173,305,745
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BIOREE Fe sz R E IR & YR
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Gross loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts by credit quality

The gross loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts are analysed by credit asset
classification as follows:

‘F
E—TEE EIRE FE=FEEE =t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BEETT BT BT BT
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000
—OZ=0O% 2020
&% Pass 9,847,730 790,131 - 10,637,861
R E Special Mention - 1,584 - 1,584
=4 Substandard - - 2,192 2,192
i Doubtful - - - -
65 18 Loss - . ) )
HFREE Gross notional amount 9,847,730 791,715 2,192 10,641,637
—O—h&E 2019
s Pass 10,565,876 162,410 - 10,728,286
BT Special Mention - 4,546 - 4,546
R 4R Substandard - - 62,189 62,189
it Doubtful - - - -
&5 18 Loss . . ) )
AR Gross notional amount 10,565,876 166,956 62,189 10,795,021

() EEXTHEE

BHE_OZOF+ZH=*+
—HIEER - WEESAR
KRR 2R EE(CO—

FUEE © 4E)

(7)) Modified financial assets

There were no modified financial assets not derecognised for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil).
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(k) Repossessed assets

During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking

collateral held as security, as follows:

possession of

—0=0 —0O—JL
2020 2019
BT AT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
EEYZE Residential properties 20,100 -
HAf Others 1,700 -
21,800 -
= Q —“OFF+_H=+—H »AEHE> Asat 31 December 2020, the repossessed assets of the Group amounted
LIQIEI 5 Ry AW 21,800,000 JT(=O—JL  to HK$21,800,000 (2019: Nil).
o ,’ﬂ)
WEYESETITHE R FESEE > 7 Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable with the proceeds
Wi Kk TE R R DA R £ 7 45 R - used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.
4.2 HHEER 4.2 Market risk
RKEBEMFRXEKIETSERE > /J5IEHKR TS The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the
EiEH Mo Remm T E > A FEMEa far value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
KRR e EWENERE - TE A X% because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open
FEHHEEXR NG REE LEAFE A&  positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are
R 2 EREDE B — % );‘z fFI-} B2 miE8E  exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the
FhGERBEBMHAER - EREEEE  level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign
& SR i Y O 8 T R 2 o ZIK £ H ~ 5 E.  exchange rates and equity prices. The Group’s market risk primarily
by TEFE O RS HE HR REMITIE  arises from its positions in foreign exchange, securities and derivatives in
WNZANERE - FHETETE - its trading and banking books.
(a) BN E/E (a) Market risk measurement
EEHRETBEBRFESHERXSRELLE  The Group’s market risk exposures in different activities are managed by
K E N AR EE BN E e > 1 & B way of limits established by the Management Committee. Exposures are
B oo e /5L S 4 R EBE R A E B4  measured and monitored on the basis of contractual or notional amount
R EEWMEBRER - ERIEAHL S -~ and outstanding balances. Limits are set by portfolio, product and risk
Eam LR EE DS R B &L & type, using a combination of risk measurement techniques, including
AR SURER%E - EmEEMR%  position limits, sensitivity limits, VaR limits as well as stop loss limits.
IR MBI E - ME W2 K& E AT All market risk trading positions are monitored and managed by the
FHFEBEMAERMRXSHEHA - BILE  Treasury Department. Independent monitoring, checking, daily
2 fpd  BHETEMSHERMESAR S mark-to-market valuation and trade confirmation are undertaken by
HEMBITEFIET - MAEREZfE&E  departments independent of the Treasury Department. Regular checking
PN ERF T B e E » DIiE{RAEE  and reviews are also conducted by the Group’s internal audit function to
B EZBERERETRS - T ABMIE  ensure compliance with risk limits. All exceptions are reviewed and
S EHAMRMEBE S HEERE RS E  approved by the appropriate level of management and the Management
EoEZEAE FHHmESHEBEHZ  Committee. Regular reports are reviewed by the Risk Management
BEgEX - Committee.
AEBE I EFRE ) 2 B HEDLmEE{E The Group also applies a wide range of stress testing to assess the
7B R AR T S R B M AR &£ B i % Ik financial impact of more extreme events on the market risk exposure of
MZEE - BOHMR SR EEERHZ  the Group. The results of the stress testing are reviewed by the Risk
= e A Management Committee.
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4.2 WEEE (&)
(b) TGRS T
() &R

AEEZEWERE ETZFEIEEE - BHE
RITHEAE R G ESNER A -

RZOZOFE+ZHA=+—H WHETRE
JCAE [ E BB OBE R EE AT B/ Lot
0.64%(— O —JL4F * 0.64%) > f£ H At [N & F
8T AR E BRI R R R A S 5 /R
B 33,851,000 ST (= O — JLE ¢« B
29,815,000 jT) - 81 = O —JLAFEL# > KA EH
—OZOERBKEN ZEZERMEMN - £
RRANZRTTHEFEAMYM -

WH TR EITT LI H A & ¥ T B/ LTt
1% (ZO—JLF * 1%) » IEHMHEREZRET -
A E bR & R R R A B 8 R D
69,361,000 5T (= O — JL & + B ¥
64,487,000 jx) - Bl ~ O —fLAELLE - AEH
TOZOERMErEMEZERFRM N F
HRREEIIE (BRETIN) FFEFEA T
o e

(i) A b

AEFH A RREEIEZFEERNFANEE
E ABEAEEARAERRUINHBEERTER
AR EZRMSIE - EFRIEGZE
DIAVEESAERRZ GSMEER M A
B2 EAE - A5 R AR 3 5 &9 DU
TE S BB E K A A R

AZOZOF+_H=Z+—H > GIFERE
H EJF 100 B 7 (ZO — JL4 100 B 7)) > 7£
HMARAET - A% ZERRR & A
f 3t e /D B 61,817,000 TT(Z O — JLAF <
W 58,547,000 jv) > EFEH LA FEER AR
mIRZEMEBEERMRGYZ A VFHEEEMS
AT 5l 8 - A% B Y H A 4 U g R AE Bt R
g HE 528,010,000 JT(ZO — L - B
489,866,000 jT ) £ % [ & DL P (H EHEE
Hofth =t 2 Rl & AT Sl -

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)
(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis

(i) Currency risk

The Group’s currency risk positions mainly arise from foreign
exchange dealing, commercial banking operations and structural
foreign currency exposures.

At 31 December 2020, if HKD had weakened/strengthened within
the pegged range of 0.64% (2019: 0.64%) against USD with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit after taxation for
the year would have been HK$33,851,000 (2019:
HK$29,815,000) higher/lower. The impact on the Group’s profit
after taxation in 2020 was higher than that in 2019 due to the
increase of net USD positions.

If HKD had weakened/strengthened 1% (2019: 1%) against other
currencies except USD with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s profit after taxation for the year would have been
HK$69,361,000 (2019: HK$64,487,000) higher/lower. The
impact on the Group’s profit after taxation in 2020 was higher than
that in 2019 due to the increase of net foreign currencies (excluding
USD) positions.

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from the timing
differences in the repricing of interest bearing assets, liabilities and
off-balance sheet positions. Any changes in interest rates would
affect the value of those financial assets and liabilities carried at
fair value. The Group enters into interest rate swaps to mitigate the
interest rate risk associated with the fixed-rate financial assets and
financial liabilities.

At 31 December 2020, if interest rates at that date had been 100
basis points (2019: 100 basis points) higher with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit after taxation for the year would
have been HK$61,817,000 (2019: HK$58,547,000) lower,
mainly as a result of revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and interest rate contracts. The Group’s other
comprehensive income would have been HK$528,010,000
(2019: HK$489,866,000) lower due to the revaluation of those
financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)
(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, if interest rates at that date had been 100
basis points (2019: 100 basis points) lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit after taxation for the year would
have been HK$63,706,000 (2019: HK$61,204,000) higher,
mainly as a result of revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and interest rate contracts. The Group’s other
comprehensive income would have been HK$512,017,000
(2019: HK$476,621,000) higher due to the revaluation of those
financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The Group’s exposures to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
variable-rate financial assets and liabilities is insignificant.

(iii1) Equity risk

The Group’s equity risk position mainly arises from the holdings of
certain equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The majority of this
position is held for long term investment purposes.

At 31 December 2020, if the Global equity index at that date had
been 10% (2019:10%) lower/higher with all other variables held
constant and all the equity instruments had moved according to
their historical correlation with the index, the Group’s profit after
taxation for the year would have been HK$5,469,000 (2019:
HK$6,342,000) lower/higher, and the Group’s other comprehensive
income would have been HK$17,819,000 (2019: HK$36,206,000)
lower/higher. The lower impact on the Group’s profit after tax and
lower impact on other comprehensive income in 2020 compared
with 2019 was mainly attributable to the decrease in holdings of the
Group’s fair value through profit or loss portfolios and decrease in
fair value through other comprehensive income portfolios.

(iv) Daily distribution of market risk revenue

The average daily revenue in 2020 earned from market risk-related
activities by the Bank and certain subsidiaries, including
trading-related net interest income and other revenue was
HKS$1,746,000 (2019: HK$685,000). The standard deviation of
this daily revenue was HK$8,656,000 (2019: HK$8,027,000).
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4.2 WEEE (&) 4.2 Market risk (Continued)

(b) T E R E T (48) (b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (Continued)

(iv) EEEIEASTHSMHER (8) (iv) Daily distribution of market risk revenue (Continued)
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Daily distribution of market risk revenue for 2020

50
40

o o

S 30 —

5

g

E 20 —

P

£

Dj 10 | | | | | | |

3333222233332232523?
I EquADanyrevenue(,%wggggﬁwmmnnon)
O —JLENGERBUAE H o it

0 Daily distribution of market risk revenue for 2019
40

H# Number of days
N
o
i
]
|

10

(e}
9.0t0-8.0 [
8.0t0-7.0 [
-70t0-6.0 [
6.0t0-5.0 ]

6.0t07.0 1]
7.0t08.0 | ]
8.0t09.0 | ]

o © ©o o © © © © © o o o o
v o o o o £ £ g 2 2 g 8 A
= = = = o o o o o o o
S 2 g g 4 S 4 «d © < 0
H Uiz A Daily revenue (G&H4 & 7¢2+HKS Million)

70



AR KERTARAE

CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

M B HRRE R

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 SRIRREE §)

42 mHEERE &)
() B

RITHGIBERNEHETELSE
EE M BRI ERE - AEE

ShEEJE b £ R B LM E W 2N EEHE
KBREHBRRTEBZNEFER

b

EHZE G AN REHE AR §
EMRR M BITH Zff 8 RE - it % b
BHHBVENZEREZAEGREZ
SAERFEREETER > WLl 8
F9 %8 17 B 2% -

H & 53 5 1 E A4 2 A0 B R B (B 1
REFEZFEFRAANZEEEE) —
kg HMEF XS HT 5K S H
W AR BICHEE Z/NEER 9
FHRARREN R RSO F
1 FEE T B

THREMAAEEN A =+—
HZ NI R E by - AR B EE K
BEELERMFESBHIZEREESZ
- BEAMBRINZZEI)EZEMF
EHALEEATSEIHNEHERRZ
AT M TAENAREEHFHE -

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)
(c) Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.
The Group’s exposures mainly comprise foreign exchange dealing by the
Treasury Department and currency exposures originated by its
commercial banking businesses.

The Management Committee sets limits on the level of exposure by
currency and in total for both overnight and intra-day positions. All
exposures are centrally managed by the Treasury Department and
independently monitored by a separate department on a daily basis.

Foreign currency exposures arising from customer transactions, including
currency options embedded in certain customer deposits, are normally
offset against other customer transactions or transactions with the market.
Foreign currency funding used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets is hedged
using currency swaps or forward exchange contracts to mitigate the
foreign exchange risk.

The tables on the following pages summarise the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31 December. Included in the
tables are the Group’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency. The off-balance sheet gap represents the net
notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to manage the Group’s exposure to currency
movements.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)

(c) Currency risk (Continued)

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items

T =TT BT AR HA =5
HKD uUsb AUD RMB Others Total
AT AT BT BT AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
R=O=0O% At 31 December 2020
+=A=+—H
BE Assets
Cash, balances and placements
RIS - [FI2EE with and loans and advances
B to banks 36,199,703 29,032,746 761,139 17,205,945 2,017,477 85,217,010
Derivative financial
SR TH instruments 1,620,404 - - - - 1,620,404
LI EESEAER Financial assets at fair value
B> SRh&E through profit or loss 13,313 2,464,396 - 1,103,594 779,180 4,360,483
EREE Investments in securities 23,888,867 27,461,507 5,283,626 23,822,816 2,292,178 82,748,994
B EAMRRETE Advances and other accounts 106,590,839 49,967,357 287,345 36,783,305 3,879,525 197,508,371
HoAth e Other assets 4,725,828 84,266 - 3,713,031 48,433 8,571,558
YEARE Total assets 173,038,954 109,010,272 6,332,110 82,628,691 9,016,793 380,026,820
&8 Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
EIEZE=/4 banks 6,247,674 15,677,672 382 17,777,735 170,949 39,874,412
THIEE N &l Trading liabilities 154,331 - - - - 154,331
Derivative financial
TSR T AR instruments 1,284,107 - - - - 1,284,107
BEE#R Deposits from customers 136,502,844 58,028,456 8,244,759 58,734,075 8,611,724 270,121,858
ST AERES Certificates of deposit issued 499,350 6,954,887 - - - 7,454,237
1T 1B EETE Subordinated debts issued - 3,097,196 - - - 3,097,196
Hith& & Other liabilities 5,082,674 2,304,669 31,457 794,888 118,068 8,331,756
FEi =T Total liabilities 149,770,980 86,062,880 8,276,598 77,306,698 8,900,741 330,317,897
EEAEENTA74E  Net on-balance sheet position 23,267,974 22,947,392 (1,944,488) 5,321,993 116,052 49,708,923
B AERINER Off-balance sheet net notional
Bi5%E position 12,188,294 (16,613,058) 2,020,622 2,875,288 (82,819) 388,327
BEERE Credit commitments 25,894,477 7,906,924 - 8,859,915 248,511 42,909,827
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)

(c) Currency risk (Continued)

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items (Continued)

T =TT BT AR HA =5
HKD uUsb AUD RMB Others Total
AT AT BT BT AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
R=O—hseE At 31 December 2019
+Z-HA=+—H
BE Assets
Cash, balances and placements
RIS - [FI2EER with and loans and advances
B to banks 9,123,953 34,860,907 1,711,065 17,227,749 3,404,313 66,327,987
Derivative financial
SR TH instruments 588,286 - - - - 588,286
LI EESEAER Financial assets at fair value
MR SRbEE through profit or loss 3,944 3,847,395 109,259 1,883,425 892,698 6,736,721
EREE Investments in securities 42,655,195 17,370,847 4,249,618 6,190,580 1,664,407 72,130,647
B EAMRRETE Advances and other accounts 101,604,917 51,047,062 26,632 30,228,640 5,024,712 187,931,963
HAh Other assets 5,038,673 124,801 - 2,905,446 58,814 8,127,734
YEARE Total assets 159,014,968 107,251,012 6,096,574 58,435,840 11,044,944 341,843,338
s Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
EIEZE=/4 banks 4,514,398 7,792,927 13,203 14,707,283 210,621 27,238,432
THIEE N Al Trading liabilities - 309,136 - - - 309,136
Derivative financial
(st = instruments 393,553 - - - - 393,553
BEE#R Deposits from customers 132,852,356 55,558,813 7,400,285 40,203,506 7,120,983 243,135,943
T2 AFGEE Certificates of deposit issued 699,074 3,026,185 - - - 3,725,259
1T 1B EETE Subordinated debts issued - 3,110,591 - - - 3,110,591
Hith& & Other liabilities 15,137,844 1,382,684 31,869 560,189 74,701 17,187,287
FEi =T Total liabilities 153,597,225 71,180,336 7,445,357 55,470,978 7,406,305 295,100,201
EEAEENTA74E  Net on-balance sheet position 5,417,743 36,070,676 (1,348,783) 2,964,862 3,638,639 46,743,137
B AERINER Off-balance sheet net notional
B4 position 28,274,828 (30,491,599) 1,396,015 3,413,435 (2,341,146) 251,533
FERE Credit commitments 23,277,069 6,866,697 - 9,525,301 35,257 39,704,324
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)
(d) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates in respect of its fair value and cash flow
interest rate risks. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

Interest margin may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce
or create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. The Group
has established policies and systems to monitor its interest-sensitive
positions and net repricing gap to ensure that they are all properly
managed under the limits approved by the Management Committee.
Actual positions are compared with the approved limits and
independently monitored by a risk management department.

While the primary objective of interest rate risk management is to limit
potential adverse effects of interest rate movements on net interest
income, interest rate positions may be taken for yield enhancement within
the risk limits.

The tables on the following pages summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the Group’s assets and
liabilities at carrying amount categorised by the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity dates.
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()] 4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities - repricing analysis

PaRl
—fEA
FLT —@ALL ZEALE  —EME EEME  FHA
Up to ZE=@EB 4 ZFHAE Over Non-interest &5t
1month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
BETT BN OBMTIT  OBNTL  OBMTT  OBMTT OBMTR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
KOO At 31 December 2020
+—H=+—H
& Assets
Cash, balances and placements
[EFER S FE2EE with and loans and advances
B to banks 30,373,908 13,756,357 9,356,579 - - 31,730,166 85,217,010
Derivative financial
PTAEeR T E instruments - - - - - 1,620,404 1,620,404
LI EERE A SR Financial assets at fair value
e & RbERE through profit or loss - - 1,165,600 2,643,430 265,114 286,339 4,360,483
BHNE Investments in securities 10,421,072 27,769,074 11,526,968 29,247,317 2,687,406 1,097,157 82,748,994
R R AR TE Advances and other accounts 120,094,022 42,772,187 24,239,405 5,737,319 99,403 4,566,035 197,508,371
HoAth 35 Other assets - - - - - 8,571,558 8,571,558
YEAEE Total assets 160,889,002 84,297,618 46,288,552 37,628,066 3,051,923 47,871,659 380,026,820
‘s Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
EIEZE=/4 banks 6,099,553 6,622,070 11,656,141 - - 15,496,648 39,874,412
THIEE N &aff Trading liabilities - - - - 154,331 - 154,331
Derivative financial
P14 TH instruments - - - - - 1,284,107 1,284,107
HPEFK Deposits from customers 152,388,081 56,345,812 43,443,952 4,017,365 - 13,926,648 270,121,858
BT EREE Certificates of deposit issued - 7,454,237 - - - - 7,454,237
ST 1B BT Subordinated debts issued - - - 3,097,196 - - 3,097,196
Hith &fE Other liabilities 896,440 - - - - 7,435,316 8,331,756
YA Total liabilities 159,384,074 70,422,119 55,100,093 7,114,561 154,331 38,142,719 330,317,897
| SRS 7= HEAE A Total interest sensitivity gap
(REHIE) (unadjusted) 1,504,928 13,875,499  (8,811,541) 30,513,505 2,897,592
FIRETA T HEL Y Effect of interest rate
A derivatives 762,624 1,178,536 (812,156) (762,824) -
Tl B R E 2= FE A %E Total interest sensitivity gap
[(EEED) (adjusted) 2,267,552 15,054,035  (9,623,697) 29,750,681 2,897,592
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities - repricing analysis (Continued)

ST (48
—{EH
LAY —@HAME =EHLE —FEPLE AFEME TEHE
Upto ZE=(EH B BHE Over  Non-interest &%
1month  1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
AHETIT AETIT AlETIT AETIT AT AT IT ARMETT
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
R=O—hE At 31 December 2019
+oA=+—H
& Assets
Cash, balances and placements
[EFER S FE2EE with and loans and advances
B to banks 37,045,719 7,047,462 7,198,989 - - 15,035,817 66,327,987
Derivative financial
14 EmTA instruments - - - - - 588,286 588,286
LI EESEAER Financial assets at fair value
e &Rb&RE through profit or loss 149,334 514,269 1,439,633 4,089,820 171,248 372,417 6,736,721
BHE Investments in securities 8,678,385 23,824,860 24,218,553 14,275,553 - 1,133,296 72,130,647
R R AR TE Advances and other accounts 100,436,999 55,234,256 22,810,415 5,505,950 59,814 3,884,529 187,931,963
s Other assets - - - - - 8,127,734 8,127,734
YaAE Total assets 146,310,437 86,620,847 55,667,590 23,871,323 231,062 29,142,079 341,843,338
&8 Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
[EZE K banks 11,094,800 4,086,552 4,490,770 - - 7,566,310 27,238,432
THWEIE N &fE Trading liabilities - - - 309,136 - - 309,136
Derivative financial
SR T R instruments - - - - - 393,553 393,553
BEE#R Deposits from customers 128,896,888 65,288,913 33,645,677 2,635,793 - 12,668,672 243,135,943
BTG Certificates of deposit issued 778,560 85,166 2,861,533 - - - 3,725,259
ST B IEETE Subordinated debts issued - - - 3,110,591 - - 3,110,591
HAh & & Other liabilities 178,382 - - - - 17,008,905 17,187,287
SEE S Total liabilities 140,948,630 69,460,631 40,997,980 6,055,520 - 37,637,440 295,100,201
FIEBUREE44%8  Total interest sensitivity gap
(2% %) (unadjusted) 5,361,807 17,160,216 14,669,610 17,815,803 231,062
FIRLTETAAY > Effect of interest rate
P derivatives (7,347,553) 6,072,009 3,543,948  (2,027,710) -
FIEBUREE44%8  Total interest sensitivity gap
[EEES) (adjusted) (1,985,746) 23,232,225 18,213,558 15,788,093 231,062
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due and
to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the
failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfill commitments to
lend. The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources
from overnight deposits, current accounts, matured deposits, loan
drawdowns and guarantees, and from margin and other calls on
cash-settled derivatives.

(a) Liquidity risk management process

The management of the Group’s liquidity risk is governed by the
liquidity risk management policies and principles as approved by the
Board of Directors. The Asset and Liability Management Committee,
which is delegated by the Management Committee on behalf of the Board
of Directors, is responsible to monitor the Group’s overall liguidity
management. The Asset and Liability Management Committee sets the
strategy, policy and limits for managing liquidity risk for approval by the
Board of Directors or the Management Committee, and the means for
ensuring that such strategy and policy are implemented effectively.
Regular meeting is held to review the compliance status of the
monitoring matrix established and the needs of change in strategy and
policy. Daily liquidity management is managed by the Treasury
Department. The limits, triggers or alerts are monitored by the Financial
Management Department and reported to the Asset and Liability
Management Committee on a regular basis. The Internal Audit
Department performs periodic reviews to make sure that the liquidity risk
management functions are carried out effectively.

The primary responsibility for managing liquidity and funding within the
Group’s framework and risk appetite resides with the mainland and
overseas branches, which is monitored by the Asset and Liability
Management Committee. Internally, intra-group funding transactions are
transacted at arm’s length and treated in a manner in line with other third
party transactions, with regular monitoring and appropriate control.

The objective of liquidity management is to meet the obligations payable
under normal and emergency circumstances, to fund asset growth and to
comply with the statutory liquidity ratios. To achieve this, the following
liquidity management processes are in place:
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(a) Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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Projecting cash flows under normal and various stress scenarios
regularly, using the net mismatch gap between assets and
liabilities to estimate the prospective net funding requirement
and formulate the corresponding actions.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons,
including next day, seven days and one month, which are key
periods for liquidity management. The starting point for those
projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the
financial assets and liabilities and off-balance sheet items as
well as the expected maturity of these items based on historical
observations and cash flow models.

Liquidity stress testing is a risk management tool for estimating
risk exposure under stressed conditions arising from extreme
but plausible market or macroeconomic movements.

Different stress testing scenarios, namely an institution specific
crisis, a general market crisis and combined crisis, are
performed on a regular basis in accordance with the principles
stated in Supervisory Policy Manual “Sound Systems and
Controls for Liquidity Risk Management” (LM-2).

The stress testing result is also one of the most important early
warning indicators under contingency funding plan. With
reference to the stress testing results, the Group identifies
potential vulnerabilities on its liquidity position under stressed
market conditions. If the impact is severe enough and triggers
the plan, the Bank will deal with such liquidity problems in
accordance with the formulated contingency funding plan that
sets out remedial actions;

Monitoring the liquidity coverage ratio, net stable funding
ratio, loan to deposit ratio and maturity mismatch ratio against
internal and/or regulatory requirements;

Ensuring a sound and diversified range of funding sources,
through monitoring the structure, the stability and the core level
of the deposit portfolio;

Projecting a high-level funding requirement and funding
structure during the annual budget process to ensure sufficient
funding and an appropriate funding mix;
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43 RENMERERE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(a) JFENEE S EPEFESE (48) (a) Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

V) CEWESEBHELA > HGETE (v)  Conducting liquidity risk assessment before launching a new
O R N S A S product;

vi) By FE {7 8 0E TH /@J CEEENR O KE (vi)  Maintaining high-quality liquid assets (“HQLA”) which can be
R A BRI A 52 B2 0] [ 475 =] DL B sold or pledged as collateral to provide liquidity even under
HERERHFNEERSEE - & periods of stress. The Group invests in good credit quality
FRHBEEERRY  BFLHH investments with deep and liquid market to ensure short term
BEE RS REME - DU R BEAE &K funding requirements are covered within prudent limits. Level
FEEENWREANTGHTESR 1 assets comprise cash, balances with central bank and high
R &= ;‘ﬁ_@j} ‘é_f_% 1 ¥ quality central government and central bank securities, while
& FRR T RIRT R EE R R Level 2 assets comprise corporate securities of investment
B B PO SRIT Z BB e 55 > 58 grade.

GEEREEENBOEEMAERE
FPER A FEIEBE 5 -
THRINEAEHNEERY & E The table below shows the balances (before assumed haircuts)
(R &R AT ) & of HQLA of the Group:
—0=0 —O—
2020 2019
AT IT AT IT
HK$’000 HK$’000
E—aR Level 1 63,122,072 48,547,962
IR Level 2 5,669,199 6,208,481
68,791,271 54,756,443
T% ERHMEEHEPFEBEAEN Y All assets held as HQLA are unencumbered:
EEEmMEMRAE

i) FHEHRHTFEAEESTHETEED (vii) Maintaining access to the interbank money market to activate
gE 1 facilities;

(vil) 4EFFE R &S - EEHEHHEE (viii)  Maintaining a contingency funding plan. The Group will
EE (BEAS rmESEE) , I utilise early warning indicators (including both internal and
& R 7 BT E 5 AR R HY &5 AR market indicators), and integrate with the results of the
DU B W e ShEE IR - A A (T scenarios and assumptions used in the stress test to monitor
o B 52 BEOR A £ E it 8 & IR O both internal and external factors. Should there be any signs of
HWEAREE HEBETEREH R significant impact on the Group’s liquidity position, the Crisis
Wi EREE R ETERG Management Team, which is chaired by the Group’s Chief
M o IR R AL A FEIT B > & Executive Officer, will take charge to handle the crisis.
2K ER 2N AR A2 ERKE & Corresponding actions as laid down in the policy will be taken
& o REBE IR g E s k5 ¥ in the event of a stress crisis, so as to minimise adverse
FEANE - long-term implications for business. The plan is also subject to

review and update on a regular basis.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) Maturity analysis

THIEREEEH 2 S54F The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities into relevant maturity
HHHeg THEOHhAEEH > groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the
EEHEE SONMRANZHE contractual maturity date. The analysis in respect of insurance liabilities is based on the
BETSRENSGEE HE S estimated timing of net cash outflows resulting from recognised insurance liabilities at
ZhREBEAEEMGGIFH SR H the end of the reporting period.
EpE K
—{EH
RNnE RMT —@AME =ZEANME —&ME R
Repayable Upto  Z=fEA B4 BERE  AEMNLE B3 &it
on demand 1month  1-3months 3-12 months 1-5years Over 5 years Undated Total
BT E%TT B%BTi B%TRT BT BT %t B%T
HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$’000
KOO At 31 December 2020
+=B=+—H
& Assets
Cash, balances and
placements with and
JEEEI 4 ~ FIZEF loans and advances
AR to banks 49,394,508 12,231,806 13,756,144 9,356,828 - - 477,724 85,217,010
Derivative financial
TSR TE instruments 1,620,404 - - - - - - 1,620,404
Financial assets at fair
LA THEESEAIR value through profit
iR SRS E or loss - - - 1,165,600 2,643,430 265,114 286,339 4,360,483
HHIE Investments in securities 4123419 18276654 17,363,656 39,200,702 2,687,406 1,097,157 82,748,994
Advances and other
B HAMARTE accounts 15,351,638 12,158,876  22,055089 55837422 70,707,233 17,363,856 4,034,257 197,508,371
HoAth e Other assets - - - 14,956 - 46,746 8,509,856 8,571,558
MR Total assets 66,366,550 28,514,101 54,087,887 83738462 112,551,365 20,363,122 14405333 380,026,820
‘s Liabilities
Deposits and balances
BEZY from banks 15,575,031 6,021,171 6,622,069 11,656,141 - - - 39,874,412
REMEIE T &%  Trading liabilities - - - - - 154,331 - 154,331
Derivative financial
TTESMTAR instruments 1,284,107 - - - - - - 1,284,107
Deposits from
B customers 124,120,947 42,193,782  56,345812 43,443,952 4,017,365 - - 270,121,858
Certificates of deposit
BT REEE issued - - 7454237 - - - - 7,454,237
Subordinated debts
BT EEE issued 3,097,196 3,097,196
Hofth & f Other liabilities 088,364 2,412,483 706,258 2,516,969 1,299,664 12,001 395,927 8,331,756
- of which: Lease
- b FHEES liabilities - 10,397 20,954 78,216 168,242 4,151 - 281,960
= Total liabilities 141,968,449 50,627,436 71,128,376 57,617,062 5317,029 3,263,618 395,927 330,317,897
FEESEINSSE  Net liquidity gap (75,601,899) (22,113,335) (17,040,489) 26,121,400 107,234,336 17,099,504 14,009,406 49,708,923
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(b) FRIHT (48

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) Maturity analysis (Continued)

—
BB (i EZEE —@AMLE =@EAML —ELLE fiEEr e
Repayable Upto Z={HH B EHE AELLE HHH &
on demand 1 month 1-3 months ~ 3-12 months 1-5years Over 5 years Undated Total
BT BT BT AT AT BT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
R-O—N&E At 31 December 2019
+-f=+—~
BE Assets
Cash, balances and
placements with and
JEEFIRE ~ FIZEFIR loans and advances
FEFK to banks 28,940,840 21,411,243 6,833,869 7,743,697 758,836 - 639,502 66,327,987
Derivative financial
(PR ek v instruments 588,286 - - - - - - 588,286
Financial assets at fair
PLATHEESEAIR value through profit
IR SR or loss - 132,128 264,778 1,439,633 4,316,799 210,966 372,417 6,736,721
BHE Investments in securities - 3,310,210 15,010,349 25,621,053 27,055,739 - 1,133,296 72,130,647
Advances and other
R R AR TE accounts 11,427,590 22,770,438 12,419,833 48,918,860 69,679,034 21,744,741 971,467 187,931,963
HAth & Other assets - - - 783 - 27,347 8,099,604 8,127,734
YR Total assets 40,956,716 47,624,019 34,528,829 83,724,026 101,810,408 21,983,054 11,216,286 341,843,338
‘s Liabilities
Deposits and balances
B from banks 7,928,729 10,732,381 4,086,552 4,490,770 - - - 27,238432
THEE T &fE Trading liabilities - - - - 309,136 - - 309,136
Derivative financial
PSR TH instruments 393,553 - - - - - - 393,553
Deposits from
HEFK customers 86,909,805 54,655,755 65,288,913 33,645,677 2,635,793 - - 243,135,943
Certificates of deposit
BT AT issued - 778,560 85,166 2,861,533 - - - 3,725,259
Subordinated debts
BT BB EE issued - - - - - 3,110,591 - 3,110,591
Hith& & Other liabilities 12,382,260 637,008 603,477 1,904,536 1,162,948 68,653 428,405 17,187,287
- of which: Lease
- Hop o fEEE liabilities - 10,160 21,265 77,931 184,168 17,540 - 311,064
=T Total liabilities 107,614,347 66,803,704 70,064,108 42,902,516 4,107,877 3,179,244 428,405 295,100,201
REES R Net liquidity gap (66,657,631) (19,179,685) (35,535,279) 40,821,510 97,702,531 18,803,810 10,787,881 46,743,137
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
(b) Maturity analysis (Continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management of the
Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as transacted
business is often of uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched
position potentially enhances profitability, but also increases the risk of
losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an
acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important
factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to changes
in interest rates and currency risks.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and standby
letters of credit are generally less than the amount of the commitment. In
this regard, the Group does not expect the third party would fully draw
funds under the agreement. The total outstanding contractual amount of
commitments to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash
requirements, as many of these commitments will expire or terminate
without being funded.

(c) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The tables on the following pages analyse the cash flow payable by the
Group in respect of non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities, and by
estimated timing of net cash outflow for insurance liabilities at the end of
the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash flows.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)

—fEHA =EAME
BIRHER B’UT —@ERNMLE E—F —HME HEUE WA
Repayable Up to B=HEA 3-12 BRE Over H#A &t
on demand 1 month 1-3 months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
AT ESTT AT BT AW AW AT AW
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
) OO = At 31 December 2020
FZR=4—8
Non-derivative cash
FETEBRSREAR flow liabilities
Deposits and balances
EIEZE=/4 from banks 15,575,032 6,072,036 6,709,444 11,906,308 - - - 40,262,820
THEE T &fE Trading liabilities - - - 1,356 5,426 161,816 - 168,598
Deposits from
HFEE customers 124,121,933 42,351,878 56,718,887 43,941,182 4,143,060 - - 271,276,940
Certificates of deposit
BTG issued - - 7,482,335 - - - - 7,482,335
Subordinated debts
BT IBIEEIE issued - - - 116,275 465,099 3,333,210 - 3,914,584
Hith& & Other liabilities 988,364 2,412,510 706,393 2,518,561 1,315,022 12,650 395,927 8,349,427
- of which: Lease
- Hrop o fHEAE liabilities - 10,424 21,089 79,808 183,600 4,710 - 299,631
FEHESRE Derivative cash flow
Derivative financial
TSR TR instruments - 12,873,690 13,078,391 37,852,655 36,399 - - 63,841,135
140,685,329 63,710,114 84,695,450 96,336,337 5,965,006 3,507,676 395,927 395,295,839
R=_O—hsE At 31 December 2019
FoRE4—8
Non-derivative cash
IETERSREESE flow liabilities
Deposits and balances
EIEZE=/4 from banks 7,928,749 10,769,497 4,128,827 4,596,981 - - - 27,424,054
THEE T &fE Trading liabilities - - - 4,672 330,135 - - 334,807
Deposits from
B customers 86,921,277 54,968,221 65,938,035 34,378,689 2,737,661 - - 244,943,883
Certificates of deposit
BT AT issued - 778,620 85,648 2,919,144 - - - 3,783,412
Subordinated debts
BT IBIEEIE issued - - - 116,793 467,172 3,464,859 - 4,048,824
HAith& & Other liabilities 12,382,260 637,035 603,624 1,906,156 1,179,391 72,570 428,405 17,209,441
- of which: Lease
- Hrp o fHEAE liabilities - 10,187 21,412 79,551 200,611 21,457 - 333,218
FIERESRE Derivative cash flow
Derivative financial
(e ser:. Me=Y instruments - 31,407,993 17,857,814 33,233,310 190,271 - - 82,689,388
107,232,286 98,561,366 88,613,948 77,155,745 4,904,630 3,537,429 428,405 380,433,309
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(d) BERFLLIMEH

4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(d) Off-balance sheet items

—EEMT —HEP E
Not later BHE HEME =11
than 1 year 1-5years  Over 5 years Total
AT AT IT AT IT BT
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
RZOZO&F At 31 December 2020
+=A=+—~H
BCHORHE Loan commitments 38,501,621 - - 38,501,621
Guarantees and other
iR R HA SRS financial facilities
- Guarantees and standby
- MRS letters of credit 3,067,790 - - 3,067,790
- Documentary and
commercial letters of
- PREL R P SE(E AR credit 1,340,416 - - 1,340,416
BEAEYE Capital commitments 144,221 - - 144,221
43,054,048 - - 43,054,048
R=O—N4FE At 31 December 2019
+=H=+—H
JE S Loan commitments 32,513,272 - - 32,513,272
Guarantees and other
ERE M EM S REEE financial facilities
- Guarantees and standby
- ERE M RERIR letters of credit 6,446,390 - - 6,446,390
- Documentary and
commercial letters of
- PREREEEERAR credit 744,662 - - 744,662
BEARGKIE Capital commitments 104,716 - - 104,716
39,809,040 - - 39,809,040
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.4 Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people or systems, or from external events.

The Group has established an operational risk management framework to
identify, measure, monitor and control operational risk. The Policy on
Operational Risk Management, approved by the Board of Directors,
defines responsibilities of wvarious committees, business units and
supporting departments and encompasses various tools including control
self-assessment, operational incident management and key risk indicators
to facilitate measurement and assessment of operational risk. The Group
also relies on internal control mechanisms within the business lines,
supplemented by the internal audit function to manage and control
operational risk.

The internal control system of the Group comprises a well-established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and standards. The
Board’s expectations regarding duty, responsibility and integrity are
clearly spelled out in formal policy statements. The lines of authority
and responsibilities of each business and operational unit have been
clearly defined to ensure adequate checks and balances. Procedures
including risk assessments, segregation of duties, use of limits, training
and regular verification and reconciliation of transactions and accounts
are used in the internal control mechanism.

Risk assessment will be conducted on the outsourcing services, new
products and new systems implementation. Business continuity plans are
in place to mitigate the impact and interruptions to business activities
caused by system failure, social disorder or natural disaster. Adequate
insurance is acquired to cover a reasonable extent of operational risk. The
Group benchmarks practices against peers, and regulatory requirements.

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for regular review of the
operational risk profile and the Group’s internal audit function plays an
important role in the Group’s operational risk framework. It provides an
objective assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system is
maintained and operated in compliance with the established processes
and standards through regular and comprehensive audits on all business
and operational functions.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.5 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are as follows:

- To comply with the capital requirements under the Banking
(Capital) Rules;

- To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders;

- To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

- To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its
business.

The Hong Kong Banking Ordinance requires each bank or banking group
to maintain a prescribed ratio of regulatory capital to total risk-weighted
assets. Subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to statutory capital
requirements from other regulatory authorities, including the Securities
and Futures Commission and Insurance Authority.

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of risk
weights as defined in the Banking (Capital) Rules according to the nature
of and reflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risks associated
with each asset and counterparty, taking into account any eligible
collateral or guarantees. A similar treatment is adopted for off-balance
sheet exposures, with some adjustments to reflect the more contingent
nature of the potential losses.

Capital adequacy and the use of capital are monitored on a regular basis
by the Group’s management. The Group applies an internal trigger
capital adequacy ratio which is well above the minimum statutory
requirement as an indicator for managing the capital adequacy. In
addition, the Group will assess the impact on its capital adequacy ratio
when there are new products, new investments or any significant
transactions.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied with
all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 and are well above the minimum required
ratios set by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is the
current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. They include net
present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison to similar
instruments for which market prices exist, Black-Scholes option pricing
models and other valuation models. Inputs used in valuation techniques
include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other
risk premiums used in estimating discount rates, foreign currency
exchange rates, bond and equity prices, price volatilities and correlations.

The Group uses valuation models that use only observable market data
for determining the fair value of debt securities and derivatives for which
there is no active market. Observable prices and model inputs are usually
available in the market for listed debt securities, exchange traded
derivatives and over-the-counter derivatives. Availability of observable
prices and model inputs is prone to changes as a result of specific events
and general conditions in the financial markets.

When observable prices and model inputs are not available, the Group
uses valuation models of which the inputs may not be observable in the
market but are derived from market prices or rates or are estimated based
on assumptions. Examples of instruments involving significant
unobservable inputs include unlisted equity securities and investment
fund for which there is no active market. Management judgment and
estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation
model to be used, determination of expected future cash flows on the
financial instrument being valued and selection of appropriate discount
rates.

87



HREKERTRRAE
CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

M B HRRE R

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 GRUEREE

46 SMEENRARZIA

AT ARG H B IR R
2z EMEAE

H @

L\\
_H
H
s
=

W% & =1
FTEMBBREZAVEEMS

st

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

[FFE R B

—\t
=i
al
HE

iy
o St
2
%H
=

-
;(L&
N jr
i
ok
S
=t

piil: e
L T 4
T vm
ot
=
¥ =
)
[ e
ety

=
D> B S I

T)\E /\\

l
il

i T B S

58

=t
S > />

E1m
4§ 2 B

I I
& 5 i
53

&t

&
o an g i

° D mlf 59 0> 24
EREH
B E

\
/|

& 5 m
HQWF -
i
FF

A o 1 O 2
S
i
¥

= 413 2

&L
&

LR

FL il R 1E AE 300 B JRC(E £
Fﬁ* N ﬁB ) % fﬁ KR A

J

ju|

SRS IEe
=
a
_!_.
i

%mﬁmﬁo
<k by R oy I
e (mms

p

\]
/i

ﬁ%@M
o5 38
RN
a2 N B

B ENRE n
T 2%

B - HE T
BB 15> ot 3 2
ol o

Btk
=

250
oS

[FFETFARE

231
x
%
ﬁl_ll;
I
‘\-g
&

pmmy
g =]
] O 2
3t
o, 2
:
or

° 34 @R
O g T S
Frm AR
oy T O
Zzmat T

H &2 m
i AN
hea
K>
el

4 - o

5 0 E

I gk 2% fal T 2

X
)

i
=
¥

m 1> okt

<
=)

CEB
- EE@EE

5 24
B S
> Y 8 g
Hapas

2
(BIHT

&
X
il

A% 52 ¥ Al
>

B 5 5
SEEYET

W - M

R
\
L
\\f
N

Fikag REANTHA

\ 5 b &
FmnART . o |

(M 0> Rk
O R NN

3 H

!
1
"

> I
BN o ZEiH
WHHMHER AT

’_H?mhm
" 2 R O S

~
»

S

s

>f_

i

bj—\—“.m W= 1N\ >~
SmEBm i -

S N ) 2k S O B
oy

B ¢ 3> 2 K N 1 S
B - K
5 i e O

\|
/)

I SH S - O o
N S g H )

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not presented at fair
value in the Group’s statement of financial position are estimated as
follows:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

Balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight deposits
is their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of fixed interest
bearing deposits, which is normally less than one year, is based on
discounted cash flows using prevailing money-market interest
rates for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.
Therefore the fair value is approximately equal to its carrying
value.

Advances and other accounts

Advances and other accounts are net of allowances for
impairment. All except a very insignificant portion of loans and
advances to customers bear interest at a floating rate. The Group
has assessed the fair value of advances to customers and trade
bills, after taking into account the relevant market interest rates
and noted that the total fair value is not materially different from
the total carrying value.

Deposits and balances from banks and customers

The estimated fair value of deposits and balances with no stated
maturity, which include non-interest bearing deposits, is the
amount repayable on demand. The fair value of those balances
bearing interest at a floating rate is their carrying value.

The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits from
banks and deposits from customers without quoted market price is
based on discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts
with similar remaining maturity. As they are normally less than
one year, their fair values are approximately equal to their
carrying values.

Certificates of deposit and capital instruments

The fair value of certificates of deposit and capital instruments
issued is based on quoted market prices. For those where quoted
market prices are not available, a discounted cash flow model is
used based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining
term to maturity. The Group has assessed the fair value of
certificates of deposit and capital instruments issued after taking
into account the relevant yield curve and noted that the total fair
value is not materially different from the total carrying value.
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(e) HMHIERFLE ()

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Other accounts and accruals

HMEBELERE K BEREAEF The estimated fair value of other accounts and accruals, which are
Bréer - Rtk HAFVEER normally non-interest bearing balances, is their carrying value.
HiEmHE -
br Lt sr &M BRI REHI > TF Except for the above consolidated statement of financial position items,
i/ 7 N NS TS Sl O 7 NS v el A 5 the following table summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of
NP EHEEVWNEHRESMEENA & other financial assets and liabilities not presented on the Group’s
FIBR A E MM A EEE - consolidated statement of financial position at their fair value.
EHERXBCHF M BERETHEREN The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets
SREENMEAGENIE®DMESARLANFEE and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
EMEFHE - statements approximate their fair values.
RRIEME AEE
Carrying value Fair value
—0=0O —O0—h —0=0O —O—h
2020 2019 2020 2019
BT AT BT AT T
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000
BREE Financial assets
TS R ARV IR 2 Rl Financial investments at
& amortised cost 1,725,694 725,855 1,731,240 727,730
™5 = AL B H R IR DL SF E E 7R The tables below analyse financial instruments not carried at fair value at
W TE #HBEEANFEHEDNE the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair value hierarchy into
RAE E 47 which the fair value treatment is categorised:
EREE
Financial assets
AT IR 2 SRR &
Financial investments at amortised cost
—0=0 —O—
2020 2019
ABETIT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
] Level 1 1,294,193 496,244
= Level 2 423,073 179,008
F=E Level 3 8,428 50,603
1,725,694 725,855
EHEMBHESERNE 1I35HEETHE HKFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on
FENE R HE SRBEGETEZ# whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or
AEEIETEZER S MmEBEZS - 7 unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from
BRI ARE RS E s independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Group’s market
B RIR ERS » A EE NS ABE K assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the following fair
LT OREEE GG THIE - 2w value hierarchy:
ABBEET TN FEMENEGHR -
. FlEg - 2FH - TERGEEN . Level 1 - Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for
GHEH TS m AR - an identical instrument.

89



HREKERTRRAE
CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

M B HRRE R

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 SRIEGEEE &) 4 Financial risk management (Continued)

46 SREERABZATEE (8 4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

e P 2 Jg - WRBAEENEEM™ . Level 2 - Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either
W E ) Faﬁ B (0B E P ?& B directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).
AN B2 E B - IR AEE This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market
BWTEAEEILT A ?)ﬁ: HE T prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for
H ARG B W5 SN WS #® identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less
B gtE —=&MHE T EfFIEERE than active; or other valuation techniques where all significant
HEHENESHERME sLEME inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.
B 0 8% b E AT Y
TAHE > S EFENEERT
LW RN B -

. E3E - RBEEEHIFTEHES . Level 3 - Valuation techniques using significant unobservable
B ABEZAERES - LB inputs. This category includes all instruments where the valuation
XAGEEN T E » HAEEES T technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the
AZEEBEWIERE T EHZE unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s
B M FIE A =AY B g R DL valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued
Wit EEAERZE - E XA based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant
BT E 8 FEERE TSR unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect
HNEWNHEHESR T H 2> mS® differences between the instruments.
HotEEPFEFEHEENIEA
Bl Bt 0 DL AR [H
Sk TR B ER -

SREREE/AERSTEZN TS This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available.

B REBEEHFITNENLTEESRM The Group considers relevant and observable market prices in its

Je BT B ALY T 3 AR R Al E L - valuations where possible.

R ES R ENTSRERESE L Due to changes in market conditions for certain securities, quoted prices

EERTHTELIFEEINZDS SN in active markets were not available to reflect all appropriate risks for

B - HRBETEHEN TS S these securities. However, there was sufficient information available to

ARANEEKRE BELEZ LN F measure the fair values of these securities based on observable market

BEH AEEBN _O0O_0HF#+_H= inputs. Therefore, these securities were transferred from Level 1 to Level

+—H & 1,753,472,000 ;.(=O 2 of the fair value hierarchy and amounted to HK$1,753,472,000 at 31

— JLAE ¢ & 657,166,000 JT)EE & A December 2020 (2019: HK$657,166,000).

ANFPEEBRNE -BEASL _5E -

MR ES SR ETSEEE L Due to changes in market conditions for certain securities, quoted prices

EEBETETEANZB LN AN EHHE in active market became available for these securities. Therefore, these

g KEHEKR -0 O E + —_H=+ securities were transferred from Level 2 to Level 1 of the fair value

— H A& 731,312,000 T(=ZO—JL hierarchy and amounted to HK$731,312,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019:

Aol EWE 514,437,000 7[:)37"5% /AN HK$514,437,000).

BHEHBHRNE —GEAELE—E -

AEBWAVFPEHERESH BB FH The Group recognises transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as

AW RS HOR T DARESE - at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The tables below analyse financial instruments, measured at fair
value on a recurring basis at the end of the reporting period, by the
level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value treatment

is categorised:

F—E £8 =8 =1
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT AT AT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
—O=0O% 2020
BE Assets
AR T E Derivative financial instruments - 1,620,404 - 1,620,404
Financial assets mandatorily
HLUEDLAEEESEALE measured at fair value
R SRS E through profit or loss:
- RS - Debt securities 2,103,154 118,346 - 2,221,500
- Equity securities and
- BoRERE A M IEEEL investment fund 180,114 60,529 28,840 269,483
Financial assets designated at
?C*U\’ “AEESEAIR fair value through profit or
iR B E loss:
- [EEAE - Debt securities 1,743,967 108,677 16,856 1,869,500
Financial assets at fair value
U\’Aﬂ?fgﬁﬁf\ﬁfﬁlé through other
HW s 2 S RE E comprehensive income
- Balances and placements
with and loans and
- [EIEEI L ER advances to banks 3,860,970 - - 3,860,970
- SRHE - Financial investments
- B S - Debt securities 60,296,446 19,638,125 - 79,934,571
- HEREEE R RSE - Equity securities and
e investment fund 209,500 - 879,229 1,088,729
- Advances and other
- B A IRTA accounts - 6,862,342 - 6,862,342
68,394,151 28,408,423 924,925 97,727,499
=L Liabilities
RAETE N &f& Trading liabilities 154,331 - - 154,331
TSR T E Derivative financial instruments - 1,284,107 - 1,284,107
154,331 1,284,107 - 1,438,438
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Eoa oy E &3
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT AT T AT T AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
—O—J4E 2019
EE Assets
A er T HE Derivative financial instruments - 588,286 - 588,286
Financial assets mandatorily
HE DLV EEESEAE measured at fair value
TR SRS - through profit or loss:
- [T - Debt securities 2,522,216 238,843 - 2,761,059
- Equity securities and
- RS S MIEEE S investment fund 246,308 61,053 48,197 355,558
Financial assets designated at
DA EEREEAE fair value through profit or
ol BRNERE ¢ loss:
- E%EE - Debt securities 3,296,515 306,730 16,859 3,620,104
Financial assets at fair value
DIAHEESEA RS through other
HW s~ S RlE ZE comprehensive income
- Balances and placements
with and loans and
- [EIZEFI R B advances to banks 1,120,892 - - 1,120,892
- BREE - Financial investments
- [BEE A - Debt securities 58,027,246 12,252,030 - 70,279,276
- RS R IE - Equity securities and
g investment fund 417,555 - 707,961 1,125,516
- Advances and other
- B R EHAMIEE accounts - 8,860,385 - 8,860,385
65,630,732 22,307,327 773,017 88,711,076
=0 Liabilities
TEHEE N &E Trading liabilities 309,136 - - 309,136
s T E Derivative financial instruments - 393,553 - 393,553
309,136 393,553 - 702,689
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

value measurements is as follows:

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair

HiE
Assets
FAE LLASEEE
PAAEEESEA EABRRS
Hr2mEmUis SRIEE HEMAYEE
ZEREE Financial assets SEAIESIEY
Financial assets mandatorily SRIERE
at fair value measured at Financial assets
through other fair value designated at fair
comprehensive through value through
income profit or loss profit or loss
SRIE
Financial
investments
BetEsg s RIS E A S ERRs
Equity securities and investment fund Debt securities
BETIT BT T BETIT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
W_O=—OF—H—H At 1 January 2020 707,961 48,197 16,859
W 7/ (E51E) A BRI Total gains/(losses) recognised in
- Other comprehensive
- Hitremi s income 171,268 - -
- iEiR - Profit or loss - 65,204 3)
4EE Settlements - (84,561) -
HZOZO%
+—HA=+—H At 31 December 2020 879,229 28,840 16,856
A_OZOF+ZH=
+—HEFENE Total gains for the year included
B HeEfEaEHE in other comprehensive
M EE SN %S income for assets held at 31
4E%E December 2020 171,268 - -
RZOZOF+ZH=
+—HRENE Total gains/(losses) for the year
E> HEEfEaEiE included in profit or loss for
IR 2 ES/(B518) assets held at 31 December
4EEH 2020 - 65,204 3)
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

HiE
Assets
FE LA FEE
PAASHEEREA sn AR
Hr 4w ERIEE faE LAEEE
ZBRNEE Financial assets SFEAERE
Financial assets mandatorily LRPEE
at fair value measured at Financial assets
through other fair value designated at fair
comprehensive through value through
income profit or loss profit or loss
BRI E
Financial
investments
eSS 75 KA B A (E¥E ez
Equity securities and investment fund Debt securities
AT T AT T AT
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
W_O—FE—H—H At 1 January 2019 730,639 55,547 46,820
(B e R ERRERD N Total (losses)/gains recognised in
- Other comprehensive
- HA A m s income (22,678) - -
- iEiR - Profit or loss - (7,350) 16,888
4EEL Settlements - - (46,349)
RZO—4F
+—H=+—H At 31 December 2019 707,961 48,197 16,859
AN O—WE+ZH= Total losses for the year
+—HRENE included in other
B HeEfEaEHE comprehensive income for
2T S N 2 5 1R assets held at 31 December
Hage 2019 (22,678) - -
RZO—hFE+ZH=
+—HATFFENE Total (losses)/gains for the year
E HEEfEaEE included in profit or loss for
ZEHEN 2 (BHR)/M s assets held at 31 December
4EEH 2019 - (7,350) 16,888
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

LR #EAESEPNEREHME =89 The table below sets out information about significant unobservable
BN VTHEBEBREIENHE T E Y inputs used at year end in measuring financial instruments categorised
HAARNEZNE AEEEZR - as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.
AEEEDN
BAEIBH
AEEE
BEARRH BNHEE
2R =400 Fair value
S measurement
fEERTS Significant pijiY; s sensitivity to
Valuation unobservable  #FE Weighted unobservable
techniques inputs Range average inputs
PLANEAE EEE Financial investments  #7& | g = 6.12%-16.24% 13.55% e S s
HAr 2w at fair value through &R & = (2019: 6.12%-14.53%)  (2019: 12.24%) M E A TR
2 ERE other comprehensive Discounted Risk-adjusted SIEUNEEHE
e i 25 25 Kz income: Equity cash flow discount rate OIS
HERE securities and Significant
investment fund increase in
risk-adjusted
discount rate
would result in a
lower fair value
S TlREREH 0.54-0.92 0.77 MIERNE K LT
Fiik P/B ratio (2019: 0.62-0.92) (2019: 0.71) 5 BN EER
Market 7t
comparable Significant
approach increase in P/B
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

%7&% 755%’ 1 3¢ HH B 25 g B & B a] Effect of changes in significant non-observable assumptions to reasonably
YR T possibly alternatives
SR TENAFEERE THERX TR The fair value of financial instruments are, in certain circumstances,
A B 7F§ et & 0 ZEFEEAREN®R measured using valuation models that incorporate assumptions that are not
o WHEMEE T AN EZEITHE supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same
LHEEF > NAZUAEE N instrument and are not based on observable market data. The following
g RER - TRIRIEANFEEL table shows the sensitivity of fair values to reasonable possible alternative
THEE 10% 1 > AFEEEERSHET assumptions due to parallel movement of plus or minus 10% of the fair
TERBEENBEE S - value.
HAr 2 EU S U RAVZE
Effect on other comprehensive income and
income statement
ARISE  RRISE  AREE FRED
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable = Unfavourable
—0=0O —0=0O —O0—h —O—h
2020 2020 2019 2019
BT BT AT T AT
HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
BE Assets
Financial investments at fair
DI EEESEAH M value through other
E S 2 SR E comprehensive income 87,923 (87,923) 70,796 (70,796)
Financial assets mandatorily
HELLATHEEREAIR measured at fair value
T SREE through profit or loss 2,884 (2,884) 4,820 (4,820)
Financial assets designated at
e DA HEESEATR fair value through profit or
R SRERE loss 1,686 (1,686) 1,686 (1,686)
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TR RIR

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.7 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

The following financial assets are subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangements or similar agreements.

EMBEIRER FEMBERRTF
ESERER]  EMBERIER RSSO RREH
SR A EYEZE E#H4RH  Related amounts not set
Gross amounts BEIRZE  off in the statement of
EnEsl$mt  of recognised Net amounts of financial position
BEEAE financial financial
Gross liabilities assets ERER &
amounts of set off in the presented in S
recognised statement  the statement $RITH Cash THEE
financial of financial of financial Financial collateral Net
assets position position instruments received amount
) o BT BT BTt A%t B%Tr
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
Q@)= 2020
Derivative
TTESRERE financial assets 1,383,425 - 1,383,425 (313,315)  (890,657) 179,453
—O—fUE 2019
Derivative
TTEEREE financial assets 538,750 - 538,750 (231,705) (154,478) 152,567
B AR Advances and other
accounts 2,421,332 - 2,421,332 (7,395) - 2,413,937
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.7 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following financial liabilities are subject to offsetting, enforceable

BRI - master netting arrangements or similar agreements.
EMBIRER FEMBERRTF
HEHNERSE EUMBRIE FESHHITERR RS
SRIEEELE E$§M4El  Related amounts not set
Gross amounts BfE/$%E  off in the statement of
ERESI&RE  of recognised Net amounts of financial position
BE4EEE financial financial
Gross assets liabilities BARNHES
amounts of set off in the presented in Eiiv i
recognised statement  the statement SPtTH Cash JRAE
financial of financial of financial Financial collateral Net
liabilities position position instruments pledged amount
BETIT BTt BT BT BT BETT
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Q@)= 2020
Derivative
financial
TTEERAaE liabilities 1,224,546 - 1,224,546 (313,315) (11,834) 899,397
Repurchase
[olfE = agreements 708,016 - 708,016 (708,016) - -
—O—E 2019
Derivative
financial
TTESRASE liabilities 357,195 - 357,195 (239,100) (77,885) 40,210
Repurchase
ElisyiEs agreements 19,829 - 19,829 (19,829) - -
4.8 SRIEEER 4.8 Transfers of financial assets
I R AREEANFTFEHIL > C# 7 4  The transferred financial assets of the Group below that do not
FhEE BEXR 53 HFEF v B 1% [0 i 75 5% qualify for derecognition are debt securities and bills held by
HE ﬁ BB s K EE - counterparties as collateral under sale and repurchase agreements.
_ EE GEL R o TERA &R
BEREHE AREME HERAIE MRHEE
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of amount of amount of
transferred associated transferred associated
assets liabilities assets liabilities
—0=0 —0=0 —O0—h —O—h
2020 2020 2019 2019
BEETIT BEETIT AT AEETIT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Eljisase=s Repurchase agreements 708,218 708,016 19,981 19,829
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5 FIEUA 5 Interest income
—0=0 —O0O—
2020 2019
BT BWETTT
HKS$’000 HK$’000

Balances and placements with and
[EIFEFR L &K loans and advances to banks 1,367,731 2,141,913
BB Debt securities

- EAE - listed 767,762 707,685
- JEEHAHE - unlisted 599,206 825,426
BFEK Advances to customers 4,998,462 5,994,885
HAt Others 233,803 404,670
7,966,964 10,074,579

BFEEFE WA NG A 5 A
FI R~ 4 ph & E 2 Fl B A
5,990,948,000 TT(Z=O—fL4F : g
7,508,000,000 JT) ~ PAAHEEREA
HA 2 E U R 2 S RE E 2 A A
AR 1,621,236,000 TT(Z=O— L
A W 2,019,747,000 JT) KORE E
FZE T 1 0] 1] S 0 A S 5,480,000
TC(CO—JL4E  # ¢ 25,635,000 1) °

Included in interest income are interest income from financial assets at amortised cost
of HK$5,990,948,000 (2019: HK$7,508,000,000), interest income from financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income of HK$1,621,236,000 (2019:
HK$2,019,747,000) and unwinding of discount on impaired assets of HK$5,480,000

(2019: HK$25,635,000).

6 FIEXH 6 Interest expense
—~0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
AT IT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000

Deposits and balances from banks and

EIFEFR B 7K deposits from customers 3,566,329 4,144,528
BT RS Certificates of deposit issued 169,384 187,545
T IBEEIE Subordinated debts issued 116,749 117,920
HEAR Lease liabilities 10,054 8,902
oAl Others 246,785 395,453
4,109,301 4,854,348

BT E X EAETA R AEE
HiE ABREZ G EEZFEZ
43k 3,888,690,000 T (= O— L
4F 1 WS 4,468,251,000 TT) -

Included in interest expense is interest expense on financial liabilities that are not at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$3,888,690,000 (2019: HK$4,468,251,000).
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7 IRE FRHEEFWA 7 Net fees and commission income

—0=0 —O—n
2020 2019
BT AT IT
HK$°000 HK$°000
k%% B AR A Fees and commission income
Securities brokerage and investment
SEHFAR A A E RS services 629,400 399,373
EHRES Credit cards 103,827 140,021
EEER Credit related 328,266 287,294
E o s Trade finance 97,443 117,723
Ht B EIRITES Other retail banking services 31,863 36,601
HA AR BB Other fee income 113,560 94,391
1,304,359 1,075,403
ISt =954 i oe-dan) Fees and commission expenses
EH-FH#5 Credit cards (88,863) (112,954)
Securities brokerage and investment
e o AR AL A E AR services (89,469) (47,978)
HoAth A #5225 Other fee expenses (37,301) (45,405)
(215,633) (206,337)
RE & RS FUA Net fees and commission income 1,088,726 869,066
Hrp: Of which:
Net fees and commission income, other than
amounts included in determining the
HIELIA B EESEAERIE 2 € effective interest rate, arising from
Rl B ES A T E A IR E financial assets or financial liabilities
MG FIACNEIERETE that are not at fair value through profit or
HIEFR 2 474H) loss
- MR E R ARSI A - fees and commission income 439,977 427,300
- R E ks - fees and commission expenses (86,358) (112,982)
Net fees and commission income on trust
AEEREZEFAIKRE T and other fiduciary activities where the
B HM 2 EERTELE R Group holds or invests on behalf of its
5 SRR customers
- IR E S s A - fees and commission income 30,901 26,807
- e E RS2 - fees and commission expenses (2,669) (3,487)
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8 IRl ANMREREXREMH 8 Insurance operating income and charge for insurance claims

—0=0 —O—
2020 2019
AT IT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
REBEZERA Insurance operating income
4 Gross
TR IR EAEEH Gross insurance premium written 738,132 676,543
AH R R A DU Change in unearned premium provision (28,124) (43,804)
Premium revenue arising from insurance
OB (T 2 R IR E L 7 fREULA contracts issued 710,008 632,739
R Reinsurance
T R Reinsurance premium outward (122,253) (118,220)
IR A (2 D5 Change in unearned premium provision 3,829 5,960
BT IR S (&R ABETHI  Premium revenue ceded to reinsurers
N arising from insurance contracts issued (118,424) (112,260)
ORBREFA Net premium earned 591,584 520,479
HEUA Commission income 189,220 316,726
H A A Other income 958 4,349
iR Commission expenses (97,496) (93,666)
684,266 747,888
RIEREEME FE) Charge for insurance claims (Note)
HaE Gross
BRI Gross claims paid (266,330) (295,722)
EERCRE BEEEHAERIE Change in reported claims, IBNR and
{5 s ELAM DRl - s other insurance provision (110,667) (9,054)
(376,997) (304,776)
PR Reinsurance
W B P R 2 2R AE Claims recovered from reinsurers 26,393 40,653
EEWEE  CBREEAEHR TR Change in reported claims, IBNR and
(B R LA P {2 A other insurance provision 9,759 (12,185)
36,152 28,468
R R E Net insurance claims (340,845) (276,308)
IRk B U Net insurance operating income 343,421 471,580

1

AR REREEFIAERZ
O b 5 75 BT K 98 2 I (8 0%
#H R H AR R AR S -

Note: Charge for insurance claims represents net claims incurred on the Group’s

insurance business and the related claims settlement expenses.
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9 FRFWEE

9 Net trading gain

—0=0 —O—7
2020 2019
AT AT
HKS°000 HKS$’000
Net gain arising from financial instruments
HEDUANHEESE A BRI SR mandatorily measured at fair value
THFUE through profit or loss 14,043 39,666
Net gain arising from financial instruments
EEDA T EESE A AIESIR SRt designated at fair value through profit or
TRFU loss 5,204 106,740
Net loss arising from derivative financial
T4 eR T E R 1R instruments (11,544) (69,987)
SNEE S )R Net gain from foreign exchange trading 362,592 165,368
370,295 241,787
10 HMEFEUA 10 Other operating income
—0=0 —O—n
2020 2019
AT T AT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
K EUA Dividend income
- RS - Listed equity securities 26,468 34,596
- IF ETREERS 5 - Unlisted equity securities 50,384 27,815
EEYZE HESUW AR E Y Rental income from investment properties less
AEH228,256,0007T direct outgoings of HK$28,256,000
(ZO—JL4E * ##427,281,0007T) (2019: HK$27,281,000) 95,064 139,899
REFEHES R Net rental income on safe deposit boxes 35,713 20,829
Y AT IR & A Net (loss)/gain on disposal of financial assets
FEARGES G at amortised cost (Note) (887) 4,066
HAth Others 14,080 14,948
220,822 242,153

bR | ARG A BB
RASIIR Z R ERE - ERE R

JoR\ e B A2 T

Note: During the year, the Group sold some of the financial assets at amortised cost

mainly as risk monitoring and control measures.
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11 BFESH 11 Operating expenses
—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
AT T AT
HK$°000 HKS$°000
NEEH Staff costs
- S REHAM AEERH GEE) - Salaries and other costs (Note) 1,333,778 1,232,953
- ARRERS - Retirement benefit costs 75,249 70,342
JRE R R H Premises and equipment expenses,
NEFETE excluding depreciation
- SoHAFHAFH S - Rental of short-term leases 1,463 24,933
- HAt - Others 162,795 189,074
#reg Depreciation
- HAmsE R GERE 27) - Other properties and equipment (Note 27) 314,380 251,045
- THEH GERE 26) - Leasehold land (Note 26) 3,753 3,753
B R Advertising and business promotion 15,603 20,345
BT R Electronic data processing 94,306 77,460
BAE K2 EEH Postage and communications 69,780 57,634
SCEL RN Printing and stationery 9,863 14,827
R BET I Auditors’ remuneration 5,513 5,422
IKEE Water and electricity 18,273 22.370
RN R Legal and professional fee 212,006 169,982
B R KM Business, withholding tax and surcharges 27,436 44,296
Rt Insurance 25,648 25,537
B HBE R Securities related expenses 8,009 5,731
HAth Others 154,704 117,680
2,532,559 2,333,384

RO ZOFYHIR &
AT BB " PRt
&1 &1 44 /I 7 i 47,055,000
e L EMAEE
FA PR -

Note: The HKSAR Government grant of HK$47,055,000 under the Employment Support
Scheme received in 2020 was deducted from Salaries and other costs.
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12 BEE% 12 Impairment losses
2020 2019
AT IT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
JRAETES/([E]HE) - Impairment losses/(written back) on:
- Balances and placements with and loans
- FEZEEIERK and advances to banks
- FHEEE RO IR - at amortised cost 5,161 (29,431)
- DAAEEERE AR A - at fair value through other
ez comprehensive income 140 (1,555)
- (EEE - Debt securities
- FERE AT IR - at amortised cost 491 21,881
- DI EERE A M2 E - at fair value through other
Wz comprehensive income 46,611 163,637
- B HAMARIE - Advances and other accounts
- FERE AT AR - at amortised cost 391,303 370,295
- DI EERE A M2 E - at fair value through other
Wz comprehensive income 16,467 (41,583)
- Loan commitments and financial
- BEORRE R aRiEREE guarantee contracts (20,364) 16,990
U Pt Net charge to income statement 439,809 500,234
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13 B ESS AT &R T 13 Net (loss)/gain on redemption of financial instruments at

B2 7% (5518)/ W amortised cost

—0=0 —O—h

2020 2019

BT T AT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

V(O B S R AR~ SR E E 2 03 Net (loss)/gain on redemption of financial

(5 1) Y o assets at amortised cost (214) 586
(214) 586

14 EEF & 14 Directors’ emoluments

HHEE® (AN E%WF ) 2 383(1) Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong
G (AT BEZEEFNZER)H  Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
By E 2 HMBEENIMWE 2 FEEB 4 Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

W
—Z0O=0O —O—h
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
weE Directors’ fees 2,014 2,240

Salaries, bonus, allowances and benefits in

e~ L4l ~ R R EREF] kind 18,622 23,533
BIRETE Retirement scheme contributions 1,073 1,214
21,709 26,987

EAAEENRN » AT A FTAY{E ] During the year, no termination benefits were paid by the Bank to any of the Bank’s
BEEYNEREMEE 2 FEE N > A directors. During the year, the Bank did not incur any payment to third parties for
17 36 i 5k 7 B 2 £ /Y IR 7% 1 55 = making available directors’ services.

07 S A AE AR FROH -

BEEENEEZFLL&LGE HE 0 AT No transactions, arrangement or contracts of significance in relation to the Bank’s
BHAEMETEAE - B S & B >~ business to which the Bank, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its
& o\ B 56 H o B 4\ 5 6 # =T 17 holding company was a party and in which a director of the Bank or an entity
£ 81 AR 172K 4 B i & % B #  connected with a director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
BB EAE AP E H A subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
PENER C HMEERTS - 4

HEL -
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15 B EBRNEFETE
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15 Staff retirement schemes

The Group operates five staff retirement schemes for the staff of the
Bank and an MPF scheme for the staff of a subsidiary of the Bank. The
five staff retirement schemes comprise a principal scheme (the
“Scheme”) which includes a defined benefit (“DB”) section and a
defined contribution (“DC”) section, a defined benefit pension scheme,
two defined contribution schemes for overseas employees and an MPF
scheme. All new Hong Kong employed staff members who join the
Bank are offered a one-off choice between the DC section of the Scheme
and the MPF scheme.

Under the DC section of the Scheme, the Group is required to contribute
10% of the monthly salary of the members who opted for the DC
arrangement. The Group’s contributions to the DC section of this
Scheme may be reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
Forfeited contributions totaling HK$7,822,000 (2019: HK$13,539,000)
were utilised during the year. The unutilised forfeited contributions at
the year end amounted to HK$1,810,000 (2019: HK$1,027,000) which
are available to reduce future contributions. No contributions were
payable at the year end (2019: Nil).

The Group’s contributions to the MPF schemes are based on 5% of the
monthly relevant income of each employee up to a maximum monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 in accordance with the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The contributions to schemes with defined contribution arrangements
and the MPF schemes during the year amounted to HK$62,236,000
(2019: HK$58,355,000) in aggregate.
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15 BEBRAMEFETE &)
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15 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

For the DB section of the Scheme and the defined benefit pension
scheme (collectively referred to as the “Plan”), the contributions are
determined based on periodic valuations by independent qualified
actuaries of the assets and liabilities of the Plan. The Plan provides
benefits based on members’ final salary. The costs are solely funded by
the Group.

The Plan is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance, and has been granted with MPF Exemption by the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority. The Group has an unconditional
right to the surplus of the Plan. Asset ceiling and minimum funding
requirements do not apply to the Plan.

The Plan was established under a trust arrangement. The key
responsibilities of the trustees are to ensure that the Plan is administered
in accordance with the trust deed and to act on behalf of all members
impartially, prudently and in good faith.

The Plan exposes the Group to the following key risks:

Investment risk

Positive investment returns tend to increase the fair value of the Plan
assets and therefore improve the Plan’s financial position, whilst negative
investment returns tend to weaken the position.

The assets of the Plan are invested in a diversified portfolio of equities,
bonds and cash, covering major geographical locations around the world.
The diversification of asset classes and geographical location reduces the
concentration of risk associated with the Plan’s investments.

Interest rate risk

The defined benefit obligation is calculated using a discount rate based
on market bond yields. A decrease in the bond yields will increase the
amount of obligation.

Salary risk

Salary increases that are higher than assumed at the valuation will
increase the defined benefit obligation.

Inflation risk
Pension in payment under the defined benefit pension scheme may be
increased, at the discretion of the Group, to reflect all or part of the

cost-of-living increase in Hong Kong. The higher-than-assumed
increases in pensions will increase the defined benefit obligation.
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15 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

Mortality risk

A prolonged pension in payment due to longer life expectancy of the
pensioners will increase the defined benefit obligation.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan was performed in accordance
with HKAS 19 (2011) issued by the HKICPA at 31 December 2020 by
Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited, an independent professional
actuarial firm, who have among their staff Fellows of the Actuarial
Society of Hong Kong. The present values of the defined benefit
obligation and current service cost of the Plan are calculated based on
the projected unit credit method. At the valuation date, the Plan had a
funding level of 118% (2019: 106 %).

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020 are analysed as follows:

—0=0O —O0—h

2020 2019

BT T AT T

HKS$°000 HK$°000

R RS EIE E AN EE Fair value of the Plan assets 474,893 430,055

Present value of the funded defined benefit
O RS E R 2 T E obligation (404,148) (405,593)
REFE B RN B Net asset recognised in the consolidated

VREE statement of financial position 70,745 24,462

DIESh 2 BERMES R —FR&A K
[E] o b IH S &R A E B OR 2R+ Z {E A
WIEWRK Z =8 oM > FHINERK
Z RO e B R AR Y R 7 B R PR R 2R
M EAE AT SE8E -  HHN =02
— R g R 5 OE R KR A ST #EE &

e
BHE_OZOHER-ZO—NE+ZA

T — Bk FEE - R KEHE 2
BCHREEREZZE -

I

A portion of the above asset is expected to be recovered after more than
one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate this amount from the
amounts receivable in the next twelve months, as future contributions
will also relate to future services rendered and future changes in actuarial
assumptions and market conditions. No contribution to the Plan is
expected to be paid in 2021.

There was no plan amendment, curtailment or settlement impact for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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REFEWERR N ST

15 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as follows:

—0=0 —O—h

2020 2019

AT T AT

HKS$’000 HK$’000
[iS52I%N Current service cost (13,414) (12,543)
YRF BT A Net interest income 401 646

Net expense for the year included in

EIEEENBIREF R A 2 H#4E retirement benefit costs (13,013) (11,897)

BHE_O—OFE+ZH=+—HI1
- ZERRETEEE 2 FEE
5B HE S 73,794,000 ¢ (—O—7L
A EWE 52,530,000 TT) o

FRFERMESZEEOT

The actual return on Plan assets for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
HK$73,794,000 (2019: HK$52,530,000).

The movements in the defined benefit obligation during the year are as follows:

—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
AT T AT T
HK$°000 HK$°000
H—H—HZ B EEEE Present value of obligation at 1 January 405,593 372,347
IR R Current service cost 13,414 12,543
FIERA Interest cost 6,251 6,820
BRI Actual benefits paid (28,956) (29,413)
Actuarial losses due to liability
B KBRS E R experience 2,563 10,876
Actuarial losses due to financial
M B RE E B AT R R assumption changes 5,307 32,354
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to
A e BB s B () k518 demographic assumption changes (24) 66
Bk A= —H 2 SR
tEFIFEE Actual obligation at 31 December 404,148 405,593

RZOZOF+ZH=+—H %
et & 2 5 E R A ER (0 K SE fE
BARET EHY S E 1 58 B 2 0 RE
S EEIME A R 6.2 (=0
—JUFE 6.4 )R 1.5 F(ZO—
F1.844F) -

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 31
December 2020 is 6.2 years (2019: 6.4 years) and 1.5 years (2019: 1.8 years)
for the DB section of the Scheme and the defined benefit pension scheme
respectively.
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FENZERIRGTEEE A EE 2 EE
T

15 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

The movements in the fair value of the Plan assets during the year are as follows:

—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
AT IT AT
HK$°000 HKS$°000
BW—H—HZERARAEIEE N\ EE({E  Fair value of the Plan assets at 1 January 430,055 406,938
FIEULA Interest income 6,652 7,466
TEERZ ZF B IRET BB E M BUL A LIS Z[E]  Return on the Plan assets other than interest
0 income 67,142 45,064
BB Actual benefits paid (28,956) (29,413)
P+ ZH=+—H&ERIREEEZA
HEE Fair value of the Plan assets at 31 December 474,893 430,055
FERIRETEEE BT The major categories of the Plan assets are as follows:
—0=0 —O0—h
2020 2019
BT AT T
HK$°000 % HKS$’000 %
FREREE 75 Equities 306,630 64.6 266,085 61.9
[EEatkes Bonds 76,499 16.1 81,941 19.0
H4 Cash 91,764 19.3 82,029 19.1
4aE Total 474,893 100.0 430,055 100.0

NZ_OZO0OF+ZA=+—H>
ZEFRREE 2 EEQREFRAE
RATZFREEEY 65,322,000
TE(ZO— L4 & B 64,240,000
Je)

FEREAE R AT g 2 £ ZE I HE H
wr

At 31 December 2020, the amount of the Plan assets includes deposits with the

Bank of HK$65,322,000 (2019: HK$64,240,000).

The principal actuarial assumptions adopted in the valuation are as follows:

—0=0 —O—
2020 2019
% %
HER Discount rate

- ETEIZ FLERAIE Y - DB section of the Scheme 0.4 1.6
- FERARIRETE] - Defined benefit pension scheme 0.1 1.7

T SREEFIE ) 2 R B N Long-term average rate of salary increase for the
FHiE DB section of the Scheme 5.0 6.0

FUE BRG] Z RIFIR R E:H iR

Long-term pension increase rate for the defined
benefit pension scheme -
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BF A = b — F 9 5E R % B B
= 53 7 -

15 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

The below analysis shows the effect on the defined benefit obligation as
at 31 December as a result of reasonably possible changes in the
significant actuarial assumptions:

W h0 25 {iE B EL BD 25 {E B BL
Increase of Decrease of
25 basis points 25 basis points
—0=0 —O—7L —0=0 —O—7
2020 2019 2020 2019

BETIT BT AB%¥TIT BRI
HK$’000  HKS$°000  HK$’000  HKS$’000

HER Discount rate
- FatE|Z FUEEHE - DB section of the Scheme (6,356) (6,572) 6,540 6,765
- BREEFPEARE S - Defined benefit pension scheme 5) ®)) 4 6
Long-term average rate of salary
et Elz FUEEHEN Y 2 increase for the DB section of the
EHIT T HE Scheme 6,456 6,688 (6,312) (6,534)
FUERFPERETE 2 EH]  Long-term pension increase rate for
RIREIE RIEE the defined benefit pension scheme 3 5 - -

- A R 4 T B E R B B A o Wy
58 4 340 B 5 0 R 1 2 B 50 O % -

TRINEZFRATHUERHANER
fi s 5T AT T At 18 A 52 0 & 8 (R 1S Al
st R AR B TR 5 R i B &8 2 18 A ) -

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes in
actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore it does not take
into account the correlations between the actuarial assumptions.

The following table sets out the expected benefit payments (including
benefits attributable to estimated future employee service and salary)
from the Plan based on the adopted actuarial assumptions:

FREHEFIX A &5
Expected benefit payments

—0=0 —O—

2020 2019

AT IT AT

{518 H BB Number of years after valuation date HKS$°000 HK$’000
14 1 year 43,685 29,954
248 2 years 48,419 50,253
34 3 years 44,689 49,344
4 £ 4 years 46,165 43,649
54 5 years 22,038 44,895
6 & 104 6 to 10 years 132,060 124,246
i 10 £ Over 10 years 176,364 231,646
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(a) MNEFEWERRSEH RN T ¢

16 Income tax

(a) Taxation charged in the consolidated income statement represents:

—0=0 —0O—7L
2020 2019
AT IT AT
HK$’000 HKS$°000
ARHIFTH - Current taxation:
- HEFER - Hong Kong profits tax 383,007 628,037
- Over-provision of taxation in respect of
- {EAEEAE R ER prior years (2,878) (10,559)
380,129 617,478
- VEIMRIE - Overseas taxation 159,237 130,324
PRIERRIA Deferred taxation:
- BRI =82 A R - Relating to the origination and reversal of
(GEFE30) temporary differences (Note 30) (18,964) 844
520,402 748,646

A S E A F Kl 5T R
i A LLRE R 16.5% (— O —Ju
1 16.5%)5H - BINRIAE
AR R £ Et S B g A DA S5 E
5E 15 BT AL ML 3R 1T A 2 B R GE
(b) A £ B A B bR B AT 8 A 2 8

HEBRE R &R ZR RN

st E 2GR Z AT

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the year is calculated at 16.5% (2019:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation on overseas profits
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

(b) The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical

amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
BT AT T
HK$°000 HK$°000
(el Profit before taxation 3,392,399 4,735,938
PIF2R 16.5% Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%
(O —JUE 1 16.5%) & (2019: 16.5%) 559,746 781,430
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
NI 2 & H T TE > s 2 taxation purposes 38,614 26,691
SRR > Ug AR TE 2 B Tax effect of income not subject to taxation (104,823) (69,580)
Effect of different taxation rates in other tax
B EH AW R R A G f R g2 jurisdictions 28,657 23,783
Over-provision of taxation in respect of prior
TP AR B years (2,878) (10,559)
KRR I T 1E < Effect of unrecognised tax losses 394 (444)
oAl Others 692 (2,675)
Pt Income tax 520,402 748,646
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16 Income tax (Continued)

(c) The income tax effects relating to
income are as follows:

components of other comprehensive

—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
A& i st IS 1% %0
Before- e Net-of- Before- RSt Net-of-
tax Income tax tax Income tax
amount tax amount amount tax amount
BETT BETIT BT AT T AT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Financial assets at fair value
DA A E A A through other
LTH W 2 B FE E comprehensive income
- A EESEE - Changes in fair value 35,199 5,552 40,751 144,777 (53,304) 91,473
- Transfer to income
- P AS R statement on disposal (123,620) - (123,620) (79,142) - (79,142)
- Transfer to income
- PARE RS A TR statement on impairment 63,218 - 63,218 116,375 - 116,375
FEAL B &N 5] 2 B Share of associates’ reserves (3,976) - (3,976) 28,015 - 28,015
Exchange difference on
translation of financial
R BRI METERY I 75 statements of overseas
HRERELNE R EH operations 381,570 - 381,570 (128,530) - (128,530)
Equity securities at fair value
DA A TE A H A through other
AL 2 B 77 comprehensive income
- NPAE R - Changes in fair value 131,089 3,064 134,153 (52,480) 1,984 (50,496)
Surplus on revaluation of bank
Hf R KER premises - - 393 - 393
FLERMETE ZHE Actuarial gains on defined
Y as benefit scheme 59,296 (9,783) 49,513 1,768 (292) 1,476
FENHAM EE RS Other comprehensive income/
(ZH) (expense) for the year 542,776 (1,167) 541,609 31,176 (51,612) (20,436)
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17 Cash, balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks

—0=0 —O—
2020 2019
BT ATIT
HK$’000 HKS$’000
HEH R ATIR At amortised cost
R4 Cash 755,465 1,154,308
FhEZE Balances with banks 15,623,612 13,088,998
I PR T Balances with central banks 19,877,021 2,697,673
[E]2E 2E HHE I Placements with banks
- A& H A ] EH - maturing within one month 23,681,240 33,201,428
- A—Z+ {3 XN F|E] - maturing between one and twelve months 18,436,689 8,904,114
42,117,929 42,105,542
EEEERK Gross loans and advances to banks 2,989,391 6,162,791
B A Impairment allowances
- BPEE - Stage 1 (7,378) (2,217)
81,356,040 65,207,095
At fair value through other comprehensive
DAEEESE AR IS income
[EEEEFK Gross loans and advances to banks 3,860,970 1,120,892
3,860,970 1,120,892
85,217,010 66,327,987

WZOZOHE+ZA =+ —
H o A 5 B 2 41 B B ROE E IR
HHY B R R AT G R B
477,806,000 5T (= O — JL4E : &
% 639,644,000 7T) -

The Group’s balances with central banks that are subject to exchange control and
regulatory restrictions amounted to HK$477,806,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019:

HK$639,644,000).
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BB - AP EERE S RREE
HEH

18 Derivative financial instruments

The following is a summary of the notional or contractual amounts, fair values and
credit risk weighted amounts of each significant type of derivatives, without taking
into account the effects of bilateral netting arrangements:

B N EE HFEl INEE
Y] Fair values GRIEH Fair values
Notional/ Notional/
contractual 5K &fE  contractual ‘i =Y
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
—0=0O —0=0O —0=0 —O— —O0O—h —O—
2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
BT BT BT BT BETT BT
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
INEEL Exchange rate contracts
HHAEEY Forward contracts 30,691,170 1,044,827 1,005,001 14,875,678 121,764 96,500
=g sinne Currency swaps 33,290,539 558,285 219,088 62,766,534 401,964 213,939
i HAAE Options written 239,868 - 2,572 215,920 - 2,965
I A HAfE Options purchased 305,126 3,552 - 276,330 2,708 -
64,526,703 1,606,664 1,226,661 78,134,462 526,436 313,404
FRELY Interest rate contracts
FllR A Interest rate swaps 21,410,897 13,740 57,446 21,392,909 57,787 76,086
REEE4Y Equity contracts
i HHHARE Options written - - - 115,432 - 4,063
W AR Options purchased - - - 115,432 4,063 -
- - - 230,864 4,063 4,063
85,937,600 1,620,404 1,284,107 99,758,235 588,286 393,553
% TEA244% 2B N4 The contractual amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of transactions
BEHEARZEHRZAXGE i AN{fLFEE  outstanding as at the end of the reporting period and they do not represent amounts
fg A/ o A TG AR ~ [E R HE  at risks. The derivative instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
FEE MG E) > 74 T HafgEF KA (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates
MEE)H A F(AE) - 74 & Fh  or equity prices relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative

BEENKABEZAVFEEEEAE
A B KA &) -

financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to time.
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18 Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

—0=0 —O—N
2020 ZOZLQ
AETIL AT T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
EEEfRtLE Credit risk weighted amount
ANESLY Exchange rate contracts 1,031,449 512,037
ES=XS) Interest rate contracts 3,565 64,334
HetE S Equity contracts R 9.288
1,035,014 585,659
EEREBLESEEME  Credit risk weighted amount refers to the amount as computed in accordance with the Banking
HEHE (BITEEAX)HEA) (Capital) Rules. The amount depends on the status of the counterparties and the maturity
MeTE > L& &% IR H L characteristics of the instruments. The risk weights used range from 0% to 150%.
FRGEF 2 IR E
Rl LA 2 S w5t
HefrRRAZEBILLEE
0% 150% -
19 DIAEEESEAIESEE 19 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
ZBRIEE
SRIEE
Financial assets
ME LA FE
EHiE AR fEEMLHE
Mandatorily  {HEEAEZSHEE
measured at Designated at
fair value fair value
through through =
profit or loss profit or loss Total
BT BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
—O0O=0OF 2020
(E¥E ez Debt securities
- HALT - Listed in Hong Kong 828,571 1,082,324 1,910,895
- BAMNET - Listed outside Hong Kong 1,309,653 770,320 2,079,973
- JEETH - Unlisted 83,276 16,856 100,132
2,221,500 1,869,500 4,091,000
AR o5 Equity securities
- HALEW - Listed in Hong Kong 131,653 - 131,653
- JE b - Unlisted 8,860 - 8,860
140,513 - 140,513
AR & E Equity investment fund
- FEEH - Unlisted 128,970 - 128,970
2,490,983 1,869,500 4,360,483
BT ARy Of which issued by:
- Central governments and central
- PR K TR ER T banks 740,238 - 740,238
- Banks and other financial
- SRAT R H A < Rt institutions 232,501 - 232,501
- - Corporate entities 1,518,244 1,869,500 3,387,744
2,490,983 1,869,500 4,360,483
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19 J%/%\ g{%ﬁf A3E25HE 19 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

SRR E

Financial assets

FE DL FAE

EEAERE fEEUAHE
Mandatorily  {EzE ATEZSHE

measured at fair Designated at fair

value through value through =i
profit or loss profit or loss Total
AETIT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
—O—h#& 2019
eV fice Debt securities
- HEET - Listed in Hong Kong 475,309 2,171,290 2,647,099
- BAMNET - Listed outside Hong Kong 2,269,751 1,125,225 3,394,976
- JEEH - Unlisted 15,499 323,589 339,088
2,761,059 3,620,104 6,381,163
AR 25 Equity securities
- B LEW - Listed in Hong Kong 179,532 - 179,532
- BAMNET - Listed outside Hong Kong 27,402 - 27,402
- JEEM - Unlisted 8,860 - 8,860
215,794 - 215,794
HEtEREE Equity investment fund
#LFE - Unlisted 139,764 - 139,764
3,116,617 3,620,104 6,736,721
HET AL Of which issued by:
- Central governments and central
- PO ERF K O ER T T banks 300,953 - 300,953
- Banks and other financial
- SRAT B EAM 4 Rl institutions 1,896,889 241,388 2,138,277
- ¥ - Corporate entities 918,775 3,378,716 4,297,491
3,116,617 3,620,104 6,736,721
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20 JBHE 20 Investments in securities

DI EEZE A M2 HEUZEs 2 Financial investments at fair value through other

=0=0 ZO—h

2020 2019
BETIT BT IT
HK$’000 HKS$’000

ESRIE comprehensive income
B % Debt securities 79,934,571 70,279,276
B RE % 25 Equity securities 1,088,729 1,125,516
81,023,300 71,404,792

TZ B AR YIR 7 R E Financial investments at amortised cost

B 5 Debt securities 1,892,409 892,577

ﬁﬁﬁ{% Impairment allowances
- F—PEE - Stage 1 (2,725) (1,315)
- BIEE - Stage 3 (163,990) (165,407)
1,725,694 725,855

82,748,994 72,130,647

ﬁﬁé%%ﬁmg}? » REEEF  The Group has designated some equity investments at fair value through other
LR REFG E Fe B DL B {EEE A comprehensive income for business strategic reasons subjected to internal stop loss
HA S % EF R 0 fE{hEEESF  limit control mechanism. The dividend income recognised from these equity

NS EIEPRAE et 5] - ELELHE  investments are as follows:

R AT
ZO0Z=0O ZO—7
2020 2019
BETIT BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
BRI EUZA Dividend income recognised
ﬁAEﬁEE{)BT—;ﬁZHﬂ%;ﬁ% Equity securities held at year end
Bk - Listed in Hong Kong 6,759 18,173
@&H:FE - Listed outside Hong Kong 2,910 1,787
- JEE - Unlisted 47,486 24,180
PENE HE 2 IR S Equity securities sold during the year
- HALT - Listed in Hong Kong 7,356 1,097
64,511 45,237

REEPNERNHEE (G FiatiEfE  During the year, the Group sold some of these equity investments as they have
BE > WRECRZEANE IEIEE  reached the internal stop loss limits. The details are as follows:

o FERBAI ¢

—0=0 —O—
2020 2019
AT T AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
EAHjEH%Z/\qP{E{E Fair value at disposal 245,355 77,423

NHERMEGESMEEFEMEE  Loss on disposal transferred from financial asset
A{%Ea/ﬁﬁﬂz& ,qaggjfa revaluation reserve to retained earnings (42,738) (19,258)
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20 BHEE (@) 20 Investments in securities (Continued)
SRIE
Financial investments
PAAEEE
T AEA
2HWER
At fair value 7S L T W
through other HfR
comprehensive At amortised &
income cost Total
AT BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
—0=0F 2020
eV fice Debt securities
- FEEW - Listed in Hong Kong 11,128,728 661,758 11,790,486
- BAMNET - Listed outside Hong Kong 32,383,235 881,124 33,264,359
- JEEH - Unlisted 36,422,608 182,812 36,605,420
79,934,571 1,725,694 81,660,265
AR 25 Equity securities
- HALN - Listed in Hong Kong 160,959 - 160,959
- BAMNET - Listed outside Hong Kong 48,541 - 48,541
- JE b - Unlisted 879,229 - 879,229
1,088,729 - 1,088,729
81,023,300 1,725,694 82,748,994
RS ER AYIRE > g5, Fair value of listed securities at
EEE amortised cost 1,548,416
HEBT N E - Of which issued by:
- Central governments and central
- PO ERF K O ER T T banks 23,402,841 678,606 24,081,447
- Banks and other financial
- SRAT R E A S Rk institutions 45,053,156 376,901 45,430,057
- 1 - Corporate entities 12,567,303 670,187 13,237,490
81,023,300 1,725,694 82,748,994
B SEE Included within debt securities are:
- A2 fEGE - Certificates of deposit held 11,312,179 174,384 11,486,563
- HEH - Treasury bills (including
(EESNE R 4 E 2) Exchange Fund Bills) 17,261,370 356,937 17,618,307
- HA{E A - Other debt securities 51,361,022 1,194,373 52,555,395
79,934,571 1,725,694 81,660,265
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20 BHEE (@) 20 Investments in securities (Continued)
ERIEE
Financial investments
PAAEEE
EJE/\,EF@
EGILNES
At fair value TSR AS
through other HIHE
comprehensive At amortised =i
income cost Total
AT AT AT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
—O—N%E 2019
eV fice Debt securities
- FEEW - Listed in Hong Kong 9,922,615 521,769 10,444,384
- BAMNET - Listed outside Hong Kong 14,528,980 21,125 14,550,105
- JEEH - Unlisted 45,827,681 182,961 46,010,642
70,279,276 725,855 71,005,131
AR 25 Equity securities
- BA&LH - Listed in Hong Kong 368,061 - 368,061
- BN ET - Listed outside Hong Kong 49,494 - 49,494
- JE b - Unlisted 707,961 - 707,961
1,125,516 - 1,125,516
71,404,792 725,855 72,130,647
SR ATIME Y g%\ Fair value of listed securities at
FEE amortised cost 544,053
HET AL Of which issued by:
- Central governments and central
- PO ERF K O ER T T banks 35,115,656 - 35,115,656
- Banks and other financial
- $RT R EH A 4 phists institutions 25,418,006 175,181 25,593,187
- 1 - Corporate entities 10,871,130 550,674 11,421,804
71,404,792 725,855 72,130,647
BB - Included within debt securities are:
- A2 fEGE - Certificates of deposit held 6,873,501 175,181 7,048,682
- HEH - Treasury bills (including
(EESNE R 4 E 2) Exchange Fund Bills) 32,321,313 - 32,321,313
- HA{E A - Other debt securities 31,084,462 550,674 31,635,136
70,279,276 725,855 71,005,131
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21 Advances and other accounts

21 SRR AR
() SRR HAMRTE

(a) Advances and other accounts

—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$°000 HKS$’°000
B SE AT RE At amortised cost
FEERK Advances to customers 187,069,677 174,248,232
PSR Trade bills 402,921 2,047,858
JEETFIE Accrued interest 1,047,871 1,215,032
HArARIE Other accounts
- JEULRE - Insurance premium receivable 177,669 136,676
- PNEEFA AR GFREESLD - Recoverable from reinsurers (Note 31) 278,136 264,549
- JEUZ K EAREIE - Accounts and other receivable 3,000,140 2,277,068
3,455,945 2,678,293
B A Impairment allowances
gL - Stage 1 (375,652) (158,466)
Nl = - Stage 2 (138,324) (72,076)
- BEES - Stage 3 (816,409) (887,295)
(1,330,385) (1,117,837)
190,646,029 179,071,578
At fair value through other
A EEEZEAR M2 EKZE comprehensive income
ZEE Advances to customers 394,773 171,678
ek Trade bills 6,467,569 8,688,707
6,862,342 8,860,385
197,508,371 187,931,963
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21 SRR EHMRE (@)
(b) BETHEMHESY

FEERNEEMERE MBS
WZEE > Hoatran T

21 Advances and other accounts (Continued)
(b) Finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Advances to customers include investments in finance lease receivables and hire
purchase contracts, analysed as follows:

—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
BT AHTIT
HK$’000 HKS$’000
[ 15 & SE AR Gross investment, receivable
- —FERN - Within one year 10,707 21,686
- —IFELLEEAHFE - After one year but within five years 14,358 25,331
- HEDE - After five years 1,500 1,852
26,565 48,869
RERHLZ BB YA Unearned finance income (213) (751)
& FEE Net investment 26,352 48,118

MEHE B ENZRE RS
iy -

The net investment in finance lease receivables and hire purchase contracts is
analysed as follows:

—0z=0 —O—h

2020 2019

BETIT AT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

—EN Within one year 10,532 21,139
—iED FERE After one year but within five years 14,320 25,127
HAEDLE After five years 1,500 1,852
26,352 48,118

AEBZHREHERHEESY
JIREHEBELMEERNZRE
CHEBEE(ZO —LE
AZOZO0OFE+ A=+ —
H > A% > K o] gy (0] gl & fi
B RS 2 RAE 2§ & M
R A& 260,000 TT(ZO—JL
o A 170,000 9T) ©

No unguaranteed residual values were included in the gross investment in finance
lease receivables and hire purchase contracts of the Group (2019: Nil).

As at 31 December 2020, the impairment allowances for uncollectible finance lease
receivables and hire purchase contracts of the Group included in the impairment
allowances for the receivables amounted to HK$260,000 (2019: HK$170,000).
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22 [ftfE A EiER

THRATHR _OZ0F+2H
=t—H HAEZMELE:

22 Interests in subsidiaries

The following is a list of the subsidiaries
December 2020:

E&TK
SR A
Issued and paid up
share capital

owned by the Bank at 31

FHEIE
Place of B8 Nominal
Ry incorporation Number of  value per
2 Name BEEHEL  and operation shares share FEH  Principal activities
Bk FEREBE AT CMB Wing Lung EwH Hong Kong 29,000,000 AEA REBZETS Insurance
Insurance Company n.a. underwriting
Limited*
gk EmMEAR CMB Wing Lung Capital & Hong Kong 7,000,000 Rl W %5 Financial consultancy
A= Limited* na. MR services
HErEkEM B AIRAE? CMB Wing Lung Finance & Hong Kong 2,500,000 R AL % Provision of
Limited* na. g% financial services
HEklEEEEHAR CMB Wing Lung Asset & Hong Kong 2,565,450 K EEEMH Asset management
=ik Management Limited* n.a.
kI ESAERAT? CMB Wing Lung EwH Hong Kong 300,000 Rl (E56%E% Trustee services
(Trustee) Limited* n.a.
Kk ERIEER AR CMB Wing Lung Hik Hong Kong 250,000 Kl (rEEEER Insurance broking
A=k Insurance Brokers n.a.
Limited*
ek EREAER/AT? CMB Wing Lung Agency & Hong Kong 50,000 Ny R VR YR R i Insurance agency
Limited* n.a.
e klEZsRE AR CMB Wing Lung EH Hong Kong 1,000 Rl ZstE Nominee services
ANk (Nominees) Limited? na. R
Bk EEEAER/AT? CMB Wing Lung Property & Hong Kong 1,000 Rl YEEHE Property management
Management Limited* n.a.
BES AR T Hongnet Limited** i Hong Kong 1,000 iRl BEEE Investment holding
n.a.
Wingspan Incorporated*  Wingspan Incorporated® 5[ US.A. 1,500,000 US$1l WA Property holding
Wing Lung Opportunities Wing Lung Opportunities BHSEE Cayman Islands 36,696 US$1,000 J&&ER Investment holding
Fund Limited® Fund Limited®
Wing Lung Wing Lung Opportunities FiSEEE Cayman Islands 24,788  US$1,000 HEHE Investment holding
Opportunities Master Master Fund Limited®
Fund Limited®
Wing Lung Growth Wing Lung Growth BHEHE Cayman Islands 433200 HK$1,000 &% Investment holding

Fund Il Segregated
Portfolio*

Fund 111 Segregated
Portfolio*
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22 Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

E&TR
EEREZBAR
Issued and paid up
share capital

EREE
Place of B8 Nominal
Ry incorporation Number of value per
Py Name BB and operation shares share FEEZEFE  Principal activities
Ik EAR A TN Sea Wing Investments G Hong Kong 1,000 RiEHl YEEAE Property holding
Limited” n.a.
forsk ER I E EH CMB Wing Lung Equity 15 AR People’s Republic (FFF a) (FREa) RHEERE Equity investment
CEINBIRA TN Investment Management  F:F{I[EK] of China (Note a) (Notea) & management
(Shenzhen) Limited”
AR EA Antopex Limited” L British Virgin 1 US$l (St Trustee services
R Islands
fREEA PR A FIA Bulleria Limited R British Virgin 1 US$1 {E:tEE Trustee services
R E Islands
$REARA TN Cameland Limited” L British Virgin 1 US$l {SEL% Trustee services
R Islands
E AR AT Deeright Limited? R British Virgin 1 US$l (SELEH Trustee services
R E Islands
BEARA TN Eaglearn Limited”? L British Virgin 1 US$l {SEL% Trustee services
mLE Islands

BFZOZOFWEA =+ H » K17 E

H #F CMFHK Fortune 100 Fixed Income SP 1

A A HE 4 -

# HATE2EEEFRAZINE AH -

N HATEBEBERAZNBAE -

¢ WZOZOHE+ZH="1+—H » KT Wing Lung
Opportunities Fund Limited ( "#%54 | ) ST
96.65% (—O—J15-: 96.21%) > Wing Lung Opportunities
Master Fund Limited F#%R& & HBGH -

* RZOZOFE+Z R TER -

() FEMEA AR 13,000,000 7T

At 29 April 2020, the Bank redeemed all of its interests in CMFHK
Fortune 100 Fixed Income SP.

# Wholly and directly held by the Bank.

A Wholly and indirectly held by the Bank.

@ At 31 December 2020, the Bank directly holds 96.65% (2019: 96.21%) of
the shares issued by Wing Lung Opportunities Fund Limited (the
“Fund”). Wing Lung Opportunities Master Fund Limited is wholly and
directly held by the Fund.

* Liquidation process commenced in December 2020.

Note: (a) Registered capital was RMB 13,000,000.
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23 HEZEHE SR

23 Interests in jointly controlled entities

~0=0 ~0O—H
2020 2019
AT AT
HK$’°000 HK$’000
JEEA & P R Share of net assets 221,380 203,071
REEZ LEEHIERZERNOT * The particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled entities are as follows:
BREEL
Btk
= Place of WA RS Proportion
)23 incorporation Ownership of voting Principal
218 Name 2 and operation interest power  EEEEE  activities
SRR A TR A F) > Bank Consortium Holding BB Hong Kong 13.33% 14.29%  f2{tB{K  Provision of
Limited* sT#EIZ {5 trustee,
TR administration
&R and custodian
services for
retirement
schemes
RERE AR AT Joint Electronic Teller & Hong Kong (FEF2 a) (3EfEa) $EHLEE;  Provision of
Services Limited* (Note a) (Notea) fEEM > ATM network
4G4RS services
SR E R A TR AT BC Reinsurance Limited & Hong Kong 21.00% 21.00%  FH{EFE¥E  Reinsurance
% business

Db S [E 2 ) B A 2 A SR B Y BRI RS £ - DASREE A
SEEREMTE P RBES -

* HRTEERA 2 I

A @ ASRESAAIMKRE 2 — WIE
WA N E 2 R L - ARERA
ZA BT T HANR B ER A
fez 20% - 50N EH HoAth L i A
Bl - EAENEREE > TAL BREER Y
AT ERENRER - N _OZ0%
TEA=T—H AREEEAZAE
HERKEZ 261 (O —N
H:2.67%) L -

(R B AL EIZER A AR

The above jointly controlled entities are strategic partners for the Group to widen the
service types to be provided to the Group’s customers.

* Directly held by the Bank

Note: (a) The Group is one of the five founding members which together have a
controlling interest in the company. The Group holds 20% of the ‘A’ ordinary
shares issued by the company to its founding members. The company also has
other class of ordinary shares. Class A ordinary shares have the right to vote on
the allocation of the company’s asset upon the winding up of the company. As at
31 December 2020, the Group is entitled to 2.67% (2019: 2.67%) of dividends
declared by the company.

Aggregate information of jointly controlled entities that are not individually
material:

—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
AT T AT IT
HK$’°000 HKS$°000

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s

share of those jointly controlled

FEBEEZ S EEH BRI entities

JE B SR Profit from continuing operations 44,444 36,462
ECAt < S HY Other comprehensive expense - -
S HEU G SERH Total comprehensive income 44,444 36,462
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24 BREATEIHERR 24 Interests in associates
—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
BT AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
JE A 5 Share of net assets 3,633,892 3,074,800
REHZBEAFRZERMOT * The particulars of the Group’s associates are as follows:
Place of Particulars Interest
=S A incorporation Principal B ZBEHfT of issued fEEREA  held
218 Name BEEHREE  and operation FEER activities  BYEEfE shares held 25 indirectly
HET(TLEE  Professional Tk Hong Kong R E Insurance JEEHZ Unlisted 27% 27%
REAEIR/AT  Liability agency piiclitg ordinary
Underwriting shares
Services
Limited
T AEEE  Hong Kong 5 Hong Kong ANERE Life JE Bz Unlisted 16.67% 16.67%
EIRAE Life Insurance B insurance il e ordinary
Limited business shares
HENE SR Merchants HEE A People’s THER SRl Consumer  JE izt Unlisted 25.85% 25.85%
BRAE™* Union ERALH Republic of Jil5%cs finance iiling ordinary
Consumer China service shares
Finance
Company
Limited*

DUERRE N SR A EAT RIS -

> HEARITEERAZEE AT * Directly held by the Bank
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24 BEAEER &

HAEEAERZENEE N E 2
BRHBEA T -

DUREIA R Rl g ia (R B s 4
) 4mEdATiE N SIS T R
B

AR ERAIRAE

24 Interests in associates (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material associate is

set out below:

The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the

associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

Merchants Union Consumer Finance Company Limited:

—0=0O —O0—h
2020 2019
AT T AT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
=N [F Gross amounts of associate
BE Assets 129,731,892 103,999,600
=T Liabilities 116,598,037 93,045,598
FEZS Equity 13,133,855 10,954,002
HEUES Gross income 19,853,051 16,344,001
peSravAll Net profit 1,981,765 1,636,809
A s 4E%H Total comprehensive income 1,981,765 1,636,809
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in
HAREERE A EIRVHER associate
NN = Gross amounts of net assets of associate 13,133,855 10,954,002
REFHHEE N\ GFEE TR Group’s share of net assets of associate 3,394,673 2,831,252
{E RIS AN\ T 2 8ISk - Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material:
—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
HEETIT AT T
HK$°000 HKS$°000
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share
REBUEZ FRHFE A SRV of associates
TR B RHEE R (B51R) Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 660 (994)
BRI Gaan) e Other comprehensive (expense)/income (3,976) 28,014
2 G/ s EEE Total comprehensive (expense)/income (3,316) 27,020
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25 REEY)E 25 Investment properties
—0=0O —O0—h
2020 2019
AT AT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
»—H—H At 1 January 3,171,350 3,266,150
Net reclassification between premises
J B S YR B and investment properties (142,250) (30,433)
B HEEEE Fair value losses on revaluation (196,810) (64,367)
P H=4+—H
(EHEMEETER) At 31 December (professional valuation) 2,832,290 3,171,350
—0=0O —O0O—
2020 2019
AT AT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
AL E A ZTHEIPE - Leasehold properties in Hong Kong:
- BREAMEYY (A+HDLL) - Long-term leases (over 50 years) 390,750 429,710
- Medium-term leases
- HATHYY (FZEA ) (between 10 to 50 years) 2,441,540 2,741,640
2,832,290 3,171,350
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All investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2020 by capitalising
the net rental income using the Investment Method of Valuation. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of surveyors, A.G. Wilkinson &
Associates (Surveyors) Limited, who have among their staff Fellows of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and

category of property being valued.

The table below presents the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
measured on a recurring basis, categorised into the fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13. The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is based on whether the inputs used in the valuation techniques are
observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained
from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Group’s market
assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the following fair value

hierarchy:

. Level 1 - Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an

identical instrument.

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly
(i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs.
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25 EIE @

25 Investment properties (Continued)

E=E

Level 3
—0=0 —O0—h
2020 2019
AT AT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000

KHE M AP EESE - Recurring fair value measurement:
Leasehold properties in Hong

AL EAAEZ HEIYIZE Kong 2,832,290 3,171,350

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. The Group recognises transfers

!
&

RE W

SR

DU R A& 51 B 48 OR B ) DL &1 & 6 5y
AN TEHEREREIENRENEZ
BERATEZNRABBEERK -

between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period

in which they occur.

The table below sets out information about significant unobservable inputs
used at year end in measuring investment properties categorised as level 3

in the fair value hierarchy.

RRIEME
Carrying value
—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
AT AT T
{HERTS Valuation techniques HKS$’000 HK$’000
WEGE T E Investment method 2,832,290 3,171,350
EATAERN i T AR A B B
B AR Range AEE BB
{EERTH Significant —0=0 —O0O—N Fair value measurement
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs 2020 2019 sensitivity to unobservable inputs

REMETTE

Investment method

Qi lsenEs
Market yield

misiHe
Market rent

2.73%-8.57%  2.73%-8.53%

MG R E R EF

5 1B HEERY N R
Significant increase in market yield
would result in a lower fair value

FE¥HR F¥HR

15 TR A 16 TR

W 945 5T A5 985 IT TS E R B
HKS$15 to HK$16 to 15 B EER BT
HK$945 HK$985

per square feet  per square feet

Significant increase in market rent
would result in a higher fair value

R A GERNX S HER
R BTAREMER —O0 =0
A=t HE O Ui
G ER TR S
Ik

Note: Due to the limited number of comparable transactions, all
investment properties are measured using investment method as at

31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.
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25 EVFE &

A5 E DL =
¥-ME i,ﬁﬂ BRI - B
s 1k

25 Investment properties (Continued)

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of up to 4 years. There were no contingent
rentals included in leases for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

At 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments receivable under

non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

—0=0O —O—7
2020 2019
BET T BT
HK$°000 HKS$’000
+ H S AT Land and buildings
- —FEDIA - Within one year 64,562 99,174
- —FELIBEFEN - After one year but within two years 16,295 37,939
- REDBEZFERN - After two years but within three years 1,717 3,938
82,574 141,051

26 THE THhiELs

26 Interests in leasehold land

KNEBEZFHEE - M B TES - The Group’s interests in leasehold land represent prepaid land lease premium
wE o HIEBEVFESFAOT - and their net book values are analysed as follows:
—0=0 —O—JL
2020 2019
AT IT AT T
HK$’000 HKS$°000
»n—H—H At 1 January 157,674 161,427
HEHITE GERE 11) Depreciation of leasehold land (Note 11) (3,753) (3,753)
Bt+—H=+—H At 31 December 153,921 157,674
EEERA - In Hong Kong held on:
- REAMESY (A+HLIL) - Long-term leases (over 50 years) 64,834 65,211
- Medium-term leases (between 10 to 50
- TEIHEY (TERH) years) 89,087 92,463
153,921 157,674

130



ARKERITARAE]

CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

PR et

Notes to the Financial Statements

27 LAY Rt

27 Other properties and equipment

RS E
Right of use assets
TV ES L TV ES L
Furniture Furniture
FE and FE and &t
Premises equipment Premises equipment Total
BETIT AT BT T AT BT IT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
[B&N Cost
HW_OZO%—H—H At 1 January 2020 936,763 1,889,019 395,356 204 3,221,342
PER 72%H Exchange difference (151) 4,182 5,150 1) 9,180
fHE&s Lease modifications - - (4,356) - (4,356)
by Additions - 270,015 80,569 444 351,028
HE Disposals (293) (13,216) (38,846) (203) (52,558)
Net reclassification between
premises and investment
BB EY)EE S properties 142,250 - - - 142,250
RZOZ—OFE+—H=1+—H _ At 31 December 2020 1,078,569 2,150,000 437,873 444 3,666,886
ZRETE Accumulated depreciation
H=O=—OFE—H—H At 1 January 2020 261,388 1,374,527 92,565 153 1,728,633
BEE £ 75 4H Exchange difference (52) 3,514 3,961 12 7,435
RAEFEITEE GEfE 11) Charge for the year (Note 11) 22,803 168,370 123,083 124 314,380
HEE Written back on disposal (104) (12,782) (38,846) (203) (51,935)
R_O—OFE+—"H=1+—H _ At 31 December 2020 284,035 1,533,629 180,763 86 1,998,513
MR FHE Net book value
R_OZOFE+—"H=+—H  At31 December 2020 794,534 616,371 257,110 358 1,668,373
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21 HMYIEREHE (&)

27 Other properties and equipment (Continued)

EREEE
Right of use assets
R R 3% R R 3%
Furniture Furniture
FE and FE and &F
Premises equipment Premises equipment Total
BT T AT BT T AT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
D% Cost
W_O—hF—H—H At 1 January 2019 906,463 1,849,160 224,533 206 2,980,362
[ 7 A4 Exchange difference (197) (1,279) (1,355) 2) (2,833)
by Additions - 49,301 172,178 - 221,479
HE Disposals - (8,163) - - (8,163)
Net reclassification between
premises and investment
BB E properties 30,433 - - - 30,433
Revaluation surplus on premises
transferred to investment
FREEEG R AR AR S5 properties 393 - - - 393
Less: elimination of accumulated
B R RAHTEEIRSHE depreciation on revaluation (329) - - - (329)
R=O—E+_"H=+—H  At31 December 2019 936,763 1,889,019 395,356 204 3,221,342
EETE Accumulated depreciation
HN_O—E—H—H At 1 January 2019 243,582 1,243,614 - - 1,487,196
BEE £ 75 5H Exchange difference (68) (1,005) (454) (14) (1,541)
RAEFEITEE GEfE 1) Charge for the year (Note 11) 18,203 139,656 93,019 167 251,045
HHEE (O] Written back on disposal - (7,738) - - (7,738)
EtRe2iiGs Elimination on revaluation (329) - - - (329)
BNoO—NE+—"H=+—H At31 December 2019 261,388 1,374,527 92,565 153 1,728,633
MRHEFE Net book value
NO—JE+"H=+—H  At31 December 2019 675,375 514,492 302,791 51 1,492,709
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21 HMEkaHE (&)

27 Other properties and equipment (Continued)

G 2 IR FE RS ¢ The net book value of premises comprises:
—0=0 —O—7
2020 2019
AT IT AT IT
HK$°000 HK$°000
NN E B ZHEIE - Leasehold properties in Hong Kong:
- RIS (A+4FERLL) - Long-term leases (over 50 years) 340,889 345,973
- THAFEEY (FZ2AHF) - Medium-term leases (between 10 to 50 years) 428,270 302,699
769,159 648,672
AL EINZ FHEIE - Leasehold properties outside Hong Kong:
- KA - Freehold 21,497 22,467
- HHITHYY (TZE A A4F) - Medium-term leases (between 10 to 50 years) 3,878 4,236
25,375 26,703
794,534 675,375
28 BEFRK 28 Deposits from customers
—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
TEHAER AL IR Demand deposits and current accounts 36,844,979 26,709,309
EHEEK Savings deposits 86,211,771 59,702,409
TE R BB HI{E R Time, call and notice deposits 147,065,108 156,724,225
270,121,858 243,135,943
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9EATH 29 Capital instruments
—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
AT IT AT T
HK$°000 HKS$°000
BT 2 1REEHE Subordinated debts issued
ZE7T 400,000,000 Jriz s Rk A US$400,000,000 subordinated fixed rate notes,
YIIRNE BRETE (I a) measured at amortised cost (Note a) 3,097,196 3,110,591
3,097,196 3,110,591
BAMERR T Additional equity instruments
A E#% 1,000,000,000 Tk 485 RMB1,000,000,000 undated non-cumulative
JEERBREETLASSE GEED) subordinated capital securities (Note b) - 1,236,600
271 170,000,000 Tk 485 US$170,000,000 undated non-cumulative
JEEREBEEARZE S FFEc) subordinated capital securities (Note c) 1,321,240 1,321,240
7T 400,000,000 Tk 485 US$400,000,000 undated non-cumulative
JEEREBEEARESR EFREd) subordinated capital securities (Note d) 3,126,740 3,126,740
ZE7T 260,000,000 STk 485 US$260,000,000 undated non-cumulative
JEEREBEEARE S (Ffe) subordinated capital securities (Note €) 2,023,781 2,023,781
A E#% 1,000,000,000 Tk 4850 RMB1,000,000,000 undated non-cumulative
JEEREBEEARE S GFEET subordinated capital securities (Note f) 1,102,812 -
7,574,573 7,708,361

AbFE f(a) [t 35T 400,000,000 E B &

(b)

ZIN

| | W%
VS

ERN_-_O—t®H+—HZ=Z+=H
BT WHAERAEBR I INE
K-BEEHEN _-_O_tHE+—H
T HEH BEEEEEN B
OZZ®+—HZ+=ZH- -H&T
HESREMEBH S HE HE
B H B EFR3T5%HE - %
iiﬁiﬁ Hig o b ZE B K E 5
EHEEHERL MM EgE

a%*amilﬁiﬁlﬁﬁ%
ERIM1758 1 - WEEB 2 A& B
Y R K g KB B AN
fi 84 -

I A B 1,000,000,000 7T Ak 49 AU
FEBHRBREEALAZZRUFREL A
FHE I —RER - WLEHFR
O—HEZ H_Hﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁz
ERAE HMEEAMEEEH SO
TOF - HAWUH - S ERE
F55.50% - WEARAF RN O
O% — 5[ -

Note: (a)

(b)
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This represents US$400,000,000 subordinated fixed rate
notes qualifying as supplementary capital of the Group issued
on 22 November 2017. The notes will mature on 22
November 2027 with an optional redemption date falling on
22 November 2022. Interest at 3.75% per annum is payable
on a semi-annual basis for the first 5 years from the date of
issue to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the notes
are not redeemed, the interest rate will reset and the notes
will bear interest at 5 year US Treasury Rate on that date plus
175 basis points. The principal of the notes will be written
down if a non-viability event occurs.

This represents RMB1,000,000,000 undated non-cumulative
subordinated capital securities qualifying as additional Tier 1
capital of the Group. The securities were issued to the Bank’s
holding company on 3 February 2015 with the first call date
falling on 4 February 2020. Distribution rate for the securities
is set at 5.50% per annum. The capital securities were
redeemed on 4 February 2020.
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29&8ATE (&)

29 Capital instruments (Continued)
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(c) This represents US$170,000,000 undated non-cumulative
subordinated capital securities qualifying as additional Tier 1
capital of the Group. The securities were issued on 27 April
2017 with the first call date falling on 28 April 2022.
Distribution rate for the securities is set at 5.20% per annum
for the first 5 years from the date of issue to the first call
date. Distribution rate will be reset thereafter every 5 years at
the then prevailing 5 year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 3.13% per
annum if the capital securities are not called.

(d) This represents US$400,000,000 undated non-cumulative
subordinated capital securities qualifying as additional Tier 1
capital of the Group. The securities were issued on 24
January 2019 with the first call date falling on 24 January
2024. Distribution rate for the securities is set at 6.50% per
annum for the first 5 years from the date of issue to the first
call date. Distribution rate will be reset thereafter every 5
years at the then prevailing 5 year U.S. Treasury Rate plus
3.948% per annum if the capital securities are not called.

(e) This represents US$260,000,000 undated non-cumulative
subordinated capital securities qualifying as additional Tier 1
capital of the Group. The securities were issued to the Bank’s
holding company on 27 December 2019 with the first call
date falling on 27 December 2024. Distribution rate for the
securities is set at 5.23% per annum for the first 5 years from
the date of issue to the first call date. Distribution rate will be
reset thereafter every 5 years at the then prevailing 5 year
U.S. Treasury Rate plus 3.50% per annum if the capital
securities are not called.

(f)  This represents RMB1,000,000,000 undated non-cumulative
subordinated capital securities qualifying as additional Tier 1
capital of the Group. The securities were issued to the Bank’s
holding company on 27 February 2020 with the first call date
falling on 27 February 2025. Distribution rate for the
securities is set at 4.78% per annum for the first 5 years from
the date of issue to the first call date. Distribution rate will be
reset thereafter every 5 years at the then prevailing rate of
five-year Chinese government notes plus 2.12% per annum if
the capital securities are not called.

The principal of the additional equity instruments will be written
down if a non-viability event occurs. Distribution is payable
semi-annually, and may be cancelled at the sole discretion of the
Bank. Cancelled distribution is not cumulative.
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30 BWIEIRH

B & & W BRI 2 N T SR 2 MR AR R TR B

&) ZHRE D > RERNZESHOT

30 Deferred taxation

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised

in the consolidated statement of financial position and the

movements during the year are as follows:

piliv::3 'R
TREITEE TEFIER
Accelerated  Retirement TR
tax benefit Impairment REEE HAth &st
depreciation obligation  allowances Tax loss Others Total
AT BT AW AW AT AW
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HNZOZOFE—H—H At 1 January 2020 (74,574) (5,237) 78,595 (2,260) (3,476)
(Charged)/credited to income statement
FEYGESFEER)/ IR FERE 16(a) (Note 16(a)) (19,195) 3,362 36,457 (1,660) 18,964
1EH A A U S (FOFR)/ECHE (Charged)/credited to other
(E¥F2 33) comprehensive income (Note 33) (9,783) 8,616 (1,167)
WO —OF+—H=+—H At 31 December 2020 (93,769) (11,658) 115,052 4,696 14,321
H_O—E—H—H At 1 January 2019 (87,617) (5,708) 77,644 13,322 51,339 48,980
Credited/(charged) to income statement
UGS RS0 IR/ (FER) (G1RE 16(2)) (Note 16(a)) 13,043 763 951 (13,322) (2,279) (844)
Charged to other comprehensive income
1EHA 2 T TBR GERE 33) (Note 33) (292) (51,320) (51,612)
N _O—NFE+—H=+—H At 31 December 2019 (74,574) (5,237) 78,595 (2,260) (3,476)
—0=0 —O—
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$°000 HKS$°000
NSt %%Hjtiﬂ%%ﬁ}lﬁﬁ%ﬁ Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
IR IEE TR consolidated statement of financial position 46,746 27,347
PSR T2 RESE Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
Z IR R T B BT consolidated statement of financial position (32,425) (30,823)
14,321 (3,476)

I8 TE 5L R 4 7 7 U B AEL R B %5 L 25 7T 0B
8 R A JE SRR s R 2 T ek 46 2 g
ERSETUHR - R _O_O&F
= R R R IE S
(O —JUAE ¢ ) o] 45 8 DLIE 5 R A
TE SRR U A -

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the
extent that realisation of the deferred tax benefit through future profits is
probable. At 31 December 2020, the Group had no unrecognised tax
losses (2019: Nil) to be carried forward to set off against future taxable

profits.
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31 Other accounts and accruals

—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
BT AT
HKS$’000 HK$°000
JE (1] Interest payable 864,368 1,185,244
REEE Insurance liabilities 2,389,612 2,156,250
THE&AE Lease liabilities 281,960 311,064
FET B H A METE Accounts and other payable 4,052,305 12,713,259
SR M emiEREL Impairment allowances on loan commitments and
JEE ZE financial guarantee contracts 31,576 51,940
7,619,821 16,417,757
REAFEITUT ¢ Insurance liabilities are analysed as follows:
—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
AT T AHTIT
HK$°000 HKS$°000
4EE Gross
CE W RIEKEX
TR Claims reported and loss adjustment expenses 889,715 771,686
B ERE R RE Claims incurred but not reported 712,904 712,286
RHAHRE Unearned premiums 377,821 349,697
R ZI A JE e 24 Provision for unexpired risk 100,465 108,445
At Others 308,707 214,136
TRl & E4ERE Total insurance liabilities, gross 2,389,612 2,156,250
AP R AU [ Recoverable from reinsurers
CEWMZREREX
stk Claims reported and loss adjustment expenses 147,355 119,650
A HAE R RE Claims incurred but not reported 77,532 95,478
AR E Unearned premiums 53,249 49,421
AR AT G CREE & E Total reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities
4EEE (FFFE 21()) (Note 21(a)) 278,136 264,549
i Net
CEWMZREREX
aantiEs Claims reported and loss adjustment expenses 742,360 652,036
EEAEHARER I EE Claims incurred but not reported 635,372 616,808
KHA T RE Unearned premiums 324,572 300,276
R ZI A i 24 Provision for unexpired risk 100,465 108,445
HAh Others 308,707 214,136
Nl Total insurance liabilities, net 2,111,476 1,891,701

EEWMIREREE HBEBEAZHAERK
EXNREEHRERZAEBREHEY
B o] e B R RS P el 2 EEE o R O =
OF+ZH=Z=+—-HERZO—-NE+=
A=t—HZafBKER e HEILA
HA > Wb BIIHE -

The gross claims reported, the loss adjustment expenses liabilities and the
liability for claims incurred but not reported are net of expected
recoveries from salvage and subrogation. The amounts for salvage and
subrogation at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are not
separately disclosed as they are not material.
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32 R 32 Share capital
—0=0O —O0—h
2020 2019
a4 BT e85 AT T
No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HKS$°000
BT RS EREA Issued and fully paid:
S Ordinary shares 232,190,115 1,160,951 232,190,115 1,160,951
EFEREEAEHEERAEE IR ER » The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared
NEHENEAT2 g% FLLEK —Z/ 53 from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
e - fr A S B S AT 2 e FEEZ  Bank All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Bank’s residual
P =R = A AT net assets.
33 ftE 33 Reserves
AEH The Group
i
il ERIEE
FEREE 46
Bank Financial
KA premises asset  HAhEEE  REEF]
Capital revaluation revaluation Other Retained &5
reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
WETT BT W ABEToT BT A%
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
W-_O—OF—H—H At 1 January 2020 57,500 592,798 (158,109) 661,759 36,708,762 37,862,710
Financial assets at fair value
DA EEE A M 2T through other comprehensive
Wit 2 Rl income
N En e - Changes in fair value - 35,199 - 35,199
- Transfer to income
- AHVERRE AU S statement on disposal - (123,620) - (123,620)
- Transfer to income
- BB A SR statement on impairment - 63,218 - 63,218
Equity securities at fair value
AN EEE A M 2T through other comprehensive
Wit~ B 36 75 income
- NEE R - Changes in fair value - 131,089 - 131,089
- A EREE A (R - Transfer to retained earnings
el on disposal - 39,386 - (39,386) -
FE(EH =\ T Share of associates’ reserves (10,011) 6,035 - - (3,976)
Share of jointly controlled entities’
I fiks S [ 2 1 e et reserves - 173 (173) -
reasi-pravill Profit for the year - - 2,872,237 2,872,237
[E =% Exchange difference - 381,570 381,570
Actuarial gains on defined benefit
FUERAETE A S s scheme - - 59,296 59,296
Effect of deferred taxation on
Hoh S AR TE H BR A other comprehensive income
TRIE> 28 (3H12 30) items (Note 30) - 8,616 - (9,783) (1,167)
Redemption of additional equity
EETIMELS THE instruments - - 121,600 121,600
Distribution for additional equity
ZEIMEZ T B instruments - - (435,171) (435,171)
NZOZO%
+—HA=+—H At 31 December 2020 57,500 582,787 1,814 1,043,502 39,277,382 40,962,985
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33 fEH (&)

33 Reserves (Continued)

BT The Bank
Efk
Hih SREE
BERHE =40
Bank Financial
premises asset HAnEERE el prayill
revaluation  revaluation Other Retained =
reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
BT BT  EBETIT AETT BB TT
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HNZOZO%F—H—H At 1 January 2020 396,557 (180,553) 582,302 34,324,454 35,122,760
DI EESE A A2z Financial assets at fair value through
SREE other comprehensive income
- ONE(E S - Changes in fair value - 35,199 - - 35,199
- Transfer to income statement on
- AHERFE AT disposal - (123,620) - - (123,620)
- Transfer to income statement on
- RRERFEE A = impairment - 63,218 - - 63,218
DA EEE RS AE A 25> Equity securities at fair value through
REfEsE % other comprehensive income
- ONAE{E S - Changes in fair value - 150,139 - - 150,139
- Transfer to retained earnings on
- AR A SRR A disposal - 22,423 - (22,423) -
pc eyl Profit for the year - - - 1,960,152 1,960,152
[ Z=%E Exchange difference - - 329,244 - 329,244
Actuarial gains on defined benefit
FUEEHETE A EE scheme - - - 59,296 59,296
HAth 2w ERIE H EEAERRIE > Effect of deferred taxation on other
7 comprehensive income items - 5,552 - (9,783) (4,231)
Redemption of additional equity
EEEMER TE instruments - - - 121,600 121,600
Distribution for additional equity
ZEAMES T B0 instruments - - - (435,171) (435,171)
HRoO—OF+—_HA=+—H At 31 December 2020 396,557 (27,642) 911,546 35,998,125 37,278,586
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33 A (§)

33 Reserves (Continued)

REHE The Group
E=Uh
=il BREEE
5 EE k(A
Bank Financial
&N premises asset A  CREDEA
Capital revaluation revaluation Other Retained &%
reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
BT T BT BT BT BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
HN_O—JuE—HB—H At 1 January 2019 57,500 582,418 (272,492) 772,440 33,130,693 34,270,559
Financial assets at fair value
DI EESE A A2 H through other comprehensive
Wits 2 Rl ERE income
- NPEESEE - Changes in fair value - - 144,777 - - 144,777
- Transfer to income
- PN ERRE A U E TR statement on disposal - - (79,142) - - (79,142)
- Transfer to income
- RIBER R AU TR statement on impairment - - 116,375 - - 116,375
Equity securities at fair value
DI EESEA M 2 through other comprehensive
Wit < BEHERE 2757 income
- NPEESEE - Changes in fair value - - (52,480) - - (52,480)
- R ERE A R - Transfer to retained earnings
gl on disposal - - 18,158 - (18,158) -
JEAL B N\ B Share of associates’ reserves - 9,987 18,028 17,715 (17,715) 28,015
Share of jointly controlled entities’
JEAG LRI PRI B A reserves - - (13) 134 (121) -
e gyl Profit for the year - - - - 3,986,589 3,986,589
P 5 724 Exchange difference - - - (128,530) - (128,530)
Surplus on revaluation of bank
EfhFE L Kk premises - 393 - . - 393
Actuarial gains on defined benefit
SUE BT R scheme - - - - 1,768 1,768
Effect of deferred taxation on
HA-mE R TE H $HIEE other comprehensive income
FRIE > 2248 (352 30) items (Note 30) - - (51,320) - (292) (51,612)
Redemption of additional equity
EEEEIMER TR instruments - - - - (18,330) (18,330)
Distribution for additional equity
EHY MR T B A7 instruments - - - - (355,672) (355,672)
R=O—4
+—_H=+—H At 31 December 2019 57,500 592,798 (158,109) 661,759 36,708,762 37,862,710
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33 fEH (&)

33 Reserves (Continued)

BT The Bank
=0
ik BREE
R 541
Bank Financial
premises asset HAREE  IREAGER]
revaluation revaluation Other Retained &5
reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
BT BT BT BT BRETTT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
WZO— & —H—H At 1 January 2019 396,164 (281,392) 710,412 31,239,725 32,064,909
DI EESE A A2z Financial assets at fair value through
SREE other comprehensive income
- ONE(E S - Changes in fair value - 144,777 - - 144,777
- Transfer to income statement on
- AHERFE AT disposal - (79,142) - - (79,142)
- Transfer to income statement on
- RRERFEE A = impairment - 116,375 - - 116,375
DU E(ESE A B 21U zs>  Equity securities at fair value through
[ifey e other comprehensive income
- ONAE{E S - Changes in fair value - (40,454) - - (40,454)
- Transfer to retained earnings on
- AR A SRR A disposal - 12,587 - (12,587) -
pc eyl Profit for the year - - - 3,469,842 3,469,842
P S0 7=4E Exchange difference - - (128,110) - (128,110)
HiGEE KR Surplus on revaluation of bank premises 393 - - - 393
Actuarial gains on defined benefit
FERAETE A R scheme - - - 1,768 1,768
HA S EGESTE H EIRZERRIE > Effect of deferred taxation on other
=z comprehensive income items - (53,304) - (292) (53,596)
Redemption of additional equity
B T, instruments : : - (830 (18330)
Distribution for additional equity
ZEAMES T B0 instruments - - - (355,672) (355,672)
W_O—h&E+—H=+—H At 31 December 2019 396,557 (180,553) 582,302 34,324,454 35,122,760
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33 Reserves (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

The Group’s capital reserve was set up in relation to the
capitalisation by certain subsidiaries of their retained earnings for
the issue of new shares to the Bank.

Bank premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note
1.13.

Financial asset revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income until the financial assets are
derecognised or impaired and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Notes 1.6 and 1.7.

The Group’s other reserves comprise general reserve, exchange
reserve, contingency reserve and statutory surplus reserve. The
Bank’s other reserves comprise general reserve and exchange
reserve.

General reserve comprises previous years’ transfers from retained
earnings.

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of financial statements of overseas
operations.

Contingency reserve represents a reserve established for
contingency of accumulation of risks in times of severe economic
downturn in accordance with Guidance Note on Reserving for
Mortgage Guarantee Business issued by the Insurance Authority.

Statutory surplus reserve is provided at 10% of the audited profit
after tax of an associate of the Bank which is incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China, until the reserve balance is equal to
50% of its registered share capital. Surplus reserve can be used to
offset accumulated losses or capitalised as paid-up capital with the
approval of shareholders.

At 31 December 2020, included in retained earnings is an amount
of HK$675,738,000 (2019: HK$1,806,467,000) which was
earmarked as regulatory reserve. The regulatory reserve is
maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance for prudential supervision purposes. Movements in the
reserve are made directly through retained earnings and in
consultation with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

The directors did not propose any final dividend (2019: Nil) after
the year end.
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34 srEiEE
(a) HESEHEIS

AEBEIELEFERTHRS > Hb
Aoy Ry DU - E B SRAT % B IS 4 At
BEREEFR - EREARAER - H
B~ s~ AN F R A KB
AR5 o o E] e P SR SR TT 3R B B IS 4R Bt
BRAEEFR > LEEEX  BEHH
B HEEHEE o W& ko ke
BEMEINE - RS - FETE R
BEANSEEE > FEIREE#EZIE
RITEMEBZIEARNZEEBEZ
G o PEAM - EPIRIBIINEBE
BRSNS T~ BT RIS
T2 - HMEREECRE KR
ba R IR R ) SE P B - A B AT B R Oy
Wz Eat BURB R 1 Byl @ H R A
EHEZGITBRMEAE -

RoBHHEIZRGE T REHEE KHE
fHEETERBZEERAR K
TH o~ DUk AR BE & B oy B TR B K
BoEWeEE -

34 Segment reporting
(a) Business segments

The Group operates predominantly in commercial banking which
comprises four business segments. Retail banking includes acceptance of
retail deposits, mortgage and personal lending, wealth management,
securities brokerage, life insurance agency and brokerage services.
Corporate and commercial banking includes acceptance of corporate
deposits, advance of commercial and industrial loans, trade financing,
hire purchase and leasing. Treasury and financial institution activities
include foreign exchange, money market, interbank market and capital
market activities as well as acceptance of deposits from and lending to
non-bank financial institutions. Mainland China, Macau and overseas
operations activities include the business operated by branches within the
territory of China, Macau and overseas branches. Other activities mainly
comprise general insurance underwriting and investment properties
holding. The accounting policies applicable to the reportable segments are
the same as those applicable to the Group as stated in Note 1.

Unallocated items mainly comprise assets and liabilities of the central
management unit and other shared services, taxation and any items which
cannot be reasonably allocated to specific business segments.
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(@) HEBET D

34 Segment reporting (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

P P -
IR
INERE ROEEHE
AFR Mainland ROz
[SES 5 &R China, TP R G
Corporate SRlirs Macau SEREEr Unallocated
EBEFT and Treasury and and Total and inter-
Retail commercial financial overseas  reportable HAtlr segment SEE
banking banking institution  operations segments Others  elimination Group
AT BT BT EBETT AWt AW AT AW
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$000
Z0=0% 2020
Net interest
B A/CGE ) income/(expense)
- HNER - External (786,639) 1,600,284 2,028,888 981,934 3,824,467 33,196 - 3,857,663
- AERSE - Inter-segment 1,852,866 (499,267) ° (1,194,951) (164,518) (5,870) 5,870 - -
1,066,227 1,101,017 833,937 817,416 3,818,597 39,066 - 3,857,663
ARS8 R 3 Net fees and commission
U A/CGZH) income/(expense) 626,817 236,138 187,838 131,807 1,182,600 18,126 (112,000) 1,088,726
Other operating income/
HoAth 2 UL/ GZHD (expense)
- AR - External 306,619 156 449,825 103,791 860,391 300,254 (102,487) 1,058,158
- NERSTED - Inter-segment (25,001) (56,756) 91,727 189,924 199,894 179,585 (379,479) -
STEVEFEULA Segment operating income 1,974,662 1,280,555 1,563,327 1,242,938 6,061,482 537,031 (593,966) 6,004,547
BETEH Operating expenses
- AR - External (932,047) (165,718) (154,885) (484,598)  (1,737,248) (183,659) (611,652)  (2,532,559)
- NERSTED - Inter-segment (283,086) (22,374) (9,625) (4,605) (319,690) (5,085) 324,775 -
(1,215,133) (188,092) (164,510) (489,203)  (2,056,938) (188,744) (286,877)  (2,532,559)
Impairment written back/
DEREA B EISEN) (losses) 80,463 (374,346) (53,390) (92,035) (439,308) (501) - (439,809)
Segment operating
Pacik=evalll(ai=)) profit/(loss) 839,992 718,117 1,345,427 661,700 3,565,236 347,786 (880,843) 3,032,179
B N Fair value losses on
{E{EEE investment properties (196,810)
HthJp& 3582 Net loss on other
R non-operating activities (296)
FE(LILE#EH]ETRS  Share of net profits of jointly
podii=gNCipass controlled entities and
vl associates 557,326
Sl Profit before taxation 3,392,399
¥ N3 Capital expenditure 105,523 1,151 4,750 80,530 191,954 5,056 154,018 351,028
JTE Depreciation 153,481 5,294 4,774 77,024 240,573 44,745 32,815 318,133
ST Segment assets 52,449,092 90,627,399 191,134,599 62,962,274 397,173,364 4,316,393 783,318 402,273,075
NE T EAS 5 Inter-segment transactions (26,101,527)
Interests in jointly
[P B R R controlled entities and
BT associates 3,855,272
B Total assets 380,026,820
Sy Segment liabilities 184,340,917 54,717,421 53,264,850 62,324,079 354,647,267 1,030,766 741,391 356,419,424
IR E AT 5 Inter-segment transactions (26,101,527)
EEE Total liabilities 330,317,897

144



HREKERITAIRAE
CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

B ReE R

Notes to the Financial Statements

34 srEEwE 8D
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34 Segment reporting (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

HEPA S -
AR
TINERS ROYEERS
NER Mainland Feor iz
PSSR T &R China, ] PR T o H
Corporate SRR Macau SHEEET Unallocated
TERTT and  Treasury and and Total and inter-
Retail  commercial financial overseas reportable HAthr segment AEEE
banking banking institution operations segments Others elimination Group
T AT BT AT BT T BT T
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
ZO—N&E 2019
Net interest
TFFLEHA/GZH) income/(expense)
- AR - External (1,388,937) 2,655,283 2,692,879 1,336,831 5,296,056 (75,825) - 5,220,231
- RS ED - Inter-segment 3,214,435  (1,101,997)  (1,664,874)  (480,018) (32,454) 32,454 - -
1,825,498 1,553,286 1,028,005 856,813 5,263,602 (43,371) - 5,220,231
AR R A 0 Net fees and commission
W A/GZH) income/(expense) 477,671 205,935 117,204 126,796 927,606 14,558 (73,098) 869,066
Other operating income/
HoAth & UG (expense)
- ANED - External 450,883 5,175 340,320 10,146 806,524 341,967 (113,829) 1,034,662
- S - Inter-segment (42,968) (51,410) 105,817 143,628 155,067 173,871 (328,938) -
EbE A Segment operating income 2,711,084 1,712,986 1,591,346 1,137,383 7,152,799 487,025 (515,865) 7,123,959
BT Operating expenses
- ANED - External (895,522) (151,315) (150,056) (391,815)  (1,588,708) (191,367) (553,309) (2,333,384)
- RS - Inter-segment (272,981) (26,806) (8,204) (3,494)  (311,485) (10,060) 321,545 -
(1,168,503)  (178,121) (158,260)  (395,309)  (1,900,193) (201,427)  (23L,764)  (2,333,384)
Impairment(losses)/written
BB (FE2E )/ [ §5% back (47,467)  (285,546) (162,804) (14,055)  (509,872) 9,638 - (500,234)
Segment operating
SR RS F/(F51E) profit/(loss) 1,495,114 1,249,319 1,270,282 728,019 4,742,734 295,236 (747,629) 4,290,341
B2 N Fair value losses on
EEEE investment properties (64,367)
HMIEE#ES) 2 Net gain on other
beelligmy non-operating activities 51,434
JE(LIL[E B RS Share of net profits of jointly
Jodiid =N controlled entities and
eyl associates 458,530
5 i 1) Profit before taxation 4,735,938
BEARBH Capital expenditure 92,921 931 1,356 102,634 197,842 5,807 17,830 221,479
biiv- Depreciation 131,060 5,719 3,801 62,545 203,125 32,710 18,963 254,798
SEEE Segment assets 47,680,139 89,835,309 170,229,559 58,932,632 366,677,639 5,560,926 621,785 372,860,350
ERSYERAL 5 Inter-segment transactions (34,294,883)
Interests in jointly
I[P B A R controlled entities and
BN ERERS associates 3,277,871
LR E Total assets 341,843,338
SrE A E Segment liabilities 175,704,824 42,400,354 49,417,949 58,933,148 326,456,275 1,685,354 1,253,455 329,395,084
AERST AL 5 Inter-segment transactions (34,294,883)
EEE Total liabilities 295,100,201
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34 EEs (&) 34 Segment reporting (Continued)

(b) FEHIREIS (b) Geographical area

- SRR
BRAEAl P
A Capital
E PN Profit EERE HEE {EE%&PE expenditure
Operating before Total Total Credit during the
income taxation assets liabilities commitments year
AT BETIT BT BETIT BT BETR
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000

@@ 2020
Hik Hong Kong 4,961,503 2,730,699 335,965,836 293,984,102 34,652,187 270,498
o B A Mainland China 1,077,115 593,003 53,039,838 47,190,255 7,069,867 78,641
At Others 165,823 68,697 9,293,226  7,415620 1,187,773 1,889

Inter-segment

Sy el B AN elimination (199,894) - (18,272,080) (18,272,080) - -
SR UEEH Consolidated 6,004,547 3,392,399 380,026,820 330,317,897 42,909,827 351,028

—O—E 2019
A Hong Kong 6,141,644 4,007,919 308,289,143 269,019,186 31,634,406 118,845
o [B7 AT Mainland China 983,190 683,609 44,378,068 39,170,289 5,948,819 39,593
HAh Others 154,193 44,410 14,565,427 12,300,026 2,121,099 63,041

Inter-segment

o7 B G ARG elimination (155,068) - (25,389,300) (25,389,300) - -
SR dsE Consolidated 7,123,959 4,735,938 341,843,338 295,100,201 39,704,324 221,479
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A R A BB R RE B EE
TRz KMEERR

35 Contingent liabilities and commitments

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
contingent liabilities and commitments, and the aggregate credit risk weighted

tbE S HH 45T - amounts:
—0=0 —O—N
2020 2019
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
EEEEEARMD Direct credit substitutes 1,153,292 4,633,842
R IEH AR 2 G E15 Transaction-related contingencies 1,914,498 1,812,548
PRI H AR 2 B ET Trade-related contingencies 1,340,416 744,662
Other commitments which are unconditionally
a] DU EEUE 2~ Ho e cancellable 24,924,459 16,891,357
Other commitments with an original maturity
JEAFEH] B—F B DA 2 HofthRiE of one year or less 5,962,516 3,150,113
Other commitments with an original maturity
JE AR B—E DA E 22 FHARE of over one year 7,614,646 12,471,802
42,909,827 39,704,324
(EEEEmELES%E Credit risk weighted amount 6,027,131 11,326,761

ALETEE &R ELL & 4% 2 |
b E A 0%% 150% o

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted amounts range from

0% to 150%.
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() R+—A=+—H > FEER
W 2 AR T

36 Capital and lease commitments

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December not provided for in the

financial statements are as follows:

—0=0 —O—h

2020 2019

BETIT AERETIT

HK$°000 HK$’000

B A% R ELE S Contracted but not provided for 144,221 104,716
CHSREE R B A4 Authorised but not contracted for 18,502 .

(b)y AEBELEEHEHEM —&
k- HOELAFER R/ -2 R

i

R+HZH=+—H BXK
B R B 6 8 Z R K
R FE(THE R HGEEA T -

(b) The Group leases certain properties under operating leases. The leases typically

run for an initial period of 1 to 6 years.

At 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments payable for leases

committed but not yet commenced are as follows:

—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
AT T AT
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T R Land and buildings
- BF—FEN - Within one year 543 -
- BLEFERFEN - After one year but within five years 1,344 -
- BRFE - After five years - -
1,887 -

12 5= A A NI R A S

WA -

None of the leases include contingent rentals.

148



AR KERITARAE

CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

M B HRRE R

Notes to the Financial Statements

37 EBRERER TR

(a) BRIGATRFEEREFH ZRE
RAFEREIRR

37 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from operations

—0=0 —O—7L
2020 2019
AT AT T
HK$°000 HKS$°000
BRAS A& A Profit before taxation 3,392,399 4,735,938
SHELTEH ¢ Adjustments for:
FEALFLEIEFRIE S 2055 Share of net profit of jointly controlled entities (44,444) (36,462)
i NI vl Share of net profit of associates (512,882) (422,068)
Net gain on disposal of financial assets at fair
HELLVA P EESE AHM 2 value through other comprehensive
ZABRE E R income (123,620) (79,142)
SE R AT IR 2 Rt T~ Net loss/(gain) on redemption of financial
SRR/ (25) instruments at amortised cost 214 (586)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of other
HE H M) R 2 R s R/ (U properties and equipment 82 (50,848)
FeEYE 2 N EERTR Fair value losses on investment properties 196,810 64,367
NERIERI= N Impairment losses 439,809 500,234
e Depreciation 318,133 254,798
Unwind of discount on impairment
A B B E NI IR E [ allowances of investment in securities (498) (5,854)
Amortisation of discount on investment in
B E 2 ITE securities (256,397) (335,166)
Amortisation of discount on certificates of
BN T 2 R 2T deposit issued 142,504 125,933
Amortisation of discount on subordinated
s 1T 2 B EHE I debts issued 408 409
Operating profit before changes in working
B E SEEH E IR capital 3,552,518 4,751,553
BB R/ BE) Decrease/(increase) in operating assets:
[E]2E EHAF I R B Placements with and loans and advances to
(= H LAz ZIHR) banks maturing beyond three months 331,491 9,190,400
Financial assets at fair value through profit
DAAHEERE ARSIk 2 SR E = or loss 2,376,238 (77,708)
B EARRTE Advances and other accounts (9,227,290) (22,908,328)
rTEemM I EEE Derivative financial assets (1,032,118) (100,613)
B E /R D) Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
PR TRAR Derivative financial liabilities 890,554 (375,788)
EEZE2¢ Deposits and balances from banks maturing
(Z{EH L& ZIHE) beyond three months 11,275,059 (5,589,902)
BRI Deposits from customers 26,985,915 21,806,541
BT TGS Certificates of deposit issued 3,625,874 (4,009,049)
REEE TN &E Trading liabilities (154,805) 309,136
HABETE K FAfE Other accounts and accruals (9,400,860) 9,995,131
BT ISR AR Cash generated from operations 29,222,576 12,991,373
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37 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (Continued)

(b) RERFFHRSHB ZEHIHT

(b) Analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents

—0=0 —O—nh
2020 2019
AT T AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
[EEIRE B i E) 2 Cash and balances with banks 35,778,292 16,301,335
Placements with and loans and advances to
[E2E EHIE L B3R banks with original maturity within three
(FEIEA A E =18 H A) months 33,081,423 33,022,020
Treasury bills with original maturity within
B (JREHIEAE=EH W) three months 7,499,753 17,214,691
Certificates of deposit held with original
HEZELES (BFRHIHE=EARN) maturity within three months 638,516 -
Deposits and balances from banks with
FEFEGFR (EEHIHE=EARN) original maturity within three months (22,235,164)  (20,883,328)
54,762,820 45,654,718

(0) MEEHELNEEMRE

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

TEHFEAEHKEMEGE D The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing
BESE - HEH e EIEHR & activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
- METHESANEBSH SR financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
EXARHESERENEE  BER be, classified in the Group's consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from
EEGEHEeERERT 7 E B financing activities.
BEENHERE -
BITZ1REFHE
Subordinated
debts issued
—Z0OZ=0O —O0—h
2020 2019
BETIT AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
»w—H—H At 1 January 3,110,591 3,128,160
Amortisation of discount on subordinated
o T 2 RAEEE TR debts issued 408 409
PE T2 2= RH Exchange difference (13,803) (17,978)
W+ _H=+—H At 31 December 3,097,196 3,110,591
HEAE
Lease Liabilities
—Z0OZ=0O —O0—h
2020 2019
BETIT AEEETIT
HK$°000 HK$’000
w—H—H At 1 January 311,064 224,739
bR =% Exchange difference 1,506 (920)
HEEET Lease modifications (4,356) -
B Additions 81,013 172,178
FIRZH Interest expense 10,054 8,902
Fabl Payment (117,321) (93,835)
W+ _H=+—H At 31 December 281,960 311,064

150



AR KERITARAE

CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

M B HRRE R

Notes to the Financial Statements

38 EfEEffmT BE

P#wEMSERE DTEEZLCHE
AV LT

38 Assets pledged as security

The following assets have been pledged as collateral at the end of the reporting
period.

—0=0 —O0—h
2020 2019
AT T AT T
HK$°000 HK$°000
HiMHEE Secured liabilities 708,016 19,829
AR - Assets pledged:
Cash, balances and placements with and
FEFEHE - FEERERER GEEa) loans and advances to banks (Note a) 708,218 -
T BN R AR YIE 2~ 5 RS & PR IR I Financial investments at amortised cost
REEFERK GEED) pledged for statutory deposits (Note b) 174,412 175,190
DU EESE A EM 2 E W S 2 SRl Financial investments at fair value through
= other comprehensive income - 19,981
882,630 195,171

R

(@) EEMBRELATEMNITZ
e FHEA -

(b) B I # F % B 15 % % 5 4 09
o BATEES TR E
BT LEEIER -

39 BHRAREK

R ER (AE RGN % 383(1)(d)
ek ANFE(HBEBEEMNENHR
BIVESHHAERMPEBZERXRTES
FHBEETRAEHDT

Note:

(a) Discounted bills have been pledged to secure the Group’s borrowing activitiy
for the Bank’s branch in Guangzhou.

(b) The assets have been pledged to the Office of the Comptroller of Currency of
the United States of America as statutory deposits for the Bank’s branches in
Los Angeles and San Francisco.

39 Loans to officers

The aggregate of loans to directors of the Bank and entities connected with
directors disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

BR+=RA=+—H EEES
ZEERHE &R

Maximum balance
during the year

Balance outstanding
at 31 December

—0=0 —O—h —0=0 —O—7
2020 2019 2020 2019
BT BT BT AT
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
Aggregate amount outstanding in
A RFB 2GS R GEE respect of principal and interest 3,326 43 3,474 2,326
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EEEN AEBHAEETEETH TAEAGH
HALETZRITRS  BFERK - F3 -
frbe R HMt S mAAHBE LS - ZEAREANL
BRI AEENAE - AT ZEETBA
BEHEIHFZERE W EEZARNEHKZ
FEANLRZEHBTHETHEEREE TN
H -  ZERXGUETEXGEZHETSE
REME VHEAAEHEHTREETEMKZSE
FRERZMHEEGRET - E$m%’§$
TG Ty i — R ARG I o bR AR S
FHMH TR E RS KSR 0 KEH
FrsBEn— U HMEREREANL 2K G
FIFN T H -

40 Material related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into certain banking
transactions with related parties in the normal course of business,
which include loans, deposits, insurance and other financial related
transactions. These related parties are those companies which have
control over the Group, key management personnel of the Bank,
close members of their families and companies controlled or
significantly influenced by the Group or by them. The transactions
were priced at the relevant market rates at the time of each
transaction, and were on the same terms as those available to other
counterparties and customers of the Group. In the opinion of the
directors, these transactions were conducted on normal commercial
terms. In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, other material related party
transactions entered into by the Group are set out on the following

pages.
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40 Material related party transactions (Continued)

F[E F= HAtr
PERIERE TBAE FAWREAL
PEREAH] Jointly Key Other
Holding controlled Bt2/\5] management related aE
company entities Associates personnel parties Total
BAETT AT ARtk ARtk BTk A%Tx
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
—O=0O%
Aggregate amounts
outstanding at the year
S H 45 R EEH
- EREOR A - Loans and other
JEUSHETE receivables 160,768 163 681 14,431 1,244 177,287
- PRIERK - Placement of deposits 1,130,540 - - - - 1,130,540
- BEFR - Deposits from customers 13,462,382 734,691 59,462 70,009 978,255 15,304,799
- DI EERS - Financial investments at
A H A4 fair value through
UY % 2 < il other comprehensive
Ray income 962,657 - - - 742,579 1,705,236
- Other accounts and
- HAREIE R TR accruals - - - 9 - 9
BEAERINEER Off-balance sheet outstanding
- INEESLY - Exchange rate contracts
(REEH) (notional amounts) 13,395,636 - - - - 13,395,636
- HARE - Other commitments - 837 102 5,921 2,444 9,304
- AR - Guarantee received 12,614,316 - - - - 12,614,316
TR FE U HUE Income for the year received
AEZUTA from related parties
- FLEUZA - Interest income 14,105 38 - 256 11,752 26,151
- HAtrEFERA - Other operating income 5,039 7,626 259 219 512 13,655
- Net insurance
- PREE SRR operating income - 344 15,677 1,950 1,800 19,771
19,144 8,008 15,936 2,425 14,064 59,577
EEES AR Expenses for the year paid to
HALZEA related parties
- MBS - Interest expenses 102,723 13,225 2 1,214 5,321 122,485
- PR E e - Fees and commission
T expenses 8 - 1 39 64,721 64,769
- BETH - Operating expenses - 2,251 - - - 2251
- Net insurance
- PR B EF operating expenses - 6,771 1,585 - - 8,356
102,731 22,247 1,588 1,253 70,042 197,861
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40 Material related party transactions (Continued)

JL[5] F5 At
PR TERAER  AREEAL
PERE A H] Jointly Key Other
Holding controlled &/ 5H]  management related =
company entities Associates personnel parties Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
—O—# 2019
Aggregate amounts
outstanding at the year
RS H 45 R EEH end
- BRI EA - Loans and other
TEUCHETE receivables 38,151 84 1,334 10,769 16 50,354
- PEEER - Placement of deposits 2,099,356 - - - - 2,099,356
- BEfE - Deposits from customers 1,915,427 547,406 23,780 68,818 166,742 2,722,173
- LA EESE - Financial investments at
A E A4 fair value through
Ug 7 2 < il other comprehensive
BE income 317,606 - - - 196,922 514,528
- Other accounts and
- HAMIRTE K FERE accruals - ; _ 8 ) 8
ArEAERIMERR Off-balance sheet outstanding
- INEESLY - Exchange rate contracts
(HFEEE) (notional amounts) 7,708,338 - - - - 7,708,338
- Hftgde - Other commitments - 61,416 162 5,000 144 66,722
- UTHUER - Guarantee received 21,621,712 - - - - 21,621,712
TR FE U HUE o 2 Income for the year received
ANLZ WA from related parties
- FIEUZA - Interest income 276,544 135 - 240 5,463 282,382
- EAEZERA - Other operating income 1,217 8,744 360 296 454 11,071
- Net insurance
- PR ESEFIA operating income - 10,005 4,306 - - 14,311
277,761 18,884 4,666 536 5,917 307,764
EEES T AR Expenses for the year paid to
HALZEH related parties
- FEZH - Interest expenses 32,110 15,098 378 1,309 1,058 49,953
- Mg e - Fees and commission
H expenses 6 - 2 47 33,193 33,248
- BETH - Operating expenses - 703 2 - - 705
- Net insurance
- R ESES TN operating expenses - 3,226 1,093 - - 4,319
32,116 19,027 1,475 1,356 34,251 88,225
NZOZOF+_HB=+—H> > &{Tf  Asat31 December 2020, the aggregate sums of amounts due from subsidiaries and
HE E£BBR P —RNEEGEZET  amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising from transactions entered into during
T HEENMEI K FENK B A 5 2 IE  the normal course of business at commercial terms are HK$67,794,000 (2019:
4858 % Rl Ry AL 67,794,000 T ( — O —fL HK$58,860,000) and HK$1,594,996,000 (2019: HK$1,593,923,000) respectively.
4F 1 5 M 58,860,000 7T ) K2 & K 1,594,996,00
T (O — L #H 1,593,923,000 7T ) ©
W00 +=-_H=+—H K& As at 31 December 2020, the Group has recognised Stage 1 impairment allowances
B LR FHEBBEANTZERXMESLE  of HKS$3,787,000 in respect of loans granted to related parties (2019: HK$413,000).
— PE B RC{E E R B 8E 3,787,000 T (= O
—JLEE ¢ B 413,000 5T) -
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40 Material related party transactions (Continued)

FETEA EZREN Key management personnel remuneration
AEBANFETHAE  BHFEE Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group including amounts paid to
¥ ARTEE SN HEE U Z 3B orreceivable by the Bank’s directors is as follows:
M
—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
BT AT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
Salaries, bonus and other short-term
BB ~ AL R E A IHHER benefits 49,212 49,201
BARIER] Retirement benefits 2,388 3,546
52,100 52,747
41 BRG] R S N 5] 41 Immediate and ultimate holding company
KEBEZ NG KR AP/  The directors consider that the immediate and ultimate holding company of the Group
) B A b #E AR 2L B =k i 2 to be China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., which is incorporated in the People’s Republic
R IRAT R IR A H - of China.

155



AR KERITARAE

CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED

HRMBER (REEFR)

Supplementary Financial Information (Unaudited)

Kﬁﬁﬁi fifi 70 W 75 & R B B
BOERAEE M BHREBRRSE
MOW%& &ﬁ@ﬁ*ﬂﬁ%m&
#l > EEEAGHINERT  HEASE
Imﬁ%hu’tﬁJWWﬁ%mﬁ
Rl Ko P B 9% IR i o M R RS R BR Y
Fe Wt~ AP - AERENE - HE M
SEREMEN & BT

B 0 B [ AR T e
N2 figs > A (SR AT 5k O 82 ) BRI )
HERIFTE#E - ﬁ““?ﬁ B A ATTH
H (http://www.cmbW|nglungbank.com) A &

fili e B E

LA‘F D 2 BR R &RE Eﬁ‘ﬁi}}%ﬁﬁ
B BEEHILABREEZEGS
ﬁa‘?ﬁiﬁ%z EiRG)

1 B e bR

This Financial Statement, Supplementary Financial Information and the
Regulatory Disclosures are prepared according to the Group’s disclosure
policy. The disclosure policy sets out a robust mechanism for the Group’s
disclosures of financial information on a legitimate and compliant basis. It
depicts the principles and internal control measures to ensure the
timeliness, fairness, accuracy, integrity, completeness and legitimacy of
financial disclosures.

The Regulatory Disclosures, together with the disclosures in this Financial
Statement and Supplementary Financial Information, contain all the disclosures
required by the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The Regulatory Disclosures is
available on the Bank’s website at http://www.cmbwinglungbank.com.

The following information is disclosed as part of the accompanying information
to the consolidated financial statements and does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

1 Capital adequacy ratio

—0=0O —O—h
2020 2019
BEARLEE Capital ratios
- LR — B AR - Common equity tier 1 capital ratio 13.3% 12.2%
- —HREAREE - Tier 1 capital ratio 16.3% 15.6%
= NS - Total capital ratio 18.7% 18.6%

RZOZOE+ZA=+—HRZO
—NETZH=ZFHZEREERTS
R 9 5 0% o R U T B I CBRAT
EER)RAD) 5EH -

R CIRITEEAR)RA) - AEH
B R S EE SRR
RiigEly s REBLEEEE » DIRR

The capital ratios at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were
compiled in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”).

In accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the Group has adopted the
“standardised approach” for the calculation of the risk-weighted assets for
credit risk and market risk, and the “basic indicator approach” for the

I TEAMSE T E ) stEEEER - calculation of operational risk.
—0=0 —O—
2020 2019
EAREE Capital buffers
BEE%%E@THZIKHL? - Capital conservation buffer ratio 2.50% 2.50%
AR B E AL R - Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.57% 1.11%

H IR AT E AL R T B R AR AT
H (http://www.cmbwinglungbank.com) X

B -

RZOZOFFZH=ZT—HKZ=O—7
FHZH=1T—H  FEtEEAREREE
REERZ &G %Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ“%%zzﬁé
iﬁﬁ’”‘ B ERFURY T EIFRASHE T I

The additional information of countercyclical capital buffer ratio is
available on the Bank’s website at http://www.cmbwinglungbank.com.

The basis of consolidation for calculation of the capital ratios and leverage
ratio at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 follows the basis of
consolidation for financial reporting but excludes certain subsidiaries as set
out in the following table.
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1 BERRREEER (&)

/@A E B EREREEOT ¢

1 Capital adequacy ratio (Continued)

The total assets and total equity of the subsidiaries are as follows:

—0=0 —O—7
2020 2019
EEE ERem HEE R
Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity
Principal  BWTE  OBETT  BETT BT
£78 Name EEEHK activities HK$’000  HKS$’000  HK$°000 HK$°000
gk EEEER AT CMB Wing Lung Insurance fREEFEFR  Insurance 3,830,630 1,417,988 3,479,300 1,303,229
Company Limited® underwriting
gk EMEER AT CMB Wing Lung Capital WA #5555 Financial 17,160 7,498 17,041 7,901
Limited® R consultancy
services
HBrakxEMBEAIR AT CMB Wing Lung Finance FEALRF 7 Provision of 30,998 30,906 30,978 30,893
Limited Pk 7% financial
services
HrExEEEEH AR CMB Wing Lung Asset BEEH  Asset 142,455 140,685 191,943 130,365
Eikd Management Limited® management
Rk EETATRAT® CMB Wing Lung (Trustee) =XLEF Trustee 33,439 30,242 27,133 24,431
Limited® services
HrxlEREBEMARZS  CMB Wing Lung Insurance fRI&RERT  Insurance 398,315 398,142 445,920 395,998
] Brokers Limited broking
gk lEREAERAE CMB Wing Lung Agency fREEfCEE  Insurance 189,453 144,222 188,570 143,311
Limited agency
HrxlEZEREAEZLA CMB Wing Lung (Nominees) ZFE Nominee 10 10 10 10
= e Limited® R services
HErE K EEEARANET® CMB Wing Lung Property Y H Property 5,370 (198) - (186)
Management Limited® management
S HENEe* Hongnet Limited®* GRS Investment 3,860 3,846 3,871 3,859
holding
Wingspan Incorporated Wingspan Incorporated YIs+57H  Property 28,316 11,554 28,876 11,318
holding
Wing Lung Opportunities Wing Lung Opportunities &R Investment 270,973 270,095 293,970 290,854
Fund Limited® Fund Limited® holding
Wing Lung Opportunities Wing Lung Opportunities &R Investment 271,452 270,472 295,013 293,851
Master Fund Limited® Master Fund Limited® holding
Wing Lung Growth Fund 1I1  Wing Lung Growth Fund IlI WEFERK  Investment 28,157 3,744 292,947 269,866
Segregated Portfolio® Segregated Portfolio® holding
CMFHK Fortune 100 Fixed CMFHK Fortune 100 Fixed WEFERK  Investment - - 105,784 104,913
Income SP@* Income SP@* holding
1A EHFREAE Sea Wing Investments Limited Y57 Property 4,887 (5,234) 4,841 (5,267)
holding
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1 BERRREEER (&)

1 Capital adequacy ratio (Continued)

—0=0O

2020
o Eat

ZO—h
2019
WHE  fEmE

Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity

Principal BETIL BT BT
£78 Name FEEHK  activities HK$°000  HKS$’000 HK$°000
ARk PR RE R BB B CMB Wing Lung Equity R HERc & Equity 18,602 17,843 17,522
CREINETRAE Investment M_an.agement s g investment

(Shenzhen) Limited

management
LB TR N\ E]@ Antopex Limited® (SELEEFS  Trustee services - -
REEATRAF@ Bulleria Limited® (SEL¥ETS  Trustee services - -
$RSEA R EH@ Cameland Limited® =L Trustee services - -
EREETRA T Deeright Limited® {E5L¥ET%  Trustee services - -
BEEAIR AT Eaglearn Limited® (SELZF  Trustee services - -

C REEHRRIE_O_OF+=H
=t+t—-HEZO—-NE+ZA=+
—HZ&GEEALR U FAEELESE

NS

# PZOZOFMWH -+ hH &RTHE
[B] # £ CMFHK Fortune 100 Fixed

Income SP H1 1Y FT A #E &5 -

*RZOZOET+ZAMBETER -

@ Companies excluded in the computation of the consolidated capital
ratios at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 for regulatory
reporting purposes.

# At 29 April 2020, the Bank redeemed all of its interests in CMFHK

Fortune 100 Fixed Income SP.

* Liquidation process commenced in December 2020.
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RZOZOF+-_H=+—HE=O
—NE+Z A =+ — B ERLERTS
IR R B M Z (R
fEZR) 5t E -

2 Leverage ratio

The leverage ratio as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were
compiled in accordance with the Leverage Ratio Framework issued by the
HKMA.

—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
FEFREE R Leverage ratio 10.74% 10.45%

HELEEHAER TR ATHEEA
(http://www. cmbwmglungbank com) N

=
B

3 JRETE SN

The additional information of leverage ratio is available on the Bank’s website
at http://www.cmbwinglungbank.com.

3 Liquidity position

—0=0 —O0—N
2020 2019

IR E M E AR Average liquidity coverage ratio
- B—=F - First quarter 161.1% 172.4%
- EBT=E - Second quarter 227.9% 162.2%
- FEEF - Third quarter 163.8% 169.2%
- FIUE - Fourth quarter 172.5% 173.8%
REE&FHEtER Net stable funding ratio
- B—F - First quarter 128.8% 135.3%
- EI=R - Second quarter 130.1% 132.4%
- EB==F - Third quarter 128.6% 127.7%
- FHIUE - Fourth quarter 134.3% 134.0%
EHEARES M ESEETIRE ($R{TF¥ The average liquidity coverage ratio is calculated as the arithmetic mean of
CREFHF AN FE 101 (b)) LLIE4E & & the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter on
BE f DL #4 % &1 1 T1E E[ 4% 455 fY an unconsolidated basis in accordance with rule 10(1)(b) of the Banking
MENMESELL R R G E I - (Liquidity) Rules.
BE&EsF %E LRI (RITF (/ﬁi The net stable funding ratio reflects the quarter end position and is
gEVE A ) 2 10( 1 )(b){% PLIE%F & Z B calculated on an unconsolidated basis in accordance with rule 10(1)(b) of the
M WRMERRMN - Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

MEBEZRIMTER TR ATHEEA
(http://www. cmbwmglungbank com) W,%JE o

) 1 &
= 3 2
AR

y

ZKW@E%H‘;D u{'i‘ %
bl E AR - HEHNERF - &
Bh e R b B EE SR B 5F # N W
FE4.34 -

Sy
=

I

?ﬁ%m
%

Hl’

The additional information of liquidity position is available on the Bank’s
website at http://www.cmbwinglungbank.com.

Objective, framework and process are in place for governance, measurement

and monitoring of the Group’s liquidity risk. Details of the Group’s liquidity
risk management approach are set out in Note 4.3 to the financial statements.
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1

T

4 Currency concentration

The US dollar and RMB net positions constitute 10% or more of the total

GG RN 10%3 2L B B D net position in all foreign currencies of the Group and are reported in Hong
BEEEHEYHROT - Kong dollar equivalent as follows:
EIT AEH
US dollar RMB
—0=0 —O—h —0=0 —0O—7L
2020 2019 2020 2019
AT IT AT T AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
WS EE Spot assets 108,319,525 106,560,265 79,903,467 55,726,336
TH 15 24 Spot liabilities (86,062,880)  (71,180,336) (77,306,698)  (55,470,978)
BHIE A Forward purchases 21,853,425 22,330,090 22,173,859 18,035,658
A 1 Forward sales (38,325,083) (53,776,911) (19,200,695) (14,044,364)
HARE F5E Net option position (10,453) 56,159 2,159 (2,135)
RSV Net long position 5,774,534 3,989,267 5,572,092 4244517
HEFEFHEMNEBEETESMEEER  The net option position is calculated based on the delta-weighted position
Fohwets &  HE/MEZ " 585 nE approach set out in the prudential return “Foreign Currency Position”
Feg, AEH - issued by the HKMA.
KREHFEIBEHEMEE®% ST > 250 K A The US dollar and RMB net structural positions constitute 10% or more
REEHEEEERE FEBEE B E of the total net structural position in all foreign currencies of the Group
Y 10%Z DL B> BRLAEEEFEY S 4 and are reported in Hong Kong dollar equivalent as follows:
T :
—0=0 —O—JL
2020 2019
AT T AT
HK$°000 HK$°000
GERME BT Net structural position
EIT US dollar 690,747 690,747
PN RMB 2,725,224 2,709,504
3,415,971 3,400,251
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(a) BATHED B E P B

5 Segmental information

(a) Gross advances to customers by industry sectors

—0=0 —O—%
2020 2019
FEFR AL A m A
B BREK
ZHB5th ZHEIt
% of gross % of gross
advances advances
HERT T covered by T covered by
HKS$°000 collateral HK$°000 collateral
EEEER S Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and
TR financial
Y Property development 5,435,283 20.9 4,664,141 25.5
YA Property investment 5,521,101 91.0 7,984,797 75.0
LEbE Financial concerns 23,361,663 15.3 25,727,757 20.4
e Stockbrokers 3,066,212 16.3 2,202,526 19.9
s EEE Wholesale and retail trade 1,293,796 11.3 691,032 26.8
Bl Manufacturing 1,370,382 9.5 434,088 223
Transport and transport
i R R e equipment 633,430 2.4 100,599 20.2
i E YRS ) Recreational activities 399 100.0 466 99.8
BEalRHY Information technology 974,711 0.1 782,712 0.3
FiAtt Others 12,237,180 25.8 14,988,642 20.6
fEA Individuals
Loans for the purchase of
flats in the Home
e T EEEHE Ownership Scheme,
ETRAAZ Private Sector
EEERE ) 8 Participation Scheme
TMHEEHE and Tenants Purchase
=& HEH R Scheme or their
iR TS respective successor
FIEEK schemes 308,676 100.0 342,824 100.0
Loans for the purchase of
HBEEMEEY other residential
FENEK properties 11,708,979 100.0 10,054,700 100.0
{ERHFEX Credit card advances 150,809 - 197,710 -
HAhr Others 28,968,904 96.3 25,514,557 94.5
BB R Trade finance 1,823,788 11.7 1,508,667 19.2
96,855,313 55.6 95,195,218 53.7
EFEALIMEFH > €3k Loans for use outside Hong Kong 90,609,137 19.0 79,224,692 17.0
187,464,450 37.9 174,419,910 37.0
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HITEPBH 2BERPEXARALPREFR
B 0% ER > HERES
o OREREM - B EEEFEEE
Wzs £ MR E R E S R 2 8y

5 Segmental information (Continued)

(a) Gross advances to customers by industry sectors (Continued)

The gross amount of impaired loans, impairment allowances, amount of new
impairment allowances charged to income statement and the amount of impaired
loans written off for those industry sectors which constitute not less than 10% of
gross advances to customers is analysed as follows:

ran T
FTIRE
Bk BESRK
New P |
impairment Amount of
EBE BB allowances  impaired
B Impairment allowances charged to loans
Impaired S—FEEF F_FEEr SE=TEEE income written
loans Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  statement off
BT BBt BTt EBETr BBt BT
HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
Q@) 2020
Loans for use in Hong
TEEBFHZ &% Kong
Industrial, commercial
B and financial
- EEhiE - Financial concerns - 40,908 24,861 - 18,893 -
fEA Individuals
- HA - Others 31,193 3,912 14,106 2,167 1,038 -
EEELYMER > Loans for use outside
BEk Hong Kong 780,465 233,726 76,316 642,509 180,273 211,020
811,658 278,546 115,283 644,676 200,204 211,020
—O—4E 2019
Loans for use in Hong
TEEBFEZ & Kong
Industrial, commercial
Trg<mt and financial
- R - Financial concerns 74,358 27,044 26,239 38,841 41,773 -
fEA Individuals
- HA - Others 139,175 41,154 3,589 66,437 44,838 898
EEBEDAIMER  Loans for use outside
BEk Hong Kong 685,732 48,996 25,678 728,931 281,508 -
899,265 117,194 55,506 834,209 368,119 898
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5 EEH (@) 5 Segmental information (Continued)
(b) ¥WEBSEZZPEES  BHER - BEREEXK (b) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers,
KB EZEH overdue advances, impaired loans and impairment
allowances

DTHEETE 2 ZRFEXR - BHERM - & The following geographical analysis of gross advances to customers,
HRESERX R EEHEREBEL S FZME overdue advances, impaired loans and impairment allowances is
WAE 7 > WEEEEEAME R i based on the location of the counterparty, after taking into account

% o the transfer of risk in respect of such advances where appropriate.
TEEE
Impairment allowance
E=FEE
Stage 3

A=A A=A

Pl ERIERK PAERIEERR

Overdue Overdue

R EEE advances advances
Gross for over EJREERK for over EBEER
advances to three Impaired E—REE B three Impaired
customers months loans Stage 1 Stage 2 months loans

AT WETIL AT BWTIT  BRTIT  BBTI BE¥TT
HK$000 HKS$’000  HK$’000  HKS$’000  HKS$000  HK$’000  HKS$’000

—OO0% 2020

FiE Hong Kong 91,569,858 189,198 498,494 136,907 68,523 121,929 290,216

o 58] P P, Mainland China 79,493,637 8,749 480,608 167,784 35,893 8,614 480,473

H A Others 16,400,955 6,499 6,499 38,621 33,771 1 1
187,464,450 204,446 985,601 343,312 138,187 130,544 770,690

]| Restated

—O—h&E 2019

& Hong Kong 84,664,553 75,351 80,131 79,831 30,194 51,747 51,838

B A M Mainland China 75,303,298 406,238 888,882 64,943 39,996 328,691 835,454

H A Others 14,452,059 104 104 10,020 1,886 3 3
174,419,910 481,693 969,117 154,794 72,076 380,441 887,295
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5 TEER (8)
(c) EUMfRfE

A EE B DL 3t 52 5 T i 4% OR 8 R B 2
FTfE - RAIRIBE S 58 F &R by #% 1%
P Z @ - F &R EREZ -
E—lAXGHFZHRRERS —HEEF
A B % 0 A L A H IR 58 B H &2 B —
H8R 1T Z S sh oy 17 > T L 48 % =2 AL R
— & A~ E Y B R - R RS R (E
B o WAL B 55 — B R - 3% F AL B
PR RS AH Y 10%EC DL B FI AT ¢

5 Segmental information (Continued)
(c) International claims

The Group analyses international claims by exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according to
the location of the counterparties after taking into account any transfer of
risk. The transfer of risk from one country to another is recognised if the
claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by another party in a
different country or if the claims are on an overseas branch of a bank
whose head office is located in a different country. Those areas which
contribute 10% or more of the aggregate international claims are as
follows:

FESRITRLVE S
Non-bank private sector
JE<Rl
JESRfT AR
SRS Non-
B tkiE Non-bank financial
BT Official financial private &%
Banks sector institutions sector Total

BETRT BETIT B¥Tx BETRT B¥TT
HK$’000 HK$°000  HK$’000 HK$’000  HKS$’000

—O=0O% 2020

EEREE O Developed Countries 38,361,547 3,723,978 1,206,159 2,917,625 46,209,309
- Hrrr EE - of which: United States 22,531,192 3,631,760 1,133,558 1,904,762 29,201,272

BT Offshore Centers 9,590,183 13,223 20,255,972 20,601,352 50,460,730
- Hp o H - of which: Hong Kong 7,190,716 7,505 15,109,353 12,921,235 35,228,809

Developing Africa and Middle
S EYNFI B East 854,467 60 - 213,420 1,067,947
SEE e ACH Developing Asia Pacific 68,571,496 5,432,879 12,090,588 35,483,637 121,578,600

- of which: People’s

- Hop o g A RIHIE Republic of China 65,101,876 5,423,060 12,090,588 33,270,670 115,886,194

117,377,693 9,170,140 33,552,719 59,216,034 219,316,586

—O—h&E 2019
SRS Developed Countries 31,871,783 1,104,510 1,202,818 2,971,633 37,150,744
- Hrpor EE - of which: United States 21,368,201 909,003 1,138,572 2,020,544 25,436,320
BEEE O Offshore Centers 3,920,034 8,584 15,379,207 17,668,974 36,976,799
- Hdp o FHAE - of which: Hong Kong 3,083,017 4,820 10,155,007 10,109,239 23,352,083
Developing Latin America and
S L T ML & Caribbean - - - 146,252 146,252
Developing Africa and Middle
SR I EA T B East 849,634 50 - - 849,684
SR K Developing Asia Pacific 74,308,047 2,333,139 8,421,315 29,252,550 114,315,051

- of which: People’s

- Hoop o doEE A R Republic of China 67,894,100 2,324,673 8,421,315 28,109,823 106,749,911

110,949,498 3,446,283 25,003,340 50,039,409 189,438,530
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6 Overdue and rescheduled assets
(a) Overdue advances

The Group’s overdue advances to customers are analysed as follows:

—0=0 —O—h
2020 2019
1E&EF &=
=g ERAEE
ZBatt ZH45rtE
% of total % of total

HEWTT  advances to ST advances to
HK$’000 customers HK$’000 customers

Gross amount of advances which have

EERaEEE > o - been overdue for:
- Six months or less, but over
- Z{EHM EEAEH three months 119,745 0.06 84,027 0.05
- One year or less, but over
- NMER M EE—F six months 15,096 0.01 55,409 0.03
- —EDE - Over one year 69,605 0.04 342,257 0.20
204,446 0.11 481,693 0.28
HHEH > B EE Secured overdue advances 71,868 140,776
T 2 Im B Unsecured overdue advances 132,578 340,917
204,446 481,693
B @ISR Market value of collateral held against
IS TE the secured overdue advances 117,051 189,508
B} SRR R 7 R Impairment allowances made in
A respect of such advances
- BFIREY - Stage 3 130,544 380,441

ANZOZOEFE+ZA=Z+—H FAXE
M EE =AM E(Z0— A
o) -

e I T S = P v e S R
= .

At 31 December 2020, there were no advances to banks which were
overdue for over three months (2019: Nil).

Collateral held with respect to overdue advances are mainly residential
properties.
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6 Overdue and rescheduled assets (Continued)

(b) Other overdue assets

The Group’s other overdue assets are analysed as follows:

—0=0
2020

RERr HxERE EAR

—O—N
2019

Efaas MEHAE

Debt Trade Accrued Debt  Accrued &
securities bills interest securities interest Total
BETIT AT B%TT e BT BETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Gross amount of other
HtrgEas%E 2t assets which have been
HA - overdue for:
- Six months or less,
- Z@AAMLEE but over three
7~ME B months - - 3,099 - 2,753 2,753
- NMERBMEE - One year or less, but
—4F over six months - 14,305 363 - 5,864 5,864
- —FEPE - Over one year 189,275 - 9,519 190,046 24,745 214,791
189,275 14,305 12,981 190,046 33,362 223,408

(c) EEHEK

A E 2 & E A E (B R ER A
SR8 i = (8 H I AE £ (a) 35 P 51

(c) Rescheduled advances

The Group’s rescheduled advances (net of those which have been overdue for over
three months and reported in item (a) above) are as follows:

BHZEF)ahaT :
—0=0 —O—
2020 2019
(5B
SRR
Z B4ttt
% of total
FEMTT advances to BT advances to
HK$’000 HK$’000 customers
Rescheduled advances to

REHIHZ P eI customers 474,071 473,494 0.27

AZOZOHFE+ZH=+—H >

EXERXPULMEEEEZEX
(ZO—JLE « f®) -
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R CIRITEGEE)VRA) > DL HIE
SRAT A2 5 B Y N MR BE A (S R B AR
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JE B H R PT Z MR A R BB

7 Non-bank Mainland exposures

br 2 FE A DL 47 38 - b R AE BT AT K extended by the Bank and its Mainland branches only.
HAMR T E O Z % 1(E B R -

REARE FHEARER
MRz BBesE b B beEE
On-balance  Off-balance

The following analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct exposures
defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules with reference
to the HKMA return of Mainland activities. This analysis includes exposures

sheet sheet 48\ B aE
exposure exposure Total
AT IT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
ZOZO#F 2020
— PR PR ERREEA 1 Central government, central
HRERE s =\ B R government-owned entities and their
BEMRE subsidiaries and joint ventures (JVs) 34,033,651 2,178,762 36,212,413
= HOHBUN > MU EURRFA 2 Local governments, local
AR K H -\ B RO government-owned entities and their
GERE subsidiaries and JVs 11,087,692 1,171,626 12,259,318
= EEFEAR L
REETEAHEIL 3 PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
HY LA AR B EL TN other entities incorporated in Mainland
HIEERFE China and their subsidiaries and JV's 74,900,395 4,584,682 79,485,077
m HAfCREREEE—TH T
T REFSER) 4 Other entities of central government not
Tk reported in item 1 above 4,403,777 800,000 5,203,777
o HAoR AR
HY H b T B S B 5 Other entities of local governments not
MR reported in item 2 above 487,294 - 487,294
AN HEE BRI MY E
AR BRI 6 PRC nationals residing outside Mainland
BRI AR T 2 China or entities incorporated outside
B HEFER BN E Mainland China where the credit is
F granted for use in Mainland China 8,241,357 1,209,029 9,450,386
7  Other counterparties where the exposures are
+  HMAw R BEAIESRTT considered by the Bank to be non-bank
JE\ i Mainland China exposures 10,619,132 697,343 11,316,475
143,773,298 10,641,442 154,414,740

DB 1% 1 4 AR

Total assets after provision 377,471,852

HEAAERNZ AR
& FERE A 2 o7 EE

On-balance sheet exposures as percentage
of total assets 38.09%
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7 BRIESRTTERE (&) 7 Non-bank Mainland exposures (Continued)

BEAMER BEAMER
DIz JEbssE DLyh 2 Jafs4E
On-balance Off-balance

sheet sheet 24 e i %E
exposure exposure Total
AERTIT BT BB TIT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
—O—fusE 2019
— R PO BURFEA 1 Central government, central
AR K H N B RO government-owned entities and their
GEPFE subsidiaries and joint ventures (JVs) 33,813,792 3,371,700 37,185,492
= MHBUN - #FEURRFA 2 Local governments, local
HRERE S =\ B R government-owned entities and their
GEMRZE subsidiaries and JVs 8,318,953 511,509 8,830,462
= [EEFEARE RS 3 PRC nationals residing in Mainland China
B S AE R A Al T or other entities incorporated in
HYEA RS R Mainland China and their subsidiaries
Gl yiee = and JVs 69,744,107 4,383,304 74,127,411
g HAt R EEEE—IH T
MRS 2:BEY 4 Other entities of central government not
Tt reported in item 1 above 3,601,374 - 3,601,374
i EftoREREEE —E
AN ERHE T B2 1Y 5  Other entities of local governments not
Tl reported in item 2 above 1,089,849 18,195 1,108,044
N HEEPESEI MY
N B A LASN 6  PRC nationals residing outside Mainland
BT IR T IL China or entities incorporated outside
B2 HEFNEIA Mainland China where the credit is
F granted for use in Mainland China 8,700,645 2,863,719 11,564,364
7  Other counterparties where the exposures
T HtryreR BEIANIESRTT are considered by the Bank to be
R R non-bank Mainland China exposures 7,744,459 508,357 8,252,816
133,013,179 11,656,784 144,669,963
B E RN E LA Total assets after provision 341,709,321
EEAERN L JEfEEH On-balance sheet exposures as percentage
(EEEHEE Atk of total assets 38.93%
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CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited (“The Bank”) is devoted to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance. To enhance
the overall management quality of the Bank, the Board of Directors
(the “Board”) has put in place governance practices with special
emphasis on an effective Board for leadership and control, sound
business ethics and integrity in all business activities. Throughout
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Bank is committed to the
guidelines set out in the “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” issued by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority.

Board of Directors

The Board is charged with leading the Bank in a responsible and
effective manner. Directors, as members of the Board, jointly share
responsibility for the proper direction and management of the
Bank. The Board is responsible for providing direction at the top of
the organization and for the operations and financial soundness of
the Bank. Its main responsibilities include, but not limited to, the
followings:

- Approving and monitoring the Bank’s objectives, strategies,
business plans and key policies;

- Ensuring the establishment of effective risk management
policies;

- Appointing and overseeing the Executives as well as ensuring
competent management;

- Setting corporate values and standards;
- Ensuring effective audit functions;

- Ensuring prudent conduct of operations within laws and
approved policies;

- Ensuring and monitoring integrity in the Bank’s conduct of
affairs; and

- Responsible for the risk management and internal control of the
Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).

The Board has convened five meetings in 2020. The Board
currently comprises ten members, two executive directors and
eight non-executive directors, of whom four are independent
non-executive directors. The individuals who make up the Board
draw on a rich and diverse background of experience from both
within and outside of the banking community. The independent
non-executive  directors  possess  appropriate  professional
qualifications.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Since the Bank has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., the Board strives to improve its
corporate governance and ensure operational compliance so as to
enhance management quality. The Bank currently establishes
Strategy Committee, Remuneration and Appraisal Committee,
Nomination Committee, Audit Committee and Risk Committee, to
oversee particular aspects of the Bank’s affairs. Each of the
committees has defined terms of reference setting out its duties,
powers and functions. The committees report to the Board and,
where appropriate, make recommendations on matters discussed.
The Board, in addition to its overall supervisory role, retains
specific responsibilities such as approving specific executive
appointments, approving financial accounts, recommending
dividend payments, approving policies relating to the Board’s
compliance, etc.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of chairman of the Board and chief executive officer
are separated.

The Chairman, Mr ZHU Qi, provides leadership for the Board. He
is responsible for ensuring that the Board works effectively and
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely and constructive manner.

The Chief Executive Officer, Dr HONG Bo, in conjunction with
the Management Committee, is delegated with the authority and
responsibility for running the Bank’s operation and implementing
the Bank’s business strategies.

Management Committee

The Management Committee consists of seven members, all
appointed by the Board. The current members are Mr ZHU Qi, Dr
HONG Bo, Dr FENG Xuefeng, Mr WANG Weiming, Mr LI Qi,
Ms SONG Lihua and Mr HE Xin. The Management Committee
exercises the powers, authorities and discretions of the Board
relating to the management and day-to-day running of the Bank in
accordance with its terms of reference and directions as the Board
may determine from time to time. Its main responsibilities include
the followings:

- To implement agreed policies and to execute business plans
approved by the Board;

- To review and approve the policies with the authority granted
by the Board as well as make recommendations to the Board
with respect to the key policies;

- To assist the Board to formulate the Bank’s risk appetite and
strategies for managing various types of risk to which the
Bank’s business are exposed; and the implementation and
maintenance of the overall risk management framework across
the Bank’s business;
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Management Committee (Continued)

To ensure smooth day-to-day operations of the Bank within
applicable laws and policies approved by the Board;

To oversee the specific committees of the Bank, and delegate
authority and power to these committees for daily monitoring
as the Committee thinks fit from time to time;

To collect market information and to recommend policy and
strategy to the Board;

To manage the Bank’s business in a prudent manner;
To provide timely information to other members of the Board
and keep them apprised of the latest development of the Bank

S0 as to enable them to discharge their duties; and

To carry out any other matters as the Board thinks fit from time
to time.

The Management Committee presents to the Board regularly by
way of detailed business reports on management’s business
strategies and objectives, updates on different lines of business,
action plans, etc for discussion at each Board meeting. The
Committee also provides appropriate and sufficient information to
the other members of the Board in a timely manner to keep them

apprised of the latest development of the Bank so as to enable them
to discharge their duties.
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Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee consists of six members, all appointed by
the Board. The current members are Mr ZHU Qi (Chairman), Dr
HONG Bo, Mr ZHANG Dong, Mr LIU Erh Fei, Mr KWOK Lam
Kwong Larry and Mr WANG Qixin. The duties of the Strategy

Committee include the followings:
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To establish strategic development goals, and to formulate
medium to long term development strategies of the Bank;

To implement and review the strategies of the Bank as well as
strengthen the consistency and stability of the implementation
of the strategies of the Bank;

To approve significant investment and capital expenditure plan;

To evaluate the Bank’s
organizations;

key partnership with external
To evaluate and approve the donations made to charitable
organizations; and

To put forward proposals and plans for important issues to be
discussed and decided by the Board.
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FHEEZZEEY Remuneration and Appraisal Committee

FMEEZZEgKEBEHESETLRE > HE The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee consists of four

UL EFEHE Sl BEEEHAEE(ER) members, all appointed by the Board. The current members are Mr

BRI B R ESLE - ZE WANG Qixin (Chairman), Prof CHEUNG Yan Leung Stephen, Mr

EeNBMEHEETRNERE  BENEE ZHANG Cheng and Mr KWOK Lam Kwong Larry. The

HA > HEE AR Committee shall exercise such functions as shall be determined
from time to time by the Board and unless otherwise determined
shall include the followings:

- BEE OREATHNFEELEEFAEES - To oversee, examine and evaluate the execution of the Bank’s
T BAT I R annual business plans and the Board’s resolutions;

- BEWEEENTER A BN EZERE > 7 - To study the performance appraisal standards for the Directors
EEETEZIL R RS and Executives, and to conduct appraisals and make

recommendations annually;

- AR FEENMAERTHNBRREES - To study, review and approve the Bank’s remuneration policy
SREMAEEETEAEBNEN X and packages for the Directors, Senior Management and Key

Personnel;

- REEFIRLAEARTES - TTEABWIEFE - To evaluate and approve the employment or service agreements
ot B Pk 7% foh of the Bank’s Directors and Executives;

- B FOHL A AT B LAY IO ER IS - £ E - To evaluate and approve the Bank’s remuneration strategies,
RS E RECE R the annual pay adjustment and benefits schemes for the staff of

the Bank;

- Eﬁ PREFENAE TR > WELAITHI CIE ~ BEHIZE - To ensure that remuneration is appropriate and consistent with

SELES - BEmfRi ~ EEEH - BEEREE the Bank’s culture, long-term business and risk appetite,
)52 AP E EXRKE & — 20 performance and control environment as well as with any legal
or regulatory requirements;

- HEMHEHBEZESAEREZ &g KEST - To work closely with other relevant committees of the Bank’s
ZEGNATEERGHERERES board, such as the Risk Committee and the Audit Committee,
B - DUSFE A& o B 0 R 69 050 Bh £ i s and consult with the Bank’s Legal and Compliance Department

in evaluating incentives created by the remuneration system;

- PR SA K 1T T 0] AR i T E R R 1 N - To play a leading role in establishing the Bank’s culture and
R AL R 1T B i behavioural standards that promote prudent risk-taking and fair

treatment of customers;

- HHERER > DUmE KR AT T - To introduce a regular process to review and confirm the
HY B S $2 T SCAL 15 e #Y B S effectiveness of the overall culture enhancement initiatives

pursued by the Bank;

- BOEFE— A~ ST KR A ) B - To approve, review and assess, at least annually, the adequacy
KATHI AR B 17 By £ 28 1 AH B 57 BH S & of any relevant statement which sets out the Bank’s culture and
SR EEE > WHOHEEEAREBRSE behavioural standards, and seek to ensure that such statement is
THY HE T AF R BCR KR (B 1 5 translated into policies and procedures (including training) that
A H % E A BB are relevant to the day-to-day work of different levels of staff;

- BHEFE-REEFEEEG S A BEES - To review the results from relevant assessment and feedback
FERKEFRNGE R  DNEZATETL mechanisms at least annually and when warranted for
AP EAE KT BEENEN & monitoring Bank staff’s adherence to culture and behavioural

standards; and

- HEEORBENEMER - - To execute other duties as may be delegated by the Board.
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RELFEY Nomination Committee

REZTESREREETRE > HEEH AN The Nomination Committee consists of five members, all
EFEEHRK > R BB RERE) B BEH appointed by the Board. The current members are Mr LIU Erh Fei
W R GRE  AMEREREEH L - (Chairman), Prof CHEUNG Yan Leung Stephen, Mr ZHANG
ZEEOTNMEREETARERE  KBiER Cheng, Mr KWOK Lam Kwong Larry and Mr WANG Qixin. The
BEHIN  HEBEFEOE Committee shall exercise such functions as shall be determined

from time to time by the Board and unless otherwise determined
shall include the followings:

- EEHEBEGEN NERBESE IR - To identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
B EHEgETRZREgREXSHEE A of the Board and its committees or senior management, and
B WHEEEFAHERAEFEET K selecting, or making recommendations to the Board on the
B EEgETREGRKE NS HEHK selection of, individuals nominated for directorships and senior
riy NG AEB B me - Bk - management positions (based on the role and its responsibilities
HME > KB AR ZEE) and the knowledge, experience and competence which the role
requires);
- MEEFgEEEMCRNEFSTCEEMNHE - To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
TZEOREREE(LEEERE NITE re-appointment of directors and its committees as well as
WEON B EETE succession planning for directors, in particular the chairperson

and the chief executive;

- EGEETNHBETZRE S 2 HERN - To evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of the functioning
KRR s of the Board and its committees on an annual basis;
- BREEIREMNMHEETZEEINRE S - To ensure objectivity and independence in the selection process
GEHEANEBEAEBEZEMNEIL for Board members and its committees as well as senior
management;
- HERESEF A GHMEASNEEE > D4 - To ensure that the Board is not dominated by one individual or
EARITE RN 2 small group of individuals in a manner so as to protect the

interests of the Bank as a whole;

- PR AT EIIERATEESNEILE K - To assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors; and

- EEgRENHMER - - To execute other duties as may be delegated by the Board.

il
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of five members, all appointed by
the Board. The current members are Mr KWOK Lam Kwong Larry
(Chairman), Prof CHEUNG Yan Leung Stephen, Mr ZHU
Jiangtao, Ms LI Li and Mr LIU Erh Fei. They possess appropriate
academic and professional qualifications or related financial
management expertise, and are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties. The principal duties of the Audit
Committee include the followings:

- To draw up, review and update periodically the terms of
reference for the Board’s approval indicating the Committee’s
composition, authority and duties, as well as the manner of
reporting to the Board;

- To monitor the Bank’s financial reporting process and relevant
output, including arrangements through which concerns about
possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting can be
raised;

- To oversee the establishment of the Bank’s accounting policies
and practices (including quality of accounting estimates and
disclosures) and review significant judgements made in
financial reporting within the Bank’s financial statements;

- To review and recommend for the Board’s approval of the
audited annual financial statements together with the
independent auditor’s report and the interim financial disclosure
statement;

- To recommend the Board’s approval of the appointment of the
Chief Auditor of the Bank;

- To recommend the Board’s approval of the audit charter drawn
up and updated periodically by the Internal Audit Department;

- To approve, periodically, the audit plan as well as the related
manpower and financial resources required after identifying the
areas of risk within the Bank’s operations to be covered,

- To review the performance of the Chief Auditor and the
effectiveness of the Internal Audit Department;

- To review reports and significant recommendations provided by
Internal Audit Department and management plans for their
implementation;

- To make recommendations to the Board with regard to the
appointment of the Bank’s external auditors and related matters
(including terms of engagement and remuneration) and oversee
the work of the external auditors (such as considering their
audit work plan and reviewing their audit conclusions and
recommendations);
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Audit Committee (Continued)

To report to the Board regularly on the work performed by the
Committee and its significant findings, and the progress in
implementing any remedial actions to address deficiencies
identified in the Bank’s internal control systems (including
those identified by internal and external auditors, the
Committee or the Hong Kong Monetary Authority);

To provide opportunities for external and internal auditors to
meet and discuss their respective findings;

To review/propose/recommend the approval of significant
policies; and

To execute other duties as may be delegated by the Board.

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee consists of four members, all appointed by
the Board. The current members are Prof CHEUNG Yan Leung
Stephen (Chairman), Mr ZHU Jiangtao, Mr LIU Erh Fei and Mr
KWOK Lam Kwong Larry. The members of the Committee
collectively possess relevant technical expertise and experience in
risk disciplines that are adequate to enable them to discharge their

responsibilities effectively. The principal duties of the Risk
Committee include the followings:
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To review and recommend for the Board’s approval of the
Bank’s risk management strategies, key risk policies and risk
appetite, at least annually;

To review and recommend for the Board’s approval of
specified types of risk management policies and procedures;

To review and assess the adequacy of the Bank’s risk
management framework and policies in identifying, measuring,
monitoring and controlling risks and the extent to which these
are operating effectively;

To monitor, review and conduct regular assessment of the
internal control system of the Bank and to monitor the risk
management of the Bank’s exposures to credit risk, market risk,
operational risk, interest rate risk, strategic risk, legal risk,
reputation risk and liquidity risk by the Executives;

To oversee the establishment and maintenance by senior
management of appropriate infrastructure, resources and
systems for risk management, particularly in relation to the
Bank’s adherence to the approved risk appetite and related
policies;

To oversee and discuss the strategies for capital and liquidity
management, and those for all relevant risks (on both an
aggregated basis and by type of risk) of the Bank, to ensure
they are consistent with the stated risk appetite;
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Risk Committee (Continued)

To oversee and evaluate the design and execution of stress
testing and scenario analyses;

- To review periodic reports provided by the senior management
(including the Chief Risk Officer) on the state of the Bank’s
risk culture, risk exposure and risk management activities;

- To ensure that the staff members of the Bank responsible for
implementing risk management systems and controls are
sufficiently independent of the Bank’s relevant risk-taking
activities;

- To examine, without prejudice to the tasks of the Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee, the incentives created by the
remuneration system are aligned with the Bank’s risk culture
and risk appetite, and ensure remuneration awards appropriately
reflect risk-taking and risk outcomes; and

- To execute other duties as may be delegated by the Board.
Internal Control

The Board and Executives are responsible for establishing,
maintaining and operating an effective system of internal control.
The internal control system of the Group comprises a
well-established organizational structure and comprehensive
policies and standards. The Audit Committee, Risk Committee and
other designated committees have been established with the
objective of assisting the Board to manage and monitor various
risks. The Board’s expectations regarding duty, responsibility and
integrity of each department are clearly spelled out in formal policy
statements, which include Code of Conduct, Internal Control
Policy and Compliance Policy Statement, etc. The Board has
clearly defined the lines of authority and responsibilities of each
business and operational unit to ensure adequate checks and
balances.

The Group’s internal control system covers every business and
operational function so as to safeguard its assets against loss and
misappropriation; to maintain proper accounting records for
producing reliable financial information; to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material fraud and errors. Policies
and procedures are established to ensure compliance with
applicable laws, regulations and industry standards. To cope with
the increasingly stringent requirements from relevant regulatory
authorities together with ever-changing business environment, the
Board has dedicated more resources and efforts to further
strengthen the Group’s management structure and oversight.
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Internal Control (Continued)

The Group has had in place various risk management policies and
procedures. There are specific committees and units that are
responsible for identifying, assessing, monitoring and managing
the risks that the Group faces. Risk management policies and major
risk control limits are established and approved by the Board or the
Management Committee. A more detailed discussion of the
policies and procedures for managing each of the major types of
risk the Group is facing, including credit, market, liquidity and
operational risk, is included in Note 4 to the financial statements
“Financial Risk Management” section.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control system
and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Group’s internal audit
function plays an important role in the Group’s internal control
framework. It provides objective assurance to the Board that a
sound internal control system is maintained and operated in
compliance with the established processes and standards through
regular and comprehensive audits on all business and operational
functions. The Audit Committee reviews the significant issues
raised in the internal audit reports. Significant issues raised in the
management letters from external auditors and reports from
regulatory authorities will be brought to the attention of the Audit
Committee to ensure that prompt remedial action is taken. All
recommendations will be properly followed up to ensure they are
implemented within a reasonable period of time. Pursuant to a risk
based methodology, the Internal Audit Department plans its
internal audit schedules annually with audit resources prioritised
towards higher risk areas. The Internal Audit Plan is submitted to
the Management Committee for review and the Audit Committee
for approval. To preserve the audit independence, the Board has
established the Audit Charter to set out the authorities and
responsibilities of internal audit function. The Chief Auditor
reports directly to the Management Committee and Audit
Committee, and ultimately reports to the Board.

Accountability and Audit

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements of each financial period, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that period. In preparing the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors have applied
suitable accounting policies consistently, approved adoption of all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which are in conformity
with the International Financial Reporting Standards, and made
prudent judgments and estimates, and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The Bank has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits of 4 months and 3 months respectively
after the end of the relevant period.
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